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VISION

TO SERVE THE NEEDS OF OUR CUSTOMER

TO UNLOCK THE BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES
AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OUR PARTNERS
AND STAKEHOLDERS WITH ACCOUNTABILITY,

MORALITY AND SUSTAINABILITY.

MISSION

I FOCUS FAST DELIVERS WITH WORLD-CLASS
SERVICE BY PREMIUM CX INTEGRATED WITH
A SEAMLESS OMNI-CHANNEL PLATFORM

TO DELIGHT HUMAN TOUCH BEYOND
THE CUSTOMER EXPECTATION.
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MESSAGE FROM
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

IN 2023, VARIOUS INDUSTRIES HAVE GRADUALLY

RETURNED TO NORMALCY FOLLOWING THE CHALLENGES
POSED BY THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC IN THE PRECEDING

2-3 YEARS. HOWEVER, THERE STILL EXISTS AN IMPACT
ON CONSUMER PURCHASING POWER, LEADING

TO REPERCUSSIONS ON THE OUTSOURCING BUSINESS OF
THE COMPANY. CONSEQUENTLY, THE COMPANY HAS
ADJUSTED ITS BUSINESS STRATEGIES AND COST
MANAGEMENT, FOCUSING ON ENHANCING OPERATIONAL
EFFICIENCY AND TRANSITIONING TOWARDS A MORE
TECHNOLOGY-DRIVEN APPROACH THROUGH DIGITAL
TECHNOLOGY. ADDITIONALLY, INVESTMENTS HAVE BEEN
DIVERSIFIED TO ENSURE LONG-TERM STABILITY IN
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE, ALONGSIDE PRUDENT RISK
MANAGEMENT PREPARATIONS FOR EVER-CHANGING
SCENARIOS. WHILE STEADFAST IN EXECUTING ITS VISION
AND LAID STRATEGIES, THE COMPANY REMAINS POISED
FOR RADICAL ADAPTATION, AIMING TO INTEGRATE AND
INNOVATE BUSINESS PRACTICES TO DELIVER VALUE TO
SHAREHOLDERS AND STAKEHOLDERS. BEYOND BUSINESS
OPPORTUNITIES, THESE CHALLENGES SERVE AS VALUABLE

LEARNING EXPERIENCES, FOSTERING GROWTH, EFFICIENCY, AND EXPERTISE TO FORTIFY THE
COMPANY'S BUSINESS FOUNDATION FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT.

THROUGHOUT THE PAST YEAR, THE COMPANY'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAS IMPLEMENTED
POLICIES AIMED AT PROMOTING AND SUPPORTING INNOVATION AND MODERN TECHNOLOGY
DEVELOPMENT TO ENHANCE BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES AMIDST CRISIS SITUATIONS.
ADDITIONALLY, THEY HAVE OVERSEEN THE MANAGEMENT TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE
ESTABLISHED POLICIES AND OPERATIONAL STRATEGIES, WHILE ADHERING FIRMLY TO THE
PRINCIPLES OF SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THREE DIMENSIONS: ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (ESG). MOREOVER, THE COMPANY HAS SUPPORTED
EFFORTS TO COMBAT CORRUPTION.

ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS, | WOULD LIKE TO EXPRESS MY GRATITUDE
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS, BOARD MEMBERS, EXECUTIVES, AND ALL EMPLOYEES FOR THEIR
CONTINUOUS SUPPORT AND DEDICATION TO THE COMPANY'S OPERATIONS. | FIRMLY BELIEVE THA
WITH OUR DEDICATION, COMMITMENT, ENTHUSIASM, AND MANAGEMENT CAPABILITIES, WE WILL
DRIVE THE ORGANIZATION TOWARDS SUSTAINABLE GROWTH IN THE FUTURE.

A
(MR. CHIRAYU CHUEYAM)
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD



MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE REPORT

IN THE PAST YEAR 2023, ALTHOUGH THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP OF COMPANIES
INCURRED LOSSES, CONSIDERING THE PERFORMANCE DERIVED FROM THE CORE BUSINESS
OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY, SUCH AS BEING A SERVICE PROVIDER, OPERATING DATA CENTERS,
AND CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP CENTERS (CONTACT CENTER), IT IS CONSIDERED SLIGHTLY IMPROVED
COMPARED TO THE PREVIOUS YEAR. HOWEVER, DUE TO INCREASED COMPETITION FROM BOTH
LARGE AND SMALL OPERATORS ENTERING THIS BUSINESS, THE COMPANY'S PROFIT MARGIN HAS
REMAINED RELATIVELY LOW. CONSEQUENTLY, THE COMPANY HAS ENDEAVORED TO ADJUST ITS
BUSINESS STRATEGY WITH THE KEY OBJECTIVE OF VENTURING INTO NEW BUSINESSES AND SEEKING
OPPORTUNITIES TO INVEST IN OTHER POTENTIAL NEW S-CURVE BUSINESSES TO DIVERSIFY GROWTH
AND ENSURE BUSINESS SUSTAINABILITY. THIS INCLUDES RESTRUCTURING THE BUSINESS BY
TRANSFERRING THE COMPANY'S CORE BUSINESSES TO ITS SUBSIDIARIES, INVESTING IN NEW
BUSINESSES, AND ESTABLISHING SUBSIDIARIES TO SUPPORT THE COMPANY'S NEW BUSINESSES.
ADDITIONALLY, TO FACILITATE INDEPENDENT AND EFFICIENT MANAGEMENT, THE COMPANY
INCURRED HIGHER SALES AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES IN THE YEAR 2023. FURTHERMORE,
THE COMPANY ALSO EXPERIENCED LOSSES FROM ANTICIPATED CREDIT LOSSES AND LOSSES FROM
INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES.

HOWEVER, AS THE COMPANY OPERATES AS A SERVICE PROVIDER, DATA CENTER, AND CONTACT
CENTER IN THE FORM OF OUTSOURCED SERVICES, THERE CONTINUES TO BE A STEADY DEMAND
FOR THESE SERVICES FROM BOTH THE PRIVATE AND PUBLIC SECTORS. THIS IS BECAUSE
OUTSOURCING HELPS REDUCE COSTS IN SELF-INVESTMENT AND PROVIDES CONVENIENCE AND
SPEED IN EXPANDING SERVICES TO MEET THE CHANGING CONSUMER BEHAVIOR, WHILE REQUIRING
LESS EFFORT IN DIRECT CONTACT BETWEEN PARTIES. THERE IS ALSO A SHIFT TOWARDS USING
MORE NON-VOICE SERVICES. ADDITIONALLY, THE COMPANY PROVIDES EQUIPMENT RENTAL FOR
CONTACT CENTERS AND SOFTWARE RENTAL SERVICES, INCLUDING BOTH OFF-THE-SHELF SOFTWARE
AND SYSTEM SOFTWARE TAILORED TO THE ORGANIZATION'S BUSINESS. THE COMPANY PLACES
CONTINUOUS EMPHASIS ON TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENT AND ROTATES EMPLOYEES TO VARIOUS
PROJECTS TO ENHANCE SERVICE SKILLS AND REDUCE COSTS IN HIRING NEW EMPLOYEES. THIS
INVOLVES TRAINING EMPLOYEES TO HAVE MULTITASKING SKILLS. MOREOVER, THE COMPANY
PRIORITIZES RISK MANAGEMENT AND PRUDENT INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, INCLUDING INTERNAL
COST CONTROLS AND IMPROVING OPERATIONAL PROCESSES FOR GREATER EFFICIENCY.

IN ADDITION, THE COMPANY NOT ONLY FOCUSES SOLELY ON BUSINESS OBJECTIVES BUT ALSO
EMPHASIZES SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY. THIS HAS LED THE COMPANY TO BE SELECTED FOR THE
SUSTAINABLE STOCK LIST FOR THE FOURTH CONSECUTIVE YEAR, REFLECTING ITS COMMITMENT
TO OPERATING ITS BUSINESS WITH CONSIDERATION FOR THE ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY,
AND ADHERENCE TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES. THIS DEMONSTRATES THE COMPANY'S
COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS PRACTICES.

A
(MR. CHIRAYU CHUEYAM)
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD



H BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Pakorn Apaphant

- Independent Director

- Chairman of tha Board of Directors

- Chairman of Audit Commities

- Chairman of the Nominating and

- Compensation Committea

- Corporate Governance Committes Member
(Resigned on December 11, 2023)

Mr. Chirayu Chueyam

- Vice Chalrman of the Board of Directors

- Nominating and Compensation Committee Member

- Corporate Governance Committee Member

- Chairman of Risk Management Commities
Chairman of Executive Committee

- Chairman of Sustainable Development Committes

- Chairman of Investment Committee

- Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul

- Independent Director

- Chairman of Audit Committee

- Chairman of Nominating and
Compensation Committee

- Corporate Governance Committee Member

bir: Friyong Testasachaid Ms. Natenapa Pusittanont

- Independent Diractor =
- Audit Committes Membar ) ind?pendent_ Director
- Chairman of Carporate - Audit Committes Member

Governance Committes

- Nominating and Compensation
Committes Member

- Risk Management Committee Member

Mr. Prapat Yorkhant

- Director

- Executive Committes Member

- Rigk Management Committee Member

- Sustainable Developmert Committee Member

Mr. Rathapol Limthongchai

Mr. Issara Roungsuk-udom
- Director - Director
- Investment Committee Membear



| BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Chuket Ounijitti Mr. Pattarakit Techasikarn
- Independent Director / Independent Director /
- Audit Committee Member Audit Committee Member

(Resigned on July 27, 2023)

Mr. Kanawuthi Wattanadhirach Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham
- Director - Director

{Resioned onAugust 22:2025) - Executive Committee Member

- Investment Committes Member

- Risk Management Gommittee Member

- Sustainable Development Committee Member

Mr. Somkit Likitparinya Mr. Panom Ratanarat Mr. Sarayut Yimruen
- Diractor - Director - Director
(Resigned on December 11, 2023) {Resigned on March 14, 2023)
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Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

Structure and Operations of the Group

Peer for You Public Company Limited (“Company”), formerly known as One to One Contacts Public Company Limited,
was established on August 7, 2000 with an initial registered capital of 20,000,000 baht, with the major shareholder
being Samart Corporation Public Company Limited Group. Later in 2013, it changed to a limited company. Is a public
company It increased its registered capital to 280,000,000 baht and was listed on the Market for Alternative Investment
on May 15, 2014, using the securities abbreviation “OTO”. The company name was later changed to Peer for You

Public Company Limited and the securities abbreviation was changed from "OTO" to "PEER" effective March 5, 2024.

At the end of 2020, the company changed its major shareholder structure. As a result, the company is not a subsidiary
of the group of companies Samart Corporation Public Company Limited from 9 December 2020. This has not affected
or changed the core business structure in any way, and in 2021 the company has increased its registered capital to
840,000,000 baht, of which 559,999,995 baht is paid-up registered capital. The company plans to use the money from
the capital increase to be used to expand investment in new businesses with potential and/or as working capital in
the business. In 2023, the company transferred its core business to One to One Professional Company Limited or
OTP (a subsidiary) in order to restructure the Call Center OTO Group business with the objective of having OTP
conduct business related to Mainly Call Center. The company still has the status of an Operating Company because
the company has transferred only some customers to OTP to manage, except for some customers who cannot be
transferred due to certain conditions, such as customers Government sector, where new customers will be under the
management of OTP. In addition, the company has established two subsidiaries to support new businesses. This is
to create independent and easy administration. This creates opportunities for the company to grow by expanding

investment into business lines both related and unrelated to the original business, both domestically and/or abroad.

In 2024, the company registered an increase in capital to 2,946,016,590 baht. By issuing new common shares in the
amount 2,106,016,595 shares with a par value of 1.00 baht per share to be offered for specific sale to a limited number
of persons (Private Placement) in the amount of 1,200,000,000 shares and to support the exercise of rights according
to the OTO-W2 warrants. The paid-up registered capital is 793,236,509 baht. The company plans to use the money
received from the capital increase to invest in expanding the company's current business as well as being used

capital to support the expansion of investment in systems or electronic networks for peer-to-peer lending transactions.
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Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )
———
The company operates as a service provider. Call Center and Customer Service Center It covers the following
services:
1) Turnkey Total Solutions in Thailand
2) Outsourced customer service representative services, covering a complete management and
recruitment of customer relation staff, including selection, training, providing hardware and software.
3) Outsourced customer management facility at the customer’s site
4) Contact Center Equipment Rental and Software Rental Service both ready-made software and Contact
Center software that can adjust the work system to suit each business

5) Contact Center Maintenance Service

The Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

1. One to One Professional Company Limited

It was established in 2008 and currently has a paid-up registered capital of 30 million baht. It operates a service
center for call centers and customer relations. And receive services as a management consultant for customer

service personnel and customer database cleaning service debt collection business and training institutes.

2. Innohub Company Limited

Founded in 2018, the company currently has a paid-up registered capital of 50 million baht. It operates the
business of providing digital innovation development services (Digital service innovation) and investing in

other businesses.

3. EV Click Company Limited

Established on February 28, 2023, registered capital 10 million baht, operating business by investing in common

shares of Peer for All Company Limited, which operates Peer to Peer Lending business.

4. CCS Carbon Clear Solution Company Limited

Currently in the process of closing the company.

5. One to One (Cambodia) Company Limited*

Currently in the process of closing the company.
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1.1

Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

Policy and business overview

The company operates a full-service customer relationship management business both digital and
traditional by providing design, development, and installation of a one-stop customer service center system
for public and private organizations. The company also offers contact center equipment rental and software
rental services both ready-made software and Contact Center software that adapts the work system to suit
the business of the organization. To provide customers with the most complete service under the concept

"Total Customer Interaction Management Solutions."

As many organizations are starting to focus on improving customer service to be more efficient. Providing
a customer relationship center system requires specialized knowledge that requires system specialists to
take care of it. The company is aware of the increasing demand in the service market. Therefore, there are
various service formats flexible more responsive to the needs of service users from the former, which was

a specialized service to comprehensive management and more diversified service channels.

However, due to the epidemic situation of Coronavirus-19 (Covid-19), all business sectors inevitably
transform themselves into a digital society. Technology is being used in business operations so that it can
continue to operate under crises. Make lifestyle or the behavior of consumers has changed to become the
New Normal for almost every business need to be aware of the changes. The risk must be managed by
looking from the external environment to the inside. To best manage the risk and adjust the business,
although the company's outsourcing business has been affected by some projects customers have to
cancel the service due to suspension or reduce the size of the service, which directly affects the
performance of the company. Therefore, the company has changed its business structure to use more
Digital Transformation technology, including changing the company's investment policy by expanding the
scope of the company's business to other businesses that have the potential to compete to be in line with
the behavior of consumers in the new era and increase the opportunity to generate more profits for the

company.
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Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

The company operates the business by being certified for quality management according to international standards as

follows:

ISO 9001: 2015 A standard to certify that the company has a quality management

Quality Management System (QMS) system in every operation. To demonstrate the quality and good
efficiency of the operations in the organization.

ISO 20000-1:2018 A standard to certify that a company is managing IT services

(IT Service Management) effectively.

ISO 27001: 2013 Information Security Management Systems (ISMS) standards include

(Information Security Management) the scope of standards covering the quality of management standards
of various operations.

COPC Customer Operations Performance Center (Call Center)

(Certificated Implementation Leader)

CMMI for Development Maturity Level 3 | International standards that define processes for Implementation work

(Capability Maturity Model Integration) clearly

1.1.1 Vision and Mission
The company holds a business plan meeting every year. To determine the direction of business
operations and set monetary goals and non-monetary goals such as vision, mission, philosophy of
business, and corporate values and propose to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval

to proceed and communicate to employees as a common practice.

® Vision
To serve the needs of our customers to unlock the business opportunities and be responsible for

our partners and stakeholders with accountability, morality, and sustainability.

® Mission
Focus fast delivers with world-class service by premium CX integrated with a seamless omni-

channel platform to delight human touch beyond the customer expectation.
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Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

Major changes and development

2018

® The company received the “2018 Thailand Outsourced Contact Center Service Provider of the
Year” award from Frost & Sullivan as a leading private organization in contact center business
in Thailand for the sixth year in a row.

® The Company was awarded “Asia's Most Trusted Contact Center and Customer Management
Services Company” as the “Most Trusted Contact Center in Asia and customer relations
services” organized by International Brand Consulting Corporation, USA

® The Company established a subsidiary named Inno Hub Company Limited to develop

innovative digital services.

2019

® The Company received the “2019 Thailand Outsourced Contact Center Service Provider of the
Year” award from Frost & Sullivan as a leading private organization in contact center business
in Thailand for the 7th consecutive year.

® One to One (Cambodia) Company Limited increased registered capital to USD 600,000.

® The Company was certified for the renewal of ISO 27001:2013 Standard for Information Security

Management on September 6, 2019.

2020

® The Company has changed the major shareholder structure. As a result, the Company is not a
subsidiary of Samart Corporation Plc. From 9 December 2020

® One to One Professional Co., Ltd. increased the registered capital to 5,000,000 baht to operate
the cleaning robot business.

® The Company received the “2020 Thailand Outsourced Contact Center Service Provider of the
Year” award from Frost & Sullivan as a leading private organization in contact center business
in Thailand for the 8th consecutive year.

® The Company received the “ Asia’s Leading SMEs : Asia Corporate Excellence & Sustainability
Awards 2020” from MORS Group

e The Company received the “Thailand Sustainability Investment (THSI) 2020” from the Stock

Exchange of Thailand.
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Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

2021

On July 27, 2021, the Board of Directors meeting No. 9/2021 resolved to approve Inno Hub Co.,
Ltd. (a subsidiary company) to invest in Insight Media Group Co., Ltd,, which operates media
production services and advertising in Thailand by purchasing 1,964,000 ordinary shares at a
par value of 10 baht per share, the purchase value of this share is 5,000,000 baht.

On 25 August 25, 2021 Company, Inno Hub Company Limited (subsidiary company) increased
registered capital to 10,000,000 baht (On 14 February, 2022 increased registered capital to
50,000,000 baht)

On September 9, 2021, the Board of Directors meeting No. 11/2021 resolved to approve the
Company's investment in Hinsitsu (Thailand) Public Company Limited, which operates the
business of producing silk screen nameplates, label stickers and supplying products to customers
for electrical appliances both domestically and internationally. The Company purchased ordinary
shares from the seller, Simat Technology Public Company which is the current shareholder of
Hinsitsu, amounting to 100,000 shares at a par value share or equivalent to 10 percent of the total
shares in Hinsitsu. The total value of the purchase of shares at the time was 175,000,000 baht.
On September 20, 2021, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2021
resolved to approve the increase of registered capital in the amount of 560,000,000 baht from
the original registered capital of 280,000,000 baht to a new registered capital of 840,000,000
baht by issuing and offering new ordinary shares to shareholders and the issuance of OTO-W1
warrants to the existing shareholders in the ratio of 2 existing shares to 1 warrant.

On October 28, 2021, the Company proceeded to register the change in the Company's paid-
up capital with the Department of Business Development and Ministry of Commerce in the
amount of 279,999,995 baht, a total paid-up capital of 559,999,995 baht, with a total of
559,999,995 shares issued with a par value of 1 baht per share.

On November 10, 2021, the Board of Directors Meeting No. 13/2021 resolved to approve Inno
Hub Co., Ltd, a subsidiary in which the Company holds 100% of the total shares, the sale of
ordinary shares in Insight Media Group Company Limited ("IMG"), which operates the business
of providing advertising media production services in Thailand to HPS1 Property Company
Limited (not a connected person of the Company), amounting to 1,964,000 shares at face value.
Hold 10 baht per share, representing 67.72% of the total shares in IMG. The trading value is at
6,000,000 baht. After the disposal of the investment in the subsidiary company, the Company

and Inno Hub do not have any remaining shares held in IMG and IMG ceases to be a subsidiary
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Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

of the Company. This does not affect the operating results or the financial position of the
Company in any way.

On November 10, 2021, the Board of Directors Meeting No. 13/2021 approved the closure of
One To One (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. One To One (Cambodia) ended its operations on January 31,
2022, currently in the process of liquidation.

The Company was certified for the "ISO 29110 Management systems and software engineering”
standard. A standard to certify the quality of management or software products and systematic
software development following the international standards.

The Company received the "2021 Thailand Customer Experience Outsourcing Services
Company of the Year" award as an organization capable of providing excellent service to
customers. It has been awarded by Frost & Sullivan for the ninth consecutive year in a row.
The Company has been selected for the 'Thailand Sustainability Investment (THSI) Year 2021"

award from the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

2022

On April 5, 2022, Inno Hub Co., Ltd. (Subsidiary Company) entered into a share purchase
agreement to invest into the ordinary shares of Phygital Space Development Co., Ltd. ("PSD"). PSD
operates in the business of providing services in content production, marketing related to Gaming
and Electronic Sports business (Esports) in the total investment value of 100,000,000 baht
representing 49% of the total registered capital of PSD and the Company has appointed 3 out of
5 directors of PSD, resulting in PSD becoming an indirect subsidiary of the Company.

On April 21, 2022, the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders for the year 2022 resolved to
approve the reduction of the Company's registered capital by 5 baht by canceling the 5 unsold
registered ordinary shares with a par value of 1 baht per share. Then, increasing the registered
capital by 55,000,005 baht with the issuance of newly issued ordinary shares in the amount of
55,000,005 shares with a par value of 1 baht per share. Resulting in the new registered capital of
895,000,000 baht

The Company was certified "CMMI Capability Maturity Model Integration" standard. An
international Standard to certify the clear process for implementation and definition of operational
processes.

The Company received the "2022 Thailand Customer Experience Outsourcing Services
Company of the Year" award as an organization capable of providing excellent service to

customers. It has been awarded by Frost & Sullivan for the tenth consecutive year in a row.
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Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

The Company has been selected for the 'Thailand Sustainability Investment (THSI) Year 2022"

award from the Stock Exchange of Thailand for the third year.

2023

February 28, 202 3, registered the establishment of EV Click Company Limited (subsidiary),
registered capital of 10 million baht (paid-up registered capital of 2.5 million baht ) to support
the company's business expansion. Concerning the import, production, assembly and
distribution of electric motorcycles. electric vehicle parts

March 14, 2023, Phygital Space Development Company Limited (PSD), an indirect subsidiary
of the Company. Which held 49% of shares has ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. Due
to the resignation of 1 out of 3 directors who were appointed by the company to serve as
directors in PSD, resulting in only 2 directors appointed by the company remaining from a total
of 5 directors.

March 31, 2023, Notification of the disposal of all investments in Phygital Space Development
Company Limited. Total investment value sold is 150 million baht.

April 26, 2023, registered the establishment of CCS Carbon Clear Solution Company Limited
with registered capital (paid-up registered capital of 1.25 million baht) to support businesses
related to buying, selling or transferring rights in carbon credits.

July 21, 2023, the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 12/2023 resolved to approve financial
assistance. By providing a short-term loan amount of 100 million baht to Wow Factor Public
Company Limited, which is not a connected person of the company.

August 15, 2023, the Company's Board of Directors Meeting No. 4/2023 resolved to approve
the company to purchase 1 plot of land, total area 957.9 square meters, located at No. 74 Moo
7, Khlong Nueng, Khlong Luang, Pathum Thani, worth 140 million baht, with the objective of
being used as a site for construction of the company's office building in the future.

August 23, 2023, the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 15/2023 resolved to approve the Company
and/or the Company's subsidiaries invest in the Peer to Peer Lending business by purchasing
common shares in Peer for All Company Limited (PFA) from existing shareholders. In the
proportion of 91 percent, the total investment value is 565,000,000 baht, subject to an important
condition precedent being approval from the Bank of Thailand for the change of shareholders
and management of PFA.

The Company has been selected for the 'Thailand Sustainability Investment (THSI) Year 2023"

award from the Stock Exchange of Thailand for the 4th year.
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Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

2024

February 19, 2024, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2024 resolved to

approve the following;

- Approve the issuance and allocation of warrants to purchase the company's common shares for
the second time (OTO-W2 warrants), an amount not exceeding 906,016,595 units, to be allocated
to the company's existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholding (Rights Offering ) in
the ratio of 11 original common shares per 5 units of OTO-W2 warrants without charge

- Approved an increase in registered capital of 2,106,016,595 baht from the original registered
capital of 839,999,995 baht to a new registered capital of 2,946,016,590 baht by issuing new
common shares in the amount 2,106,016,595 shares, par value 1.00 baht per share

- Approve the allocation of additional common shares of the company, not exceeding
2,106,016,595 shares, to be offered for specific sale to a limited number of persons (Private
Placement) in the amount of 1,200,000,000 shares at the offering price of 0.60 baht per share
and to support the exercise of rights according to the warrants. Display OTO-W2 rights in
the amount of 906,016,595 units

- Approve the change of company name and securities abbreviation

- Approved the purchase of common shares in Happy Products and Services Co., Ltd. in the
proportion of 100 percent, investment value 150 million baht.

February 28, 2024, the company registered a change in the name of the company from One to

One Contacts Public Company Limited to Peer for You Public Company Limited

March 5, 2024, Stock Exchange of Thailand Change the company's securities abbreviation from

OTO to PEER

March 6, 2024, notification of closure of CCS Carbon Clear Solution Company Limited (subsidiary)

due to inactivity and no future operations plan

March 25, 2024, the company registered another change in the paid-up capital of the company

in the amount of 261,666,667 baht, totaling the total paid-up capital 1,054,903,176 baht with the

total number of shares sold 1,054,903,176 shares

1.1.3 Using the money received from fundraising according to the objectives

Money raised from company fundraising

1)

From the offering of additional common shares to the company's existing shareholders (RO) on

October 14-20, 2021 at a ratio of 1 existing common share to 1 additional common share at a price
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of 1.00 baht per share. Number of shares sold 279,999,995 shares after deducting expenses.
There is a net balance of 277,049,995 baht.

From the first exercise of the warrant to purchase the Company's common shares (OTO-W1) on
May 31, 2023, with a total of 233,236,514 units exercised. Exercise ratio: 1 unit: 1 common share.
Exercise price: 3.00 baht per unit. Total amount of money the company receives from the first

exercise of OTO-W1 conversion rights, totaling 699,709,542 baht.

While the company has not yet used the money for its intended use. The company has a policy to
make use of remaining liquid assets. The remaining liquidity management options were considered
by investing in securities. Equity instruments and/or debt instruments and/or invest in businesses that
have better returns than bank fixed deposits. The returns and risks will be considered as appropriate.
Based on the company's investment policy and was approved by the resolution of the Board of
Directors' Meeting No. 3/2021 on February 10, 2021, and the said investment policy was revised and
reviewed. Which was approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 8/2021 on 11
June 2021, No. 6/2022 on 15 August 2022, No. 8/2023 on 2 June 2023, No. 12/2023 on 21 July 2023

and No. 18/2023 on 14 November 2023, respectively.

Remaining funds from fundraising as of December 31, 2023 consist of investments in equity instruments
in the amount of 204.8 million baht and short-term loans to other businesses in the amount of 100 million

baht.

Commitments that the company promises in the securities offering registration form and /or
conditions for requesting permission from the office (if any) and/or conditions for accepting
securities from the Stock Exchange (if any)

-None-

Name, location of Head office, type of business, company registration number, telephone, fax, company

website Total number and types of shares sold

Company name Peer for you Public Limited Company

Business type Call center and Customer service

Company registration number 0107556000281

Head office location 99/26 Moo. 4 Software Park building 9" floor Chaengwattana Rd.

Klong Gluar, Pak-kred, Nonthaburi 11120

Telephone 0 2975 5999

Website www.onetoonecontacts.com
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Registered Capital 2,946,016,590 THB (Two thousand nine hundred forty-six million

sixteen thousand five hundred and ninety baht)

Divided into 2,946,016,590 share (Two thousand nine hundred forty-six million

sixteen thousand five hundred and ninety baht)

Par value per share 1 THB per share

Divided into

Ordinary shares 2,946,016,590 shares

Preferred shares -None-

Paid-up Registered Capital 1,054,903,176.00 THB ( One thousand fifty-four million-nine hundred

three thousand-one hundred seventy-six baht)

Nature of business

One to One Contacts Public Company Limited divides the service business into 2 types as follows:

1.

Outsourced Contact Center and Digital Management Solutions

The Company has 3 main service centers providing services in Thailand, located at Software Park

Building Chaengwattana Road, Thaisri Tower Krungthonburi Road Khlongsan and Buriram Castle

Changwat Buriram all supporting approximately 2,200 seats, which can be further expanded to support

demands or expansion of our customers. The call center and customer relations services are divided into

4 types as follows:

1.1

Fully Outsourced Contact Center Management Service

The Company provides services for organizations that need customer management through Contact
Centers or Customer Management Center without the high capital or costs required in setting up
their own systems, thus, reducing the organization's operating costs by using the Company's Fully
Outsourced Contact Center or Customer Management Center services. Offering services which
cover various business cycles for both short-term or long-term projects, special marketing or
promotional activities, telesales service, after sales service, customer retention and loyalty, internal

and external surveys, etc.

Included in the Company's Fully Outsourced Customer Management services, the Company
provides services simply offering information to customers or a fully outsourced contact center where
the Company provides all resources including the physical location, telephone system, computer

system, both Hardware and Software Applications, and customer relations personnel (Customer
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Service Representative), supervisors and quality inspectors for all customers employing the
Company's Contact Center / Customer Management Center services in various fields. Herein the
Company employs systems that support a wide variety of services including service via telephone
(Voice) or other channels (Non-Voice) such as web chat, emails, social media and/or through Digital
Services Platform (Self-Services) such as mobile applications. By providing the aforementioned
three channels, the Company has developed an Omnichannel platform for providing continuous

service and a seamless experience for our customers by utilizing modern technology.

The Company has developed digital products and services to meet the ever changing demands
and needs of customers in this digital age. Such as, Web Admin, Chatbot, Digital Survey, Social
CRM and more through both voice (Voice) and text (Chatbot) which supports commerce,
coordination, efficiency and a reduction of operating expenses for our customers. These services
may be offered through avariety of channels such as Web Chat, Facebook Messenger and data

collection by connecting with CRM for future service development.

Outsourced Contact Center Facility

The company provides information center systems and equipment for organizations that do not want
to invest in installing the system themselves. It helps organizations to have a standardized customer
relationship center without having to invest themselves. This is to alleviate the burden of investment
costs and create flexibility inefficient management. The service is divided into 6 types as follows:

1. Outsourced contact center and customer management facility at the Company’s site

2 Outsourced contact center and customer management facility at the customer’s site

3. Contact center on demand and hosted contact center

4.  Cloud contact center

5. Social CRM Management

6.  Service combining modern technology, creating a Hybrid Contact Center Solution to support Business

transformation and adapt to the rapidly changing environment and technology.

Outsourced Customer Service Representative

The Company offers a full range of customer service management and recruitment services,
including the Complete management and recruitment of customer relation staff, including selection,
training, monitoring, and quality control to continually maintain the standard of services. The
Company also provides personnel replacement and staff welfare to reduce worries from customers

on public relations and to ensure that the personnel provide services to an international standard.
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1.4 Contact Center Maintenance Service
The Company provides the contact center maintenance service by experienced teams. To ensure
all problems are resolved professionally and effectively without delay, ensuring semless business
operations.
Total Turnkey Solutions
The Company offers consultation services, design, development and installation of Total Turnkey Solutions
(Call Contact Center) for organizations that wish to invest in and install their own internal systems utilizing
cutting-edge technology by teams of specialist engineers in Contact Center / Customer Management. The
Company provides all the hardware, software, and applications and integrates all systems to the
requirements of each specific operation. Focusing on ensuring the designs and requirements correspond
with the nature of the customer's business operations and increase business efficiency and provide a high

standard of service.

The Company has introduced modern technology to support multichannel services simultaneously.
Employing qualified experts to implement Omnichannel platform systems for both public and private sectors
to aid in analyzing customer profiles through all types of communication channels including Voice. Non-Voice

or Mobile Applications to analyze consumer behavior to create proactive business changes and strategies.

1.2.1 Structure of Revenue

1 .Revenue from sales and contract work

1.1 Sales and Turnkey Total Solutions 37.20 6.23 20.14 3.59 17.20 3.02
Subtotal 37.20 6.23 20.14 3.59 17.20 3.02
2. Revenue from services

2.1 Fully Outsourced Contact Center Management Service 368.27 61.64 387.63 69.17 379.41 66.64

2.2 Outsourced Contact Center Facility 25.77 4.31 22.31 3.98 15.23 2.68

2.3 Outsourced Customer Service Representative 149.72 25.06 121.02 21.59 147.37 25.89

2.4 Maintenance Service 16.46 2.76 9.33 1.67 10.06 1.77
Subtotal 560.22 93.77 540.29 96.41 552.07 96.98

Total from sales and service 597.42 100.00 560.43 100.00 569.26 100.00
3. Other 60.03 - 3.34 -
Grand total 597.42 100.00 620.46 100.00 572.60 100.00

13 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 56-1 ONE REPORT




Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

1.2.2 Product information

1

Product characteristics and innovation development

One to One Contacts Public Company Limited, conducts business operations in Outsourced
Contact Center Service comprising of Outsourced Contact Center and Customer Management
Services, and the design, development and installation of Turnkey Total Solutions with expert
designs and Installation implemented with cutting edge modern technology systems to support a
wide variety of Communication channels a long with customer relations officers who can provide
information service. The company is able to prepare a work reports with various information and
data of service users and operations to the customers after conclution of the job. Moreover,
customers may check operational reports from Online Web Report at any time. The company

divides its service business into two types as follows:

1.1 Outsourced Contact Center and Customer Management Services

The company provides three main sites of contact center and customer management service
to support the service with over 2,200 seats. Moreover, this service can be possibly adjusted
and extended to support the service expansion of the customer’s service, contact center
service, and customer management service. These kinds of services are categorized into 4

types as detailed in the followings.

1)  Fully Outsourced Contact Center Management Service

The company provides services for the organization that need customers management
through contact center or customer management center without the high capital or costs
required in setting up their own systems, thus, reducing the organization’s operating costs by
using the Company’s Fully Outsourced Contact Center or Customer Management Center
services. Offering services which cover various business cycles for both short-term or long-
term projects, special marketing or promotional activities, telesales service, after sales

service, customer retention and loyalty, internal and external surveys, etc.

Included in the company’s Fully Outsourced Customer Management services, the Company
can provide services simply offering information to customers or a fully Outsourced contact
center where the Company provides all resources including the physical location, telephone
system, computer system, both Hardware and Software Applications, and customer relations

personnel (Customer Service Representative), supervisors and quality in spectors for all

14 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 56-1 ONE REPORT



2)

Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )
. ———

customers employing the Company’s Contact Center / Customer Management Center
services in various fields. Herein the Company employs systems that support a wide variety
of services in cluding service via telephone (Voice) or other channels (Non-Voice) such as
web chat, emails, social media and/or through Digital Services Platform (Self-Services) such
as mobile applications. By providing the aforementioned three channels, the Company has
developed an Omnichannel platform for providing continuous service and a seamless

experience for our customers by utilizing modern technology.

Outsourced Contact Center Facility

The company provides the outsourced contact center and equipment for customer

management that do not want to invest and utilize capital for the installation and development

of the system or facility. The Company provides a high standard and quality customer

relationship center without the customers investment. This alleviates the liabilities from the

investment costs and creates flexible services for efficient management. This service is

divided into the following 6 types :

(1) Outsourced contact center and customer management facility at the company’s site

(2) Outsourced contact center and customer management facility at the customer’s site

(3) Contact center on demand and hosted contact center

(4) Cloud contact center

(5) Social CRM Management

(6) The service combines modern technology, creating a Hybrid Contact Center Solution to
support business transformation and adapt to the rapidly changing environment and

technology.

Outsourced Customer Service Representative

The Company offers a full range of customer service management and recruitment services,
including the complete management and recruitment of customer relation staff, including
selection, training, monitoring, and quality control to continually maintain the standard of
services. The Company also provides personne Ireplacement and staff welfare to reduce
worries from customers on public relations and to ensure that the personnel provide services

to an international standard.
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Contact Center Maintenance Service

The Company provides the contact center maintenance service by experts and experienced
teams. To ensure all problems are resolved professionally and effectively without delay,

ensuring seamless business operations.

Turnkey Total Solutions

The Company offers consultation services, design, development and installation of Total
Turnkey Solutions for organizations that wish to invest in and install their own internal systems
utilizing cutting-edge technology by teams of specialist engineers in Contact Center /
Customer Management. The Company provides all the hardware, software, and applications
and integrates all systems to the requirements of each specific operation. Focusing on
ensuring the designs and requirements correspond with the nature of the customer’s

business operations and increase business efficiency and provide a high standard of service.

The Company has introduced new technology to respond to new service demands in the form
of Self-Services Platform to provide a wide variety of services. Developing the software and
designing Robotic Process Automation : RPA technology to create more efficient workflows

and reduce repetitive tasks to increase work efficiency and cost reductions.

Moreover, the company has developed products and services that are digital to customers

to meet the needs of customers in the digital age, such as:

® ContactOne for Telesales system a sales management system created to help achieve
defined business objectives. This system implements Dashboards and Reports to show
Real-time performance, and create effective Campaign management, Lead and
Knowledge Bases to support in making ContactOne a tool that helps our customers track

and achievesuccess.

® Chatbot Service : Itis an Al Chatbot Service that can support information service
Through Non-Voice Channel such as LINE, LiveChat, Facebook Messenger, Twitter Direct
Message, etc. If Bot cannot reply, Bot will send Customer Interaction. To the staff for

further service This is to reduce time and number of personnel.
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2. Marketing and Competition
(a) Competitive Strategy of the Company
Marketing Policy from the past year

Throughout the past year, the Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) epidemic still remains the main
factor both directly and indirectly affecting the Company’s operations and affecting the
Company’s customers as well. In turn, causing certain service projects of the Company to be
canceled or reduced. The epidemic has also created a drastic change in daily life and
consumer behavior leading to the New Normal with an increased dependence on technology.
Therefore, the Company has adapted its service by implementing technology and choosing
suitable partners to support the Company’s business and increase the efficiency, speed and
responsiveness of the Company’s service in responding to drastically changing consumer

behavior.

The Group has developed a Mobile Application to facilitate and increase operational

efficiency with the details as follows:

e Line Notification Message : Messaging Service or automatic notification via LINE instead
of sending SMS to create instantaneous communication with customers. To reach the
demands of customers swiftly.

e Chat bot on LINE and Facebook : Service to allow users access to information through
an application they’re familiar with to receive information and updates with the ability to
self-service 24 hours a day.

e Mobile application help desk : Mobile application to manage work processes for service
users to track operational processes in every step to control the service standards and
create customer satisfaction. A service that is suitable for repair requests or
disbursements of equipment or spare parts.

e Object detection : The Company developed the next level of objection detection system
through machine learning, to assist in the inspection or detection of products and
product sorting following the criteria from the photograph. To inspect stacked products,
comprehensive goods inspection in the warehouse, process photos via mobile phone
with accuracy. The inspection and detection system will reduce the costs, time and

manpower required to inspect products.
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Target customers

The service business continues to focus on creating a customer experience that will
create satisfaction in service. Therefore, the target customer group of the Company is
still a business group that wishes to manage customer relations and information services
and does not set up its customer service center. Therefore, the Company's customers
are government agencies, state enterprises, and private sectors. The Company's main
customers in the private sector are still airlines, banking groups, insurance companies

and retail groups

The company can categorize its customers into groups as follows:

2022 2023
Customer Group Million THB % Million %
THB

1. Outsourced Contact Centre and Customer 540.3 96.4 552.0 97.0
Management Services

Government and State Enterprises 162.8 29.0 188.0 33.1

Private Company 377.5 7.4 364.0 63.9

2. Fully Outsourced Contact Centre Management Service 20.1 3.6 17.2 3.0

Government and State Enterprises 13.7 24 9.3 1.6

Private Company 6.4 1.2 7.9 1.4

Total 560.4 | 100.0 569.2 100.0

Government and State Enterprises 176.5 31.5 197.3 34.7

Private Company 383.9 68.5 371.9 65.3

3. Others 60.3 | 100.0 3.3 100.0

Government and State Enterprises - - - -

Private Company 60.3 | 100.0 3.3 100.0

Others: ‘Others’ category are service contracts from the provision of marketing media services through an online gaming

platform and electronic sports (E-sports) competitions.

Pricing policy
Cost-Based, the Company will consider the following costs:
e Equipment Systems and Service Locations

The Company takes into account the usage patterns of the customers, the costs of systems

and/or equipment after contacting the sellers/vendors, the adequacy of the system and getting
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the right price to provide proper services to the customers. The Company also considers the
suitability of the service location, taking into consideration different locations and costs of rent
and whether the needs of the customers can be fulfilled. However, the Company is flexible with
the service location as the Contact Center service may be provided from any location with the

proper system and equipment.

Customer relations officers are essential in providing the service, as such, the Company will
consider the demands and needs of the customers which includes details such as the numbers
of calls received per day, service quality, characteristics of the personnel, the number of

personnel required, costs, wages and the welfare of all personnel.

e Management
The Company will review the cost of management in accordance with the Service Level
Agreement (SLA) and the standard of service quality. Services with high SLA and quality of
service are subject to higher costs, as it requires greater investment in the system and skills of

the customer relations officers with greater knowledge and experience.

® Related Software Development
The Company will develop software according to the customers’ needs or specifications, to
accomplish the various operations of different projects. The capability and requirements of
each type of software will result in vastly different prices, with more complex software
requirements costing more. The Company will review the varying costs in this portion, and

adjust according to the project.

The Company analyzes all operating costs to determine the optimal profit margin to compete

with the market prices and competition while offering competitive prices to customers.

Competition

Competition within the industry

Nowadays, the Contact Center business is faced with great changes with the advancement of
technology playing a role in the business operations, changing the traditional services which mainly
includes ‘Voice’ systems to Online Media Channels or Mobile Applications for increased efficiency.
These changes come from the changes in consumer behavior and in order to meet the needs of

customer, the Company offers digital products and services as follows:
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Cloud Contact Center A customer service center system that can provide its services from
anywhere, the Company offers fast installation, with low costs and high flexibility. Project seats
can be reduced or expanded at any time, offering convenience to customers.
Voicebot & Chatbot An automatic communication and conversation system via text and audio.
Utility to provide product and service information and interact with users. Utilities include
commerce support, buy/sale, coordination, making appointments, booking, changing
promotions or packages, etc. The Contact Center business can utilize this service to create a
streamlined service process, increase efficiency, lower costs and can be used through a variety
of channels such as Web Chat, Facebook Messenger, LINE, etc.
Omnichannel A system that connects data communication and information through all
communication channels with the customers, to provide a seamless and comprehensive
service, swiftly receiving customer information to create a seamless and continuous customer
experience.
VDO Contact Center A contact center service that creates a face-to-face experience, allowing
customers to communicate with Agents through video confidently, express more information
than solely through audio and allowing the visual aspect for Agents to see the details,
equipment, scene, items, or documents,e etc. in which the customers require assistance with.
Mobile Application Providing information services via mobile application, as itis now recognized
by the Company that communications through mobile applications are a huge channel to reach
customers and users. To provide customers with more information through different functions
of LINE Customer Connect for customers to call staff at their convenience without paying
telephone changes, provide transmission of data, photos, videos, location information, etc. to

customers via LINE ensuring a swift and fast experience for customers.

Competition trends and competitors in the current market

In the past, the competition within the Contact Center business were among the same operators
competing for the market share, all large companies with large investments in the contact center
system. However, nowadays the technological development has led to increasing easy to use
freeware leading to lower costs in conducting the contact center business. As a result, smaller

entrepreneurs and businesses are entering and competing in the business.
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Industry Trends and Future Competition

® Technology
Nowadays, customers demand digital services with modern technology in order to create
value for their businesses creating a chance in the Contact Center business to adapt with
the current business environment in order to provide efficient services and to keep in line
with consumer behavior and reduce operating costs in the long run. Enterprises that are
able to develop a wide range of digital products and services will have a competitive
advantage, but customers interested in such technology need to choose the technology
that fits their business needs. For example, businesses with complex information using
Artificial Intelligence (Al) to provide services are met with issues and difficulty in the
provision of information compared to traditional contact centers. However, businesses
which provide simple information such as the real estate business, Chatbots are a
convenient, fast and efficient solution to provide information and greatly reduce operation

process and costs.
® Partner

Running a self-sufficient business in this age of rapid and volatile technological changes
may result in the business lacking the time or ability to adapt. Therefore, business
cooperation with partners who have expertise in certain areas such as Contact Center
systems, specialized technologies, marketing channels, etc. that will aid the Company in
building credibility along with providing quality service and contributing to business
operations are essential. Moreover, this is another way to quickly expand business ventures

and support each other’s businesses.

® Service and service channels
Presently, Social Media communication has become an integral part of our lives. Therefore,
Contact Center operations that adjust their services through Social Media or Mobile
Application can reach most customer groups and directly recognize the needs of service
users by analyzing the behavior of users in order to continuously offer products and services

that are preferred and ideal for customers.

In addition, the Company can adjust its service offerings to suit each customer’s business
operations, by providing custom and tailor-made services to its customers and maintaining

the Company’s competitive advantage.
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® Price
Smaller enterprises which enter the Contact Center industry, tend to offer extremely
competitive prices, as these enterprises are new to the industry, and may lack the
experience or knowledge to be able to fully judge the costs of service. Thereby, only

focusing on providing lower prices to get customers.

® Service Quality
Contact Center operators must maintain the competitive advantage by developing
employee skills in being knowledgeable and fluent with technology. To offer quality services
through the development of modern technology operating alongside skilled employees
effectively. Existing operators dominating the market have competitive advantages in their
quality, technology, expertise and experience. Along with the certifications for product and

service standards according to the ISO standards, guaranteeing the quality of service.

® Service satisfaction measurement
The Service business focuses on creating customer satisfaction by creating a great
experience for customers (Customer Experience) in order to retain customers. Consumers
in this digital age expect immediate service and quick access to information, and the
operator’s ability to provide immediate information are essential to customer satisfaction.
Therefore, customers will choose contact center operators with clear criteria for measuring
customer satisfaction with proper tracking and being able to analyze customer satisfaction

results in order to improve service quality.

Procurement of products or services

Procurement of systems and equipment for Contact Center operations

The Company has the experience and expertise in managing and providing Contact Center
services to the international standards. Therefore, the Company is able to provide the Full
Service with cooperation from leading partner companies who specialize in specific technical

services, providing consultation and practical applications.

The Company considers the system, features, and properties in order to offer a service which
is customer-made for the needs of the customers, while comparing the prices/costs to present
to the customers for further consideration. The same applies when selecting a system provider.

The Company will purchase equipment from vendors offering quality and functionality at

22  ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 56-1 ONE REPORT



Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )
_ S —
reasonable prices. Although, the Company may order products in advance if such is that the

equipment or product is offered at a reduced or competitive price.

Location

The Company offers the locations for its services, such as providing Fully Outsourced Contact
Center Management Services at the Company’s site. The Company has arranged service
locations for rotation for different projects. Presently, the Company has 3 locations to support
its services, capable of supporting up to 2,200 seats. The customer may decide to use the

Company’s site or propose their own site or location for use as the service center.

Personnel Recruitment

Company personnel recruitment is divided into two parts, professional contact center
personnel and support personnel in other business operations. The recruitment method are

as follows:

e Professional Contact Center Personnel
The Company is continuously accepting applicants for the Customer Service
Representative position. All applicants are subject to basic skills tests and interviews with
the Company and customer to determine the qualifications and ability to meet the
requirements of each customer. After the recruitment of new personnel, they will be subject
to training on product-related information of the customer, service programs and processes,
understanding the Customer’s products and systems, etc. for a period of up to 15-45 days
depending on the nature of the service and the customers’ needs before fully working for

the customer.

e Support/Back Office Personnel
The Company recruits personnel through job listings on the company website, social media
and public relations within the organization, as well as, cooperation with educational

institutions for job recruitments.

Assets used in business
Main assets used by the Company and its subsidiaries to operate the business

o Fixed assets

Details of the company’s fixed assets used in important business operations can be

summarized as follows:
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Unit: Million
Net book value as of
Nature of
Type/Nature of assets December December Obligation
ownership
31, 2023 31, 2022
Land 140.00 - Owner None
Office supplies 13.80 11.33 Owner None
Tools and equipment 14.93 36.99 Owner None
Computer 9.32 8.97 Owner None
Vehicle - - - -
Tools and equipment during 20.44 5.02 Owner None
installation
Total 198.49 62.31

As of December 31, 2023, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The book

value before the deduction of accumulated depreciation of such assets amounted to approximately 1,125

million baht (2022: 897 million baht) and separate financial statement 1,012 million baht (2022 : 857 million

baht).

Intangible assets

As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company has intangible assets
such as the license fee for programs related to contact center services and computer
software with a net book value of 33.3 million baht and 50.6 million baht or accounted for

2.9% and 5.0% of the Company’s total assets, respectively.

Investment Policies in Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

The Company has the policy to invest in businesses with high growth prospects and
income, with appropriate level of risks for an appropriate return on investment. The approval
for such investment must comply with the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board, Re: Rules on Entering into Material Transactions Deemed as Acquisition or Disposal
of Assets (including its amendment) and the Notification of the Board of Governors of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand Re:Disclosure of Information and Other Acts of Listed
Companies Concerning the Acquisition or Disposition of Assets B.E. 2547 (2004) (including
its amendment) (collectively, the “Notifications on Acquisition or Disposition of Assets”), in

which the Company will determine the management policies, as well as sending
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representatives to join as directors in proportion to the shares held and to attend meetings
as shareholders. The Company’s representative has to vote at the meeting under the

guidelines or directions by the Board of Directors.

e Information on Appraised Assets and Appraisal Price

The Company and the subsidiaries do not have any asset appraisals during the year 2023.

However, details about “Assets used in business” see at “Attachment 4”.

5. Projects that have not been delivered

-None-

1.3 Shareholding Structure of the Group

1.3.1 Shareholding Structure of the Group

Peer

for you

.
I I I
.r = Fs ‘( -
)
... :
fosmae INNO HUB
wEIh dul di 9
’ Y .
99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 100%

Note: One to One (Cambodia) Company Limited (Currently in the process of business closure) According to the Board of Directors’

Meeting No. 13/2021 held on November 10, 2021, it was approved to close the business.

CCS Corbon Clear Solution Company Limited (Currently in the process of business closure) According to the Board of Directors'

Meeting No. 5/2024 held on February 29, 2024, it was approved to close the business.
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General Information of the subsidiary

All shares held by
Capital Ordinary share the company
No. Company name Business type
registered issued (shares) Shares %
amount
1. One to One Professional Company Provide personnel 30.0 3,000,000 2,999,997 99.99
Limited management consultation Million
99/26 Moo. 4 Software Park 9th Floor services, personnel Baht
Chaengwattana Rd. Klongklue, Pakkred, recruitment, call center and
Nonthaburi 11120 customer relations business,
Tel. 0-2685-0000 cleaning service, debt
collection business and training
institutions
2. Innohub Company Limited Provide research services, 50.0 5,000,000 499,997 99.99
99/26 Moo. 4 Software Park 9th Floor software development and Million
Chaengwattana Rd. Klongklue, Pakkred, | digital innovation development Baht
Nonthaburi 11120 services
Tel. 0-2685-0000
3. One to One (Cambodia) Provide call center and 600,000 120,000 120,000 100
18-E4, 4th floor, The Icon Professional customers relations services (USD)
Building, 216, Norodom Blvd., Tonle and installation of total turnkey
Bassac, Chamkarmorn, Phnom Penh, services
Kingdom of Cambodia Service in Cambodia
(In the process of closing down the
business)
4. EV Click Company Limited Provides business in importing, 10.0 100,000 99,998 99.99
99/26 Moo. 4 Software Park 9th Floor manufacturing, assembling and Million
Chaengwattana Rd. Klongklue, Pakkred, | sale of electronic motorcycles Baht
Nonthaburi 11120 and electric vehicle parts.
Tel. 0-2685-0000
5. CCS Corbon Clear Solution Company Conducting business related to 5.0 50,000 49,998 99.99
Limited buying, selling or transferring Million
99/26 Moo. 4 Software Park 9th Floor rights in carbon credits Baht
Chaengwattana Rd. Klongklue, Pakkred,
Nonthaburi 11120
Tel. 0-2685-0000
(In the process of closing down the
business)
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1.3.2 Persons who may have conflicts of interest holding shares in subsidiaries or associated companies in
aggregate with more than 10 percent of the number of shares with voting rights

-None-

1.3.3 Relationship with major shareholders

-None-

1.3.4 Shareholders

The list of the first 10 major shareholders of the Company as of March 11, 2024, are as follows:

Shareholding
No. Shareholders Share amount )shares(
(Percent)
1. Major shareholders " 140,264,799 17.69
- Mr. Boon-aue Chitthanom 70,364,799 8.87
- Mr. Nattapong Seetavorarat 52,000,000 6.56
- Mr. Virat Anurakpuitti 17,200,000 2.17
- Ms. Kanokrat Wongpapairoj 700,000 0.09
2. Thai NVDR Company Limited 20,181,312 2.55
3. Mr. Apisit Honglawan 15,851,000 2.00
4. Mr. Pinyo Rukaphanmethee 13,700,000 1.73
5. Mr. Nopporn Achavakulthep 12,650,000 1.60
6. Mr. Chaiwat Rawichutiwan 11,231,000 1.42
7. Mr. Wichai Kangwanchokchai 10,941,500 1.38
8. Mr. Nopporn Witoonchart 10,000,000 1.26
9. Ms. Sasithorn Phong-on 9,480,300 1.20
10. Ms. Bowonrat Pipatchalalai 8,188,000 1.04
10 Major shareholders 252,487,911 31.87
Minority shareholder 540,748,598 68.13
Total 793,236,509 100.00
Note: Information from Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. as of March 11, 2024.
" Mr. Boon-aue Chitthanom, Mr. Nattapong Seetavorarat, Mr. Virat Anurakpuitti and Ms. Kanokrat Wongpapairoj as a group
acting in concert according to the announcement with the subject defining a relationship or behaviour that characterizes an
action with another person and compliance with Section 246 and Section 247.
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Registered Capital/Paid-up Capital/No. of Shares
The company has a registered capital of 2,946,016,590.00 baht, divided into 1,054,903,176 ordinary shares with
a par value of 1 baht per share. Paid-up Registered Capital 1,054,903,176.00 baht. Listed on the Market for

Alternative Investment (MAI) on May 15, 2014.

Issuance of other securities

The Company has issued warrants OTO-W1 (PEER-W1) in the amount not exceeding 280,000,000 units to the
existing shareholders of the company. According to shareholding proportion (Rights Offering) free of charge at
the allocation ratio of 2 existing ordinary shares to 1 unit of warrants OTO-W1, according to the resolution of the
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2021, held on September 20, 2021, with the details of

warrants OTO-W1 in summary as follows:

Number of Warrants 279,998,669 Units

Number of Shares That Can Be Exercised 279,998,669 Shares

Warrant Allocation Allocated to the existing shareholders of the company in

proportion to their respective shareholdings (Rights Offering) in
the ratio of 2 existing ordinary shares per 1 unit of OTO-W1
warrants according to the list of shareholders entitled to be
allocated OTO-W1 Warrants (Record Date) as of November 22,
2021.

Exercise of Rights Under Warrants

1. Schedule for the purchase of newly issued ordinary shares
Warrant holders of OTO-W1 can exercise their rights under the warrants 2 times on the date that the OTO-
W1 warrants expire in 1 year and 6 months, which is on May 31, 2023, and the maturity date of the warrants
which is 3 years from the date of issuance of the warrants, which falls on November 29, 2024 (As November
30, 2024 falls on Saturday, a holiday).
® The number of common shares resulting from the first exercise of conversion rights is 233,236,514
units.

® The number of warrants that have not been exercised is 46,762,155 units.
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2. Exercise of rights to purchase newly issued ordinary shares
Holders of OTO-W1 Warrants can exercise their rights to purchase all or part of the ordinary shares.
Remaining OTO-W1 warrants that are not exercised within the exercise date, the Company will assume that
the OTO-W warrant holders do not wish to exercise the right under the said OTO-W1 warrant and it shall be

deemed that the OTO-W1 warrant is invalid without exercise.

3. Period for notifying the intention to exercise the right
Warrant holders OTO-W1 who wish to exercise the right to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares must
notify the intention to the company between 08.30 a.m. and 4.00 p.m. on every business day of the
Company within 5 business days prior to each exercise date. If the exercise date falls on the Company’s
holiday such exercise date shall be postponed to the last business day before the exercise date. Except
for the last exercise data, warrant holders OTO-W1 must express their intention to exercise their rights not

less than 15 days before the last exercise date.

1.6 Dividend policy
Company Policy

The Company policy is to pay dividends to shareholders at the rate of not less than 50% of the Company’s net
profit after the deduction of all reserves. All types as stipulated in the Company’s Articles of Association and by
Law. However, dividend payment will be dependent on the investment plans and the expansion of the company’s
business, the necessities and after taking into consideration the sustainability of the Company.

In addition, the consideration of dividend payment from profits arising from the disposal of investments or fixed
assets incurred in the Company or its subsidiaries is at the discretion of the management and the Board of
Directors. Taking into account the Company’s investment plans and the expansion of the company’s business, the

necessities and after taking into consideration the sustainability of the Company.

Subsidiary Policy
The dividend payment policy of the subsidiary is at the discretion of the management and the Board of Directors
after taking into consideration the Company’s investment and business expansion plans. Including necessities

and future planning adhering to and complying with the same policy as the Company.
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2. Risk Management
2.1 Policy & Risk Management Plan

The Company recognizes that efficient and effective risk management is the basis for good corporate
governance. It is also an essential part of the successful implementation of strategic plans to achieve the company's
established business objectives. However, the company needs to seek opportunities and is associated with a certain
level of risk. Risk is not necessarily a negative factor. But it often brings beneficial opportunities and create value for
the company. The company has established a risk management framework. By applying principles and methods
according to the COSO ERM Framework and ISO 31000 guidelines. To manage risks to an acceptable level and
regularly monitor risk management both at the executive level and at the operator level of the company To jointly
assess risks/problems, obstacles, and uncertainties that may affect operations. Events that may cause the company
to lose business opportunities Risks that may arise from factors both inside and outside the company.

In this regard, the Company has established a policy for risk management and are regularly reviewed to keep
up with the changing economic and political situations. The policy for managing risks has included measures in the
prevention and management of risks. The Risk Management Committee has oversight and monitoring as follows:

1. Consider the risk management plan and the organizational risk that the management has assessed and rated
the risk level. Including considering the impact to be at an acceptable level or reduce the likelihood that it will
happen in the future. To ensure that the risk management plan is consistent with the Company's business
plans and goals.

2. Follow up and review the implementation of the risk management plan set by the management. This ensures
that the company has a systematic and efficient risk management.

3. Review the Risk Management Committee Charter to ensure that it is appropriately consistent with the current

situation.

Risk Management Committee is certain that the company is continuous and systematic risk management
including proceeding with caution, prudence and efficiency. This will result in the company's business operations
achieve the goals.

Risk Management Process

The company has risk management in place. To reduce the impacts and opportunities that may cause such
risks. Overall risk management is followed up and assess risks at least 2 times a year to ensure that executives have
appropriate risk management tools and processes. Which is carried out efficiently and effectively The company's risk
management process has 5 steps as follows:

1.  Define the criteria for risk assessment and acceptable risk, along with appropriate risk management measures.

2. Assess risks.
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Evaluate the current risk management and the risk levels.

Manage the risks.

Track and review.

2.2 Risk factors for the company's business operations

2.2.1 Risks to the company's business operations

1. Strategic Risk

Image and reputation risks.

The company places great importance on the security of both the company's and customers'
information. There is a system to prevent leakage of important information to the outside as well
as protection of outside access to the company's information system. Including the designation
of a backup storage source so that the company can continue to operate In the case that the
main data storage source is damaged and since 2020. The company has updated the entire
information technology safety policy to be in line with ISO/IEC 27001:2013standards to control
usage. Suspend the use of various portable data storage media. To prevent information
leakage in the information system including being able to process various operations quickly
in order to achieve the target and in 2023 the company will have no reputational or intellectual
property risk.

Risk from changes in technology

Current changes in technology have caused consumer behavior to change even more towards
the digital era. And there is a greater demand for non-voice or self-service services

If the company is unable to adjust its services to accommodate technology and changes in
consumer behavior, it may affect the service to not meet needs and there is a risk of losing
customers.

Therefore, the company has improved its services to meet the needs of consumers by
emphasizing services that are Non-Voice and communication via social media and software
development to support changes in various technologies according to customer needs. The
company has organized training to develop employees to be able to provide both Voice & Non-
Voice Service efficiently and can create a continuous impression of service to customers
Risk from economic competition

The company may be at risk from regional competition by competitors who are large companies
in neighboring countries or other countries may come to open the market in Thailand. This

causes more competitors and people may be lost in the business to competitors it will cause
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the company to have higher costs for personnel training and development and may have salary
expenses and higher compensation for employees. The company believes in providing
services that are of internationally accepted standards. Able to respond to customer needs
very well, which is an extremely important factor that makes customers aware of the benefits
they receive. The company provides services that are of an internationally accepted standard.
Including a variety of services to diversify risk. A variety of services to spread risk. This gives
the company the ability to compete and have the ability to make profits in the changing

economic conditions.

2. Operational Risk
® Risk from the entry and exit rate of personnel with specialized skills and experience

Business operations of the company relying on personnel with communication skills Service
work and managing many interpersonal relationships. In addition to providing services to
customers in some projects Customer relations officer it will require specialized skills and
knowledge. The company places importance on personnel development through training to
continually increase their skills. The company provides training for personnel before actual
work. To be able to provide customer service according to operating standards Therefore, the
loss of experienced personnel. Those abilities and skills are lost for whatever reason. It may
have an impact on the manpower to provide services. This causes the company to have high
personnel management costs. In addition, the company must take time to develop new
personnel to be able to replace old personnel who resign.

The company has reviewed and adjusted the organizational structure according to the situation
so that the company can operate efficiently. It also has a replacement system. In the event that
a key employee is unavailable to work, a replacement employee will be available immediately
to reduce problems in work that may occur and there are measures to reduce the risk of losing
important personnel by planning for reserve personnel to support employee turnover so as not
to affect business operations. Including setting wages, compensation and benefits at a level
that is competitive with the market appropriately. Career growth is planned to create motivation
to work and reduce the risk of employee turnover.

® Risk from relying on personnel in important positions

The Company's business operations require knowledge, abilities, and expertise and the
experience of personnel, especially senior management officials. If the company is unable to

retain such important personnel or being unable to recruit someone with the same level of
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qualifications as senior management officials to replace this important personnel position may
affect business operations.
The company has therefore prepared a succession plan that covers senior management
positions including following up on the progress of the said succession plan to ensure that the
company has knowledgeable executives, abilities and experience at able to inherit important

positions in the future.

Risk from contract violation

The company's main income comes from the Outsourced Contact Center Services business
and provides design, development, and installation of complete customer service center
systems, which are operated under contractual agreements made with contractual parties. This
may cause the company or the contracting party to be unable to comply with the agreement,
causing damage or being unable to proceed as planned, such as late delivery of work, causing
the company to be fined or have increased expenses from that must comply with the contract,
etc.

The company therefore has management guidelines. Require contract review. The legal
department controls and follows up on things that do not comply with contract requirements.
Report to the management for acknowledgment. There is a project Kick Off with relevant
agencies before the contract starts to define roles Responsibilities and create a common
understanding.

Risk from the conditions of sales and service contracts

When preparing a commercial contract, there is a possibility that the parties will have
inconsistent opinions on the terms of the contract. This caused the need to amend the
conditions of the contract until both parties were satisfied. This may cause delays in the
delivery of trades and services. Payment of purchases and services especially for medium to
large organizations, which is the main customer group of the company. There are often
inconsistent contract terms. The company has management methods to reduce risks. The
management team will have legal advisors who can provide legal advice. In addition, the
conditions of the contract have been studied and reviewed to be consistent with the needs of
both buyers and sellers in accordance with international principles. So that the contract is
standardized and can be referenced and accepted.

Risk from climate change

Risks arising from changes in the environment and various factors in business. It is a risk that

exists but remains uncertain and cannot yet clearly assess the impact that this may have on
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the Company's operations in the future. It tends to change continuously. It may affect business
operations of the company significantly. Negative impacts or create another business
opportunity in the future. The company regularly follows up on changes in the business
environment.
Over the next 2-5 years, there may be additional regulations or investor pressure arising from
the regulations. Environmental, Social, and Corporate Governance (ESG). There are more
investors who will push the business. Solve ESG issues in a concrete and transparent manner.
They are looking for companies that integrate ESG goals into their core business operations
and pay attention to issues related to employees, communities, the local area, and the world.
These people are moving towards transparency in the digital age. And such investors will invest
more in companies that align with their values. Although additional ESG requirements will bring
challenges to companies in the future, but this risk trend will change more slowly than other
risks. That is changing rapidly. In addition, the company adheres to operating guidelines in
accordance with the principles of sustainable development. Thus giving the company an
opportunity for risk management proactively and the company has guidelines to increase risk
management activities related to this matter which can attract new investors and ultimately
reduce the cost of capital.

Investment risk

As the company has expanded investment into new businesses that have good growth trends

include:

o Strategic Investment includes investment in tangible assets and intangible assets Investing
in equity instruments in businesses that have Products or services various platforms that
promotes or supports adding value to the company

o Financial Investment includes financial liquidity management to invest in equity instruments

or other financial instruments, etc.

The above investment, this causes the company to face the risk of returns from investments
that may not be as expected, such as losses from business operations of the businesses in
which the company invests and fluctuations in market prices of financial assets. However, the
Board of Directors has established an investment policy for the investment committee Adhere
to investment management practices to make those involved aware of their duties and
responsibility for managing work with prudence and caution, having a tracking system and

being able to verify it to ensure that the investment follows the established procedures.
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3. Compliance Risk

From the Personal Data Protection Act 2019 (PDPA) comes into effect on June 1, 2022, making
data owners more aware of privacy matters by every organization that collects data or discloses
personal information. There must be understanding in order not to cause damage in such matters.
The company is extremely aware of the risks associated with personal information. Therefore,
preparations have been made to ensure that the company's operations are in accordance with
Such Act. By encouraging employees to study information and attend training to provide
employees with knowledge and understanding. If the personal data controller and personnel in the
organization have knowledge and understanding and follow the data security measures according
to the PDPA, the risk of data being breached will be reduced. It builds trust in the organization for
users very well and is considered an important code of ethics for the company in terms of good

corporate governance

4. Financial Risk

® Risk from interest rate fluctuations
Interest rate fluctuations are one of the risk factors that may affect the financial position and
operating results because at present the Company has provided loans to subsidiaries in order
to invest money. To support business expansion which if there is a fluctuation in interest rates it
will cause the company to receive interest rates that are lower than expected.

® Risk from customer default on debt payments
Failure to collect payment from customers within the specified period. It is one of the risk factors
that may affect the financial position and operating results. The company has therefore laid
down guidelines for closely following up on payment collection requests from customers. For

some new customers, their creditworthiness and financial status should also be assessed.

5. Emerging Risks

New risks are risks arising from changes in the environment and various factors in business
operations. This may be a new risk or an existing risk that is still uncertain and cannot yet clearly
assess the impact that this may have on the Company's operations in the future. This may
significantly affect the Company's business operations. Either it has a negative impact or it creates
another business opportunity in the future, such as
® Risk from the impact of COVID-19 disease

The COVID-19 outbreak continues to have a global impact on the economy, environment, and

society, and there are likely to be protracted uncertainties. Although there has been progress
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in getting the vaccine and economic stimulus measures to reduce the impact but because
there may be a new outbreak and/or the disease will intensify. While there is still no medicine
or vaccine to cure such diseases, there will be an impact on various aspects of business, such
as the welfare of employees. And financial stability may affect both directly and indirectly.
The company has prepared an annual emergency response plan, established a backup site
for operations (DR site), and the company has previously organized the Work Anywhere project
for agent employees to work off-site. Therefore, the company is able to manage events that
occur in a timely manner. The company has established measures to prevent the spread of
COVID-19 and has established guidelines for Back Office employees to be able to work from
home to reduce the spread of disease and consider the safety of employees. In addition, the
company has created a business continuity plan (BCP) and working group to reduce the impact
in the event of a severe outbreak. The employee is unable to perform duties at the company
office but still able to provide continuous service to customers and operations within the

company continue to operate efficiently.

2.2.2 Risks to securities holders' investments

1. Risk from the company's ability to pay dividends
The company has a policy of paying dividends of not less than 50 percent of net profits according
to the consolidated financial statements. After deducting all types of reserves as specified in the
company's regulations. However, the ability to pay dividends it does not primarily depend on the
operating results of the company, but also depends on other factors such as investment budget and
capital reserves for business expansion, loan repayment cash flow from operations, etc. Therefore,
security holders may be at risk that the company will pay dividends at a lower rate than expected.

2. Risk from uncertainty of expected returns
Securities holders have expectations from the returns they receive from capital gains in securities
prices. The price of securities may go up or down. This depends on many factors beyond the control
of the company, such as economic conditions, epidemics, war, political problems both domestically

and abroad, etc.

2.2.3 Risks from investing in foreign securities
Currently, the company does not invest in any foreign securities. Therefore, the company does not

have any risk in this area.
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3. Sustainable Business Development

3.1 Sustainable Development Policies and Goals

One To One Contacts Public Company Limited places great importance on running the business with a deep
sense of social responsibility, responsibility to the environment and upholding good corporate governance
for the sustainability of the business and society as a whole. Moreover, in additional to the ongoing CSR
activities such as, promoting innovation, charity events and donations, the Company has made a genuine
effort and proceeded to establish a working group on social and environmental responsibility for the
sustainability of the business. The Board of Directors approved to establish the Sustainability Development
Committee (SD Committee), the quorum consists of directors, company executives and/or qualified
candidates to define policies and actions plans for sustainable development that are consistent with the
Company’s operations with regard to the economic, society and the environment. As well as, promoting and
supporting the activities of the Company, including supervising, reviewing and monitoring the operations,
assessing the effectiveness of policy implementation and reporting the results to the Board of Directors.
Furthermore, in order to achieve sustainable business development, the Board of Directors has approved
sustainable development policies to act as guidelines for the Board of Directors, company executives and

employees to adhere.
Sustainable Development Policies

1) Conduct business on the basis of good cooperate governance, being socially and environmentally
responsible, and conduct activities related to sustainable development by taking into account the
benefits to all stakeholders.

2) Create a corporate culture that encourages all employees to be conscious of their work decisions,
a volunteer spirit and the willingness to devote the effort and time for the benefits of the community.

3) Promote and educate company employees to be knowledgeable on the guidelines for sustainable
development and being socially and environmentally responsible.

4) Encourage and promote projects and activities related to sustainable development, environmental

and social responsibility.

Company development guidelines
1. Choose products that are environmentally friendly and reused.
2. Campaign to create awareness of energy saving and join in environmental conservation

3. Cooperate with stakeholders in taking care of safety in the organization.
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In 2023, the company was selected to be on the list of sustainable stocks or SET ESG Ratings Level

A, which reflects the importance of commitment to sustainable business development. Taking into account

society, the environment and corporate governance (ESG), taking into account all stakeholders.

3.2 Managing the impacts and effects on stakeholders in the business value chain (Value Chain)

The company realizes that business operations and various operational activities of the organization

may cause both positive and negative impacts to all stakeholders. Therefore, it has developed a

stakeholder participation policy. To determine guidelines for dealing with stakeholders. To help with

management according to the principles of good corporate governance. Sustainable development

issues are considered according to their level of significance to take appropriate action by building

relationships with key stakeholders taking into account 7 main groups of stakeholders: employees,

shareholders, customers, and business partners. Government agencies Couples/competitors and

community and society

Stakeholder Interesting point Participation key operations
Customers Develop contemporary product and » Survey customer * Deliver quality

services of high quality with a fair price satisfaction (Client products and
to meet the diverse demands of the Satisfaction Survey) services.
consumer, as well as, strengthen and annually. To use the * There is an after-
maintain a positive relationship results obtained to sales assessment.
between the Company and customers. improve the quality of

service to be more

efficient.

« Complaints and other

communication

channels with customer

groups such as

websites, electronic

letters, telephone calls,

letters, Social Media,

and others

Employees Respect the personal rights of » Corporate Engagement | « Satisfaction survey 2

employees, fair employment Survey times/year
practices, develop employees’
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Stakeholder Interesting point Participation key operations
knowledge and skills, provision of in- * There is a welfare * There is a personnel
house and external training and committee in the management system.
education. Look after the workplace. * There is a program
occupational safety, health and * Provide a to develop the
hygiene of the employees and communication channel potential of employees
provide appropriate welfare. between the Company and leaders.

and employees. * Environmental
* Internal Communication | management and
through various channels. | safety standards are
« Various activities of the in place.
company * Have appropriate
welfare.
» Skip Level Meeting
Shareholders | Conduct business in accordance with | « Annual General Meeting | « High return
the principles of good corporate of Shareholders « Stable, worth
governance and equitable treatment » Opportunity for investing
for the highest benefits of shareholders to nominate
shareholders. candidates for
directorship. and to
propose agendas for the
annual shareholders'
meeting
» Opening a variety of
communication channels,
including the Company's
website. E-mail, telephone,
etc.
Trade Systematically provide goods and | * Survey of perspectives, » Assess suppliers
Partners opinions, expectations of

services with the highest standards
based on trading conditions, the

contract and business ethics.

representatives of

suppliers and contractors.

once a year.
» Supply Chain

Management
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Stakeholder

Interesting point

Participation

key operations

* Annual Supplier
Assessment
» Opinion polls Partner

Satisfactio

Competitors

Conduct all business affairs adhering
to fair competition rules and promote

free trade.

* Meeting together
* Increase variety of
products and services.

taking into account the

quality

* Adhere to business

ethics.

Society and

Communities

Provide support, build and strengthen
relationships, cooperate in  sustainable
community development. Cultivate an
ethical conscience among the employees
of the company to realize the responsibility

to the society and community through

communication and internal activities.

» Conducting business with
safety and care for the
environment.

» Communication to create
understanding of the
company's operations to the
community.

» Promoting careers,
generating income and
reducing expenditures for the
community.

* Regularly supporting
activities with the community.

« Efficient use of resources.

* Operate according to
social and environmental
standards.

+ Organize activities with
society, communities

* Operations that do not
affect the community

society.

Government
agencies and
related

agencies

Compliance with rules, regulations,
laws, including cooperation and
support for projects or activities of
government agencies and comply with
the policy of good corporate
governance and ethics, with accurate

disclosure, submission and reporting.

» Support and respond to
government policies.

* Follow up on policies,
rules, regulations and
requirements. Related

* Report results as

required by law in full.

* Operate according
to business ethics.
and principles of good
corporate governance
* There is a risk
management system.
 Implementation of

standards in full.
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Stakeholder Interesting point Participation key operations

* Declaration of
intention to join the
Coalition Against
Corruption (CAC)

project.

Materiality Assessment

The company has implemented a process to assess key sustainability issues. To be able to identify important
issues of the business. This is a factor in competition and creating value throughout the value chain in the long term.
Respond to the company's stakeholders it is an important part in driving sustainable business. The main issues cover

corporate governance, society, community and environment.

Key Steps in the Materiality Assessment Process

1. Stakeholder Identification
Materiality Identification
Materiality Prioritization

Validation

o M N

Review and Continuous Improvement

Stakeholder Engagement & Materiality Analysis

The process of identifying key issues affecting the company's business operations. which is aware of business risks
and opportunities Covers all groups of stakeholders As well as considering internal and external factors that affect
the business at various levels, including: Low, medium and high levels. The identification of issues will be determined
based on the interests of stakeholders. Sustainability issues that industry groups around the world care about and

global sustainability trends from leading international sustainability agencies, such as GRI reporting principles

Creating balance in 3 dimensions
- Job creation/career creation
- Building partnerships with the community
- Good corporate governance Risk management
- Creating success for stakeholders

- Service quality management
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- Changes in wage rates and labor shortage

- Supply chain management
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In 2023, the company will use the results from the process of Materiality Identification Process Review,

consider and evaluate to prioritize 12 sustainability issues, taking into account their impact on business
operations and influence on stakeholder decisions. The important issues obtained from questioning stakeholders
include: Customers, employees, business partners, etc. The assessment can divide the impact on business

operations and stakeholders into 3 levels, consisting of 1. Low level, 2. Medium level, 3. High level.

Economic
1. Good corporate governance risk management
Creating Success for Stakeholders

Service Quality Management

2
3
4. Wage rate change and labor shortages
5.  Supply Chain Management

6. Technological changes and stability of the network system
7

Data security Change technology

Social

8. Service potential development and management
9. Health and safety in the work environment

10. Support for job creation / career building

11. relationship building and cooperation with the community
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-

Environmental

12. Energy and resource management

High

IGIES]
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Significance to Stakeholders
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3.3  Environmental Sustainability Management
3.31 Environmental Policies and Practices
The Company is aware of its duties and responsibilities towards the environment. Therefore, the
policy promotes knowledge and training employees on the environment. Furthermore, to cultivate all
employees to be mindful of their commitment to the environment in their performance of duties at all
times as follows:
1) The company has the campaign to raise awareness of the environment and natural
resources. Through activities in which employees are continually involved
2) The company supports environmental conservation in society and various organizations.
Including the dissemination of environmental information. To create an image and a good
understanding of the company's environmental management
3) The company has a policy to instill environmental responsibility among employees. To
understand the importance of taking care of the environment by continuously training
employees on the environment. For the environmental management system to operate
efficiently
4) Promote resource utilization activities and take care of nature and conservation of natural

resources continuously
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5) Conduct business concerning environmental conservation. And management standards
regarding safety, including compliance with the requirements of the law or regulations
Related the Company has policies to promote knowledge and training for employees within
the company on environmental issues to instill the conscience and performance of duties

adhering to values in environmental responsibility.

Environmental Action Performance

The company places importance on the environment. Therefore, there is a campaign and awareness
building for employees to be aware of using resources wisely and provide maximum benefit The
company has set long-term quantitative targets to reduce the impact of climate change and
greenhouse gases and help reduce business costs. In 2023, the company sets quantitative targets
for its energy and resource operations. In quantitative terms, use should be reduced by 10 percent
comparedto 2022 (base year) in the amount of direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope

1, 2, and 3). Energy and resource performance results include:

Long-Term Goals 2027 (5 years)

o G Gas Emisshons from elactr
at 250,000 kgCo2

2 & » Greenhouse Gas Emissions from water
® Reduce electricity consumpltion by 10% recured by 5,000 kgC02

® Reduce water congumption by 10% Greenhouse Bus Emissions from paper

® Reduce paper usage by 10% teduced by 500 kyCo2
® Feduce waste by 10% * Greenhouse Gas Emissions from garbuge
1 (wasta) reducnd by 5.000 kgCo2

o Ermissions
Feauction Target

- 02027

o

e

® Reduce electricilty consumption
by 500,000 kilowatts
® Reduce cumulative wader consumption
by 10,000 cubic meters
® Reduce paper usage by 500 kilograms
|k ® Reduce garbage (waste) by 1,500 kilograms  J}/

44 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 56-1 ONE REPORT



Peer For You Public Company Limited | Foermer: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited |

o

® FElectricity use

In 2023, it was found that the company had electricity consumption of 1,030,153 Kilowatt, with the amount
of use increasing from 2022 by 33.4 percent, which was not in line with the set target. The cause is from
employees who used to WFH due to the COVID situation. Back to work almost 100 % and the company

collects additional statistics from more operating rental offices.

(kWh) Electricity use between 2019 - 2023
1,500,000
1,030,153
1,000,000
i 771,947
500,000 405,494 354,194 I I
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

® \Water Consumption

In 2023, it was found that the company had tap water consumption of 302 kilowatts, with the amount of use
decreasing from 2022 by 90.50 percent, which was caused by the office building renting out the head office space.

Water costs are calculated in the annual rental rate. As a result, the amount of water used decreases.

(m?) Water use between 2019 - 2023
15,000
9,821
10,000 9,133
5,072
5,000 3,192
m -
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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® Disposal of Food Waste
In 2023, it was found that the company had 218,108 kilograms of wet garbage, food scraps, and waste,
with the amount of disposal decreasing from 2022 by 31.30 percent, expected from the Covid-19 situation having

eased. As a result, employees did not bring food to eat in the office.

(kg) Amount of waste between 2019 - 2023
400,000
302,843
300,000
239,023 218,108

200,000
100,000

9,094 8,578

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

® Paper Usage A4
In 2023, it was found that the company used A4 paper in the amount of 1,561 kilograms, with the amount of

use increasing from 2022 by 3.70 percent, which slightly exceeded the set target.

(kg) Amount of paper between 2019 - 2023

1,580
1,561

1,560

1,540 1,525

1,500

1,480

1,460
2021 2022 2023
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Summary of overall results of energy and resource operations To reduce environmental impacts from the
use of electricity, tap water, wet garbage from food scraps (waste) and A4 paper, even though the results of
greenhouse gas emissions have not yet fully met the target. But the company is still committed to continuing its
operations. In 2023, the organization's carbon footprint totaled 1,071,563 kilograms of carbon dioxide equivalent
(kgCO2e), compared to the previous year, a decrease of 21.52 percent, and there were also activities to earn carbon

credits. Amount of 133,105 tons carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2eq)

Climate management and greenhouse gas management

The company gives importance to various activities in the value chain that affects climate and greenhouse
gases throughout the work process within the organization and support customer operations. There is a campaign
and education for employees and related stakeholders to understand, be aware of, and see the impacts that occur
from carbon dioxide. In 202 3, the company has organized a project to help reduce the amount of greenhouse gas

emissions. The project is carried out as follows:

Care the Bear Project
The company has joined the Care the Bear project with the Stock Exchange of
Thailand. To help reduce environmental problems which is violent and has a great impact

on Thailand. Which affects both the economy, society and the environment. The company

is aware of the importance and therefore brings corporate activities to participate by

having online meetings, reducing travel to help greatly reduce greenhouse gas ﬁj“ﬁgf
. ) ) CARE THE BEAR
emissions. In 2023, the company was able to reduce its carbon footprint by 5,060.87 Chiengs the Climste Change
o &
kilograms of carbon dioxide equivalent. Or equivalent to planting a total of 568 trees. AO-Lan-9e%

The LESS project changes light bulbs from fluorescent bulbs to LED bulbs.
In 2023, the company began gradually changing light bulbs from fluorescent to LED bulbs from July. Until
December 2023, a total of 77 bulbs, before changing the bulbs to fluorescent ones. The amount of greenhouse gas

emissions is approximately 22.0 KgCoZ2e /Mths. After changing to LED light bulbs, the amount of greenhouse gas

emissions will be approximately 9.1 KgCo2e /Mths, reducing emissions by approximately 12.9 KgCo2e/Mths.
P -
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Alfresco (Cost Savings) Project

The company uses the Alfresco operating system in its work process to reduce steps and document

delivery. To reduce costs and resources Reduce environmental problems. In 2023, 20,817 sheets of paper can be

used and costs reduced by 753,421 baht.

34
3.4.1

Sustainability Management in Social Dimensions

Social Policies and Guidelines

Responsibility towards society, the community and public

The Company is aware that with the support from the community and society, business grows
stronger. Therefore, the Company supports the improvement in quality of life, and developing
prosperity for the community and society. Implementing development and operating under the

scope and guidelines as follows:

The Company operates its business strictly adhering to the 9 principles within the Sustainability
Development Policies. As a result, the Company and its subsidiaries were not investigated or
in the process of being investigated by any relevant authorities within the past year, and have

not violated any rules and regulations under any circumstances.

Social participation through financial support or provision of goods for activities that
maintain good traditions and culture.

Provide support for educational activities and funds, development of professional
knowledge, athletic ability, and supporting those who are underprivileged.

Provide support and assistance to the society and communities, as well as, regularly
helping victims of various disasters.

Building good relationship with both public and private organizations, community leaders
at various levels to strengthen ties and coordinate cooperation in sustainable and concrete
community development.

Donation of buildings, materials, equipment, and donations of funds to take care
communities’ living conditions and safety.

Cultivate awareness among employees in the organization on social responsibility to the

community and environment through media and internal activities on a continuous basis.
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Operational Targets

Performance 2022

Long-term targets by 2027

Average score of customer satisfaction
on after-sales service: no less than 90

percent

Customer satisfaction At the level of 90
percent and has taken the opinions and
suggestions of customers to develop and

improve to meet further needs.

Customer satisfaction is not less than 90
percent and meet the needs of

customers as much as possible.

Employees receive training and skill
development at least 15

hours/person/year.

Employees receive training and skill
development 20 hours/person/year

which does not meet the specified goals

Provide knowledge to employees at least

20 hours/person/year

Employee engagement satisfaction
survey twice a year :
Assessment result not less than 85

percent.

The average satisfaction survey result

was 97 percent.

Average organizational commitment not

less than 90 percent

Safety and Occupational Health : Zero

accidents of employees and contractors.

Zero accidents from work stoppages
were found for employees and

contractors.

Safety and Occupational Health : Zero

accidents of employees and contractors.

Zero complaint regarding human rights

No complaint

No complaint

Declaration of Intent to Join the Coalition

Against Corruption (CAC)

Announced its intention to join the
Coalition Against Corruption (CAC) on
November 24, 2022.

The Members of the Coalition Against
Corruption (CAC)

There is a social assistance program.

Service work at least 2 projects per year

Itis in the process of registering with the

Department of Skill Development.

« Training courses on service work for
labor groups with the Department of
Labor Skills.

* Project "Service Excellence in Service"
training for the general public via online

system.

3.4.2  Social Development

® Respect for human rights

The company places importance on basic human rights. Promote and respect rights and freedoms without
discrimination. Promote equality Does not discriminate by gender and class, does not use child labor. The
company adheres to human rights principles as a common practice. All employees must not do anything or
strictly encourage violations of human rights In return, the company will create knowledge on human rights
along with cultivating awareness among the company's employees adhere and follow The company has
established a policy of not violating human rights in the business ethics manual to be used as a guideline for

compliance as follows:
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Corporate Respect for Human Rights

The Company places importance on upholding the human rights, promote and respect
individual rights, freedom and equality. The Company does not support discrimination in any
shape or form, based on gender, social status, etc. and strongly prohibits child labor/forced
labor.

The Company adheres to the human rights principles as a common practice. All employees
shall not undertake any action or shall by no means support any action violating human rights.
Moreover, the Company will raise awareness and knowledge on the human rights of each
individual to the employees of the company to uphold and abide by, and has established
policies to prevent an infringement of human rights as stated in the Business Ethics Manual to

act as guidelines for compliance, as follows:

Personal rights and freedom:

o Policies for the security and privacy of employee’s personal information to be kept safe and
secure, and shall not be sent or disclosed to unauthorized parties.

o Disclosure or transfer of personal information only upon the owner’s consent.

o Anindividual may exercise his/her rights or liberties as long as it does not infringe upon the

rights and liberties of others.

Equal treatment:

o All employees must be treated equally and there shall not be any discrimination against
race, nationality, language, religion, gender, age and education.

o All employees must treat each other with respect and shall behave appropriately in
accordance with the rules, regulations, Company culture and maintain a positive company
image.

o The Company gives employees the opportunity to showcase their abilities and their full
potential. Consequently, the Company shall provide appropriate remuneration pursuant to
the company’s regulations and provide the opportunity for employees to further their
education, as well as, short term and long term training courses.

o Deliberation related to the hiring and judgment of performance must be accurate and fair.

o In the process of working, employees must refrain from expressing opinions related to
physical and mental differences, race, nationality, language, religion, gender, age,

education or any matters that may lead to conflict.
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Contribute to ensure a work environment free of oppression and injustice.

Employees must show respect and tolerance on each other’s opinions.

Fair Labor Practices

The Company took actions to create a safe and a hygienic workplace, implement employment

conditions which adhere to the fundamental labor laws, continually enhance and develop the

skills of employees to help employees achieve a better quality of life.

The Company recognizes that employees are the company’s most valuable asset, and it is the

most important factor in the company achieving its goals. The Company must respect and abide

by the laws, moral and ethical principles to create a fair, sustainable, and peaceful society.

Therefore, the Company provides fair care and equal treatment of employees, with regards to

the opportunities, remuneration, the appointment, transfer, and proper welfare plans in various

aspects as follows:

Company commits to and respect the employees’ right to work in compliance with the
human rights principles. Additional details are provided under the subject of
“Corporate Governance,” under the topic on “Business Ethics” in the item “Non-

Violation of Human Rights Policy.”

Established a “Compensation & Benefits Policy” factoring in employee motivation in
performing their work and duties and establishing a fair and impartial system. An
assessment and evaluation of employee remuneration or compensation, appropriate
with the level of duties and responsibilities held, in line with the business and at a rate
that is competitive or equivalent to other companies within the industry.

The Company is confident that the benefits and compensation policies are both
compliant to the regulatory standards and are fair with regards to the standard market
rates, nature of the work, short-term and long-term performance of the company and
accounting for the ability of the company to provide remuneration, as well as, provide
opportunities for employees to make suggestions about their work environment, where
such suggestions or complaints will be taken seriously to make changes and create a
healthy work environment and positive relationship between employees and the

Company.
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For employees’ welfare, the Company provides life insurance policies for employees
which covers all cases of illness, accident, and death. Including, annual health checks,
provident fund for employees’ stability, social security, and provision of loans in case

of accident or iliness, allowance in the case of the death of oneself or a family member.

Establish a “safety and hygiene policy,” whereby the company put in place policies
and systems for the safety and hygiene of employees in compliance with the
regulations, and taking appropriate measures to ensure the safety and hygiene of
employees. In addition, the Company provides medical examinations, basic medical
services (medicines, etc.)

In 2023, employees reimbursed medical expenses in the amount of 486,104.89 baht,

Annual health checkups, and policies for the enrichment of employee health, as follows:

- Provision of vaccinations against 4 strains of influenza at a special price for
employees.

- Safety policies and practices, such as appointing safety officers, training and raising
awareness about occupational safety and health within the working environment.
Annual fire evacuation drills, fingerprint scanning systems to enter and exit company

- Premises and with the COVID-19 situation the company has provided gel alcohol.

Employee injury or accident statistics 2020 | 2021 | 2022

The number of injuries or accidents from work of

employees that lead to absenteeism (times)

Number of employees who died from work (person) - - -

Establish “Human Resources Management and Development Policies,” by defining the

strategies and policies focusing on increasing management efficiency and development of

52  ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 56-1 ONE REPORT



Peer For You Public Company Limited | Foermer: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited |

human resources to adapt to the business environment and technological changes in business
operations.

Development of Employees’ Quality of Life

The Company recognizes that employees are valuable and essential to an organization’s
success. Therefore, the Company places huge importance on the development of employees’
quality of life and work-life balance. Throughout 2023, the Company has carried out various

activities for employees to participate in and enjoy as follows:

1. Happy Workplace
The Company has organized activities observing various festivals for employees to
participate in and enjoy, such as, ‘Fashion on Friday,” which stipulates that there is a
dress code that employees are suggested to dress to, and share the happiness
throughout various festivals. Such as, Valentine’s Day, Songkran, Halloween,
Christmas, gift exchanging on New Year's Day, and providing special deals for
employees. These activities are designed to aid in the employees’ wellbeing and

health.

Take care of employees through iliness, accident, childbirth or loss of life
The Company took care of employees at all times, visiting employees experiencing illness,
accidents or childbirth, and providing gifts and encouragement to employees. Including,

expressing condolences to the employee and family members in case of loss of life.
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3. Ordination Benefit
The company has supported the ordination of employees, supporting the ordination

expenses and making merit alongside the employee.

4.  “Club Mind Friend” Project
The Company organized, “Club Mind Friend” project for stressed employees to participate

in and consult directly with a psychiatrist to receive advice, and help reduce anxiety or
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5. Best Performance Awards
The Company evaluated employees’ performances and awarded those who excelled and

received high performance scores.
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Public Relations Channel

The Company has various public relations channels to distribute information, such as,

Line: OTO Family, FB: OTO society, email and public relation forums. In addition, the

Company has prepared a bulletin board to publicize commendations to make the

employees proud.

Consumer Responsibility

The Company places great importance on product development, providing quality

service and safety.

The Company emphasizes on creating quality products and services, and believes

in achieving consistent customer satisfaction and confidence. The Company has set

consumer responsibility policies as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)
6)

Committed to procuring, developing and producing modern products and services
that serve the customer’s needs.

Provide high-quality products and services at a reasonable price.

Provide accurate information to customers without any exaggeration which may
lead to misunderstandings on the quality, quantity, or condition of the product or
service.

Formulate procedures for customers to inform about product issues or improper
service, in order for the Company to prevent and solve problems effectively,
promptly and use such information to improve products and services.

Provide efficient after-sales service to customers.

Maintain customer confidentiality and non-disclosure of customer information.
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7) Support various activities to strengthen and maintain a good relationship between

customers and the Company.

In addition, the Company conducts surveys at all loops - 360 degree: clients, business

partners, and staff. We believe that service that comes from happy staff and supportive

partners will lead to sustainable business operations.

® (Client: The Company conducts customer satisfaction survey at least once a year, and
survey customers who call to use end-user service on a monthly basis. We survey
customers starting from the service point (touch point), sales process, installation,
delivery of services and the after sales-sales service. Including, asking for customer’s
opinions and suggestions for the continuous improvement of our service.

® Business Partner: The Company conducts a satisfaction survey at least once a year to
inquire to business partners about the communication and coordination between the
parties, payment of goods and service, commercial cooperation, etc.

® Employee: The Company conducts a satisfaction survey at least once a year, a
questionnaire on the level of employee’s happiness to work at the company from
various perspectives, i.e. financial such as remuneration, benefits and non-monetary
such as gaining knowledge and skills, promotions, work environment, communication

and management.

In addition, the Company conducts surveys at all loops - 360 degree: clients, business partners, and staff.
We believe that service that comes from happy staff and supportive partners will lead to sustainable business
operations.

1. Survey of satisfaction of service users (End User) 90 percent

2. Customer satisfaction survey (Client) 95 percent

3. Employee satisfaction survey (Employee) 97 percent

4. Partner satisfaction survey 100 percent

Development of the Community and Society
The Company recognizes that supporting the community and society, results in stronger business
performances. Therefore, the Company supports development of quality of life, and the prosperity of the

community and society. In 2022, the Company organized activities for creating social value, as follows:
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® FEducation Scholarships

The Company provided scholarships at an undergraduate level at Buriram Rajabhat University, Buriram

Province, for academically gifted students who lack the financial means to fund their studies.
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® Clothing and Accessories Donation Project

Donate essential items that are used in daily life. It is a new item that has not yet been used for disabled

people, Disabled Protection and Development Center, Ban Nonthabhum, Nonthaburi Province

® Old Calendar Donation Program
The Company donated old, unused calendars to the Educational Technology Center for the Blind,

Nonthaburi Province for use in the production of Braille print for the visually impaired.
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® | ottery Donation

The Company organizes activities to invite executives and
employees to donate lotteries without rewards. To give to the
disabled to make sandalwood flowers for sale to generate income
for themselves and their families at the service center for the

disabled in Uttaradit province. To help society and reduce waste,

creating benefits for society.

In 2023, the company took part in the activities of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Booth activities at ESG Impact

Expo at MONEY EXPO BANGKOK YEAR END 2023 at Queen Sirikit National Convention Center To promote innovation

development Expanding business opportunities and joint investment with partners in new businesses Operating

according to sustainable development guidelines to help create positive impacts on society and the environment

throughout the value chain. Long-term sustainable growth
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Management Discussion and Analysis for the Year 2023

Business Overview

Business overview of One to One Contacts Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the fiscal
year 2023 compare with the prior year 2022 are as follows;

The Group has revenue from operation for the fiscal year 2023 of Baht 572.6 million decreased of Baht 47.9 million or
7.7% compared with the prior year 2022, due to the Group had sold a subsidiary company (Phygital Space
Development Company Limited) in the first quarter of 2023.

The Group had profit from operation in amount of Baht 34.0 million, but due to allowance for credit losses and other
losses — net, consisting of losses from Investments in equity securities’ in listed company was Baht 204.8 million and
investmentin non-listed company As a result, the company had a net loss of Baht 447.3 million, with the loss increasing

to Baht 331.5 million or 286.4%, which was a net loss of Baht 442.1 million for the company.

Revenues

The structure of revenues for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows;

Unit: BAHT million Y2023 Y2022 % Change
.1Revenue from sales and contract work 17.2 20.1 -14.6%
1.1 Sales and Turnkey Total Solutions 17.2 20.1 -14.6%
2. Revenue from services 552.1 540.3 2.2%
2.1 Fully Outsourced Contact Center Management Service 379.4 387.7 -2.1%
2.2 Outsourced Contact Center Facility 15.2 223 -31.8%
2.3 Outsourced Customer Service Representative 147.4 121.0 21.8%
2.4 Maintenance Service 101 9.3 7.8%
3. Other 3.3 60.0 -94.4%
Total 572.6 620.4 -1.7%

—_

. Revenue from sales and revenue from contract work

Revenue of turnkey total solutions for the year 2023 was Baht 17.2 million, decreased by Baht 2.9 million or 14.6%

due to loss from the Government and State enterprise customer.
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2. Services income

Services income for the year was Baht 552.1 million, increased by Baht 11.8 million or 2.2%. Service income can

be classified by type from 2020-2023.

Classification of Service Income

63.96% 65.74%

Y2020 Y2021

[ Contact Center Facility Outsourced
Maintenance Service

Customer Service Representative Outsourced

THB 639.2 million THB 560.2 million  THB 540.3 million THB 552.1 million
1.99% 4.60% 4.13% 2.76%
6.07% 94% o 82%
0,
1799 26.73% 22.40% 26.69%

Y2022

[l Fully Outsourced Contact Center Management Service

68.73%

Y2023

2.1 Revenue from Fully Outsourced Contact Center Management Service for the year 2023 was Baht 379.4

million, decreased by Baht 8.3 million or 2.1%, decrease from retail business and cleaning business section.

2.2 Revenue from Contact Center Facility Outsourced for the year 2023 was BAHT 15.2 million, decreased by

BAHT 7.1 million or 31.8%, decrease from corporate customer.

2.3 Revenue from Customer Service Representative Outsourced for the year 2023 was BAHT 147.4 million,

increased by BAHT 26.4 million or 21.8% when compared to the prior year. It mainly decreased by the

Government and State enterprise customer.

2.4 Revenue from Maintenance Service for the year 2023 was BAHT 10.1 million, increased by BAHT 0.8 million

or 7.8%, slightly increased from the same period of previous year.

3. Revenue from other business unit

Revenue from other business unit decreased by Baht 56.7 million due to the Group selling a subsidiary (Phygital

Space Development Company Limited) (“PSD”), in the first quarter of 2023.
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Gross Profit

The Group has gross profit for the year 2023 of Baht 88.5 million, representing gross profit margin of 15.5%, decreased

compared to 2022 with gross profit margin of 17.3%.

Selling Expenses, Administrative Expenses and Other Loss - Net

The Group has selling expenses, administrative expenses and other loss-net for the year 2023 was Baht 526.2 million,
which increased from previous year by Baht 265.7 million or 102.0%, mainly due to expected credit loss and loss from

equity instruments with details as follows:

1. Expected credit losses in the amount of Baht 144.9 million consists of:
- Incomplete received for sale of shares (2nd-4th installments) of Phygital Space Development Company
Limited, amounting to Baht 75.2 million.
- Short-term loans to third party, Wow Factor Public Company Limited (“WOW?”), amounting to Baht 57.5
million from a principal of Baht 100.0 million or 57.5%
- Security deposit for studies with local company to Platform development, amounting to Baht 10.0 million

and other receivables of Baht 2.2 million

2. Other losses - net, amounting to Baht 263.6 million, consisted of losses from investing in equity instruments
of listed companies in amounting to Baht 204.8 million, divided into losses from selling equity instruments of
listed companies in the amount of Baht 162.3 million, consisting of stocks with the following: “W” / “SA” /
“PSTC” / “WAVE” / “TNITY” / “SIMAT”. Loss from changes in the value of equity instruments of listed
companies in the amount of Baht 42.5 million, consisting of stocks with the following: “NEWS” / “Nation” /
“EE” / “SA” / “SA-W1” / “EP” / “AQUA” and losses from companies that are not listed in Hinshitsu (Thailand)

Public Company Limited market amounted to Baht 56.0 million.

Investments in Equity Securities’

Based on the Group’s investment policy, approved by the Board of Directors Meeting No.3/2021 on February 2021
which has been reviewed and revised a total of 6 times, with the most recent 2 times being approved by the Board of
Directors’ meeting No. 8/2023 and No. 12/2023 on 2 June 2023 and 21 July 2023 in order by focusing on the Group’s
cash management and placing importance on the balance between the ‘risk of investment’ and ‘return on investment’
under the acceptable risk. In order for the Company to receive the appropriate gains and maintain sufficient liquidity
to be converted into cash if need be. The investments can be classified into 3 types: (1) Investments in Private Funds,

(2) Investments in Self-Managed Securities, and (3) Investments in Bank Deposits and/or Government Bonds and/or
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Debentures with a rating no lower than BBB+ and/or other debt instruments as specified by the Investment Committee
of the Group under the investment framework approved by the Board of Directors.
® |nvestments in equity securities of listed companies as of 31 December 2023 amounting to Baht 204.8 million,
derived from investments in the common shares of listed companies. The buying and selling (trading) which
has been reviewed by the Investment Committee are not considered an asset acquisition of the Company.
® |nvestments in equity securities of non-listed companies as of 31 December 2023 amounting to Baht 60.2
million, investments in the ordinary shares of Hinsitsu (Thailand) Public Company Limited approved by the
Board of Directors Meeting No. /112021, which is considered an asset acquisition of the company. The
Company has published information of this acquisition to the Stock Exchange of Thailand on September 30,

2021. And in 2022, there is an allowance for expected credit losses of 56.0 million baht.

The Group had a net loss of Baht 447.3 million, an increase in the loss of Baht 331.6 million. The net loss to total
income ratio was -76.1%, with a net loss of Baht 442.1 million for the Company. The increase in net loss was due to
loss from sale of equity instruments of listed companies and losses from fair valuation of listed companies' equity

instruments.

Financial Position

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had total assets of Baht 1,146.6 million, an increase of Baht 167.2 million, or
17.1%. Increase from cash and cash equivalents This was a result of the exercise of warrant rights (OTO-W1) in the
amount of Baht 699.7 million and decreased from

1) Loss from investing in equity instruments of listed companies on the stock exchange of Baht 204.8 million
(loss from selling equity instruments of listed companies and losses from fair value assessment of equity
instruments of listed companies).

2) Short-term loans to third party by Baht 100.0 million. Wow Factor Public Company Limited (“WOW”) has a
remaining balance of Baht 42.5 million due to recognized an allowance for credit losses that are expected to
occur in the amount of Baht 57.5 million.

3) Security deposit to studies in a wind power plant project in Vietnam, remaining of Baht 80.0 million, which is
an investment in common share of 19% of the total shares of the holding company. After that, the company

requested to cancel the project and return the deposit.
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4) Security deposit of the group’s subsidiaries to studies with local companies for developing and marketing
platforms. And later, the group of companies was in the process of negotiating to cancel the transaction. The
Company estimates the allowance for expected credit losses to be Baht 10.0 million.

5) Deposit payment for studies in a Peer-to-Peer-Lending Platform, amount of Baht 190.9 million, to operation

system of electronic network business for peer-to-peer loan transactions.

Total liabilities was Baht 101.1 million, decreased by Baht 41.1 million or 28.9% when compared to the the
previous year.

Total shareholders’ equity was reported at Baht 1,045.5 million, increased by Baht 208.3 million or 24.9% when
compared to the previous year due to the exercise of warrants (OTO W1).

Important Financial Information

2021 2022 2023

Result of Operation (Thousand Bath)

Sales and Contract Work and Service Revenue 597,414 620,457 572,595
Total Revenues 657,158 634,894 591,473
Gross Profit 108,327 107,467 88,548
Net Profit 55,679 (116,221) (442,130)
Financial Position (Thousand Bath)

Total Assets 1,002,970 979,359 1,146,573
Total Liabilities 98,771 142,220 101,084
Total Shareholders’ Equity 904,198 837,139 1,045,489
Financial Ratio

Net Profit Margin (%) 8.47 (18.23) (75.63)
Return on Equity (%) 7.59 (13.74) (48.23)
Return on Assets (%) 6.55 (13.97) (39.40)
Debt to Equity Ratio (Times) 0.11 0.17 0.10
Earnings per Share (Baht) 0.1 (0.21) (0.63)
Dividend per Share (Baht) - - -
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) - - -
Book Value per Share (Bath) 1.61 1.49 1.32
Par Value per Share (Bath) 1.00 1.00 1.00
Number of issued and paid up shares (Million Shares) 560.0 560.0 793.24
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Total revenues was THB 591.5
million, decreased of THB 43.4 million
or 6.8% compared to year 2022, due
to the Group had sold a subsidiary
company (Phygital Space
Development Company Limited) in

the first quarter of 2023.

Total net loss was THB 442.1 million,
increased of THB 325.9 million or

280.4% compared to year 2022.

Earnings (loss) per share was THB
0.63 per share, increased of THB
0.42 per share compared to year

2022.

Total assets was THB 1,146.6
million, increased of THB 167.2
million or 17.1% compared to end
of year 2022. It main increase from
cash and cash equivalents This
was a result of the exercise of
warrant rights (OTO-W1) in the

amount of Baht 699.7 million.
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® Summary financial position and the performance of One To One Contacts Public Company Limited and

its subsidiaries

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Accounting period ended December 31

2021 2022 2023

Cash and cash equivalents 192,923 100,045 74,522
Financial assets measured at fair value

through profit or loss 326,726 234,571 229,225
Trade and other receivables 84, 998 118,647 91,060
Contract assets 48,466 49,409 49,482
Property, plant, and equipment - net 59,627 64,900 198,490
Total Assets 1,002,970 979,359 1,146,573
Trade and other payables 46,235 84,321 52,362
Total liabilities 98,771 142,221 101,084
Capital issued and fully paid 560,000 560,000 793,237
Total shareholders’ equity 904,198 837,139 1,045,489
Service income 560,217 600,315 555,401
Revenue form contract work 35,683 15,945 16,985
Revenue from sales 1,513 4197 209
Other income 59,745 14,437 14,910
Total Revenues 657,158 634,894 587,505
Cost of services 465,931 499,393 473,209
Cost of contract work 22,100 11,942 10,689
Cost of sales 1,056 1,655 149
Selling expense administrative and others 112,763 260,529 526,215
Total expense 586,835 773,396 1,010,262
Profit (loss) for the year 55,679 (116,221) (442,130)
Profit (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company 0.11 (0.21) (0.63)
Net cash flow from operating activities 118,759 90,811 5,176
Net cash flow from (used in) investing activities (498,535) (171,222) (720,187)
Net cash flow from (used in) financing activities 266,119 (12,423) 689,494
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® The Group reported financial ratio

2021 2022 2023
LIQUIDITY RATIO
Liquidity Ratio times 9.99 5.03 7.52
Quick Ratio times 9.23 4.57 7.51
Cash flow liquidity Ratio times 1.62 1.01 0.06
Receivable turnover times 4.95 7.07 6.31
Collection period days 72.66 50.92 57.08
Inventory turnover times 55.91 113.73 275.38
Average holding period times 6.44 3.17 1.31
Payable turnover ratio times 67.67 65.70 51.93
Collection period days 5.32 5.48 6.93
Cash conversion cycle days 73.78 48.60 51.45
PROFITABILITY RATIO
Gross profit margin 18.13 17.32 15.46
Operating profit margin 11.45 (22.45) (73.23)
Other margin 9.09 2.27 3.19
Cash to profit ratio 173.60 (65.19) (1.23)
Net profit margin 8.47 (18.23) (75.63)
Debt to equity ratio 7.59 (13.74) (48.23)
EFFICIENCY RATIO
Total asset turnover 6.55 (13.(97 (39.40)
Return on fixed assets 84.00 (38.04) (166.81)
Net fixed assets turnover 0.77 0.64 0.56
FINANCIAL POLICY RATIO
Debt to equity ratio 0.1 0.17 0.10
Interest coverage ratio - - -
Ability to settle obligations ratio 0.43 0.33 0.02
Dividend payout - - -
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Company Information

Company
Symbol

Business Type

Head Office Address

Branch Office Address (1)
Branch Office Address (2)

Registration No.

Home Page

Telephone

Registered Capital

Issued and Paid up Capital

Par Value

Peer For You Public Company Limited

PEER

Fully Outsourced Contact Center and Customer Management
Services, and total turnkey solution

99/26 Moo 4 Software Park Building, 9th FI. Chaengwattana Rd.,
Klong Gluar, Pak-kred, Nonthaburi 11120 Thailand

444/8 Moo 15, Isan, Mueang Buriram, Buriram 31000, Thailand
126/97 CM Tower Building, 22th FI. Room No. 126/84-87
Krungthonburi Rd., Banglumpoolang, Klongsan, Bangkok 10600, Thailand
0107556000281

www.onetoonecontacts.com

02975 5999

2,946,016,590 Baht

1,054,903,176 ordinary shares

1 Bath per share

Juristic person in which the Company holds shares of at least 10%

Company
Head Office Address

Business Type

Registration No.
Telephone

Registered Capital

Issued and Paid up Capital

Par Value

One To One Professional Company Limited

99/26 Moo 4 Software Park Building, 9th FI. Chaengwattana Rd.,

Klong Gluar, Pak-kred, Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand

Provide Consultancy Service on personal management, recruitment, Contact
Center and Customer Management Services, Debt collection, Cleaning
Service, and training institute.

0105551118940

0 2685 0000

5,000,000 Baht

500,000 ordinary shares

10 Bath per share
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]
Juristic person in which the Company holds shares of at least 10%

Company Inno Hub Company Limited

Head Office Address 99/26 Moo 4 Software Park Building, 9th FI. Chaengwattana Rd.,
Klong Gluar, Pak-kred, Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand

Business Type Digital Service Innovation

Registration No. 0205561009107

Telephone 0 2685 0000

Registered Capital 50,000,000 Baht

Issued and Paid up Capital 5,000,000 ordinary shares

Par Value 10 Bath per share

Company EV Click Company Limited

Head Office Address 99/26 Moo 4 Software Park Building, 9th FI. Chaengwattana Rd.,

Klong Gluar, Pak-kred, Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand
Business Type Provides business in importing, manufacturing, assembling and sale of

electronic motorcycles and electric vehicle parts.

Registration No. 0125566008282
Telephone 0 2685 0000

Registered Capital 10,000,000 Baht

Issued and Paid up Capital 100,000 ordinary shares
Par Value 100 Bath per share

Currently, it is in the process of liquidation of the business cessation.

Company CCS Corbon Clear Solution Company Limited
Head Office Address 99/26 Moo 4 Software Park Building, 9th FI. Chaengwattana Rd.,
Klong Gluar, Pak-kred, Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand

Business Type Conducting business related to buying, selling or transferring rights in carbon
credits

Registration No. 0125566015904

Telephone 0 2685 0000

Registered Capital 5,000,000 Baht

Issued and Paid up Capital 50,000 ordinary shares

Par Value 100 Bath per share
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Currently, it is in the process of liquidation of the business cessation.

Company One to One Cambodia Company Limited

Head Office Address 18-E4, 4" floor, The Icon Professional Building,216 , Norodom Blvd., Tonle
Bassac, Chamkarmorn, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia

Business Type Fully Outsourced Contact Center and Customer Management

Services, and total turnkey solution in Cambodia.

Registration No. 00004142
Telephone (855) 23-932-222
Homepage www.otoc.com.kh
Registered Capital 600,000 USD
Issued and Paid up Capital 120,000 ordinary shares
Par Value 5 USD per share
Other Reference
Company Registrar Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
Office location 93 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building,

Ratchadaphisek Rd., Din Daeng, Bangkok 10400, Thailand

Telephone 0-2009-9999
Auditor Ms. Sanicha Akarakittilap

Certified Public Accountant (C.P.A.) License No. 8470

Address PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.
179/74-80 Bangkok City Tower, South Sathorn Road, Thung Maha Maek
Subdistrict, Sathon District, Bangkok 10120, Thailand

Telephone 0 2824 5000

Legal disputes

The company has a legal dispute. Which may cause damage to the company and have an impact on the business

operations of the company and its subsidiaries. The details are as follows:

1) Thai Airways International Public Company Limited The Company applied for debts repayment in the

business rehabilitation of Thai Airways International Public Company Limited according to the rehabilitation
plan dated March 2, 2021 in the bankruptcy case. Undecided case No. For.For. 10/2563, decided case

No. For.For.20/2563 Details are as:
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-  Debt value for purchases products and hiring of services

- Creditor No. 2274

- Trade Account Payable Group No. 10

- The amount of debt that the company has applied for repayment is the principal amounting of
Baht 34,969,312 and interest of Baht 2,137,825.18, totaling a total of Baht 37,107,137.18

- The conditions for debt repayment according to the rehabilitation plan are as follows:

1. Repayment of principal at the rate of 100% of the principal debt that is entitled to be
repaid.

2. Thai Airways International Public Company Limited will repay in semi-annual basis,
totally 8 times. Starting with the first repaying in the second half of the 3" year
according to the following repayment rates:

2.1 In the second half of the 3rd year, debt will be repaid at the rate of 12.5% (debt
will be paid by June 30, 2024).
2.2 The first half of the 4th year paid off debt at a rate of 12.5%.
2.3 The second half of the 4th year pays off debt at a rate of 12.5%.
2.4 The first half of the 5th year paid off debt at a rate of 12.5%.
2.5 The second half of the 5th year pays off debt at a rate of 12.5%.
2.6 The first half of the 6th year paid off debt at a rate of 12.5%.
2.7 The second half of the 6th year pays off debt at a rate of 12.5%.
2.8 The first half of the 7th year paid off debt at a rate of 12.5%.
3. Other debts other than No. 1, such as interest, will be forgiven in full immediately on

the date the court orders approval of Thai Airways' rehabilitation plan.

2) All Inspire Development Public Company Limited

2.1 The Company is a judgment creditor who has filed a lawsuit against All Inspire Development
Public Company Limited as a defendant with the Civil Court, Undecided Case No. Por.
4306/2566, Decided Case No. Por. 5949/2566 regarding a contract for work in amounting of Baht
435,011. The case has reached its finality according to the consent judgment on November 6,

2023, and no one appealed.
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2.2 Since All Inspire Development Public Company Limited has been sued by other creditors in the
bankruptcy case. Undecided case No. Por.4306/2566 Decided case No. Por. 5949/2566, and
the Central Bankruptcy Court issued an order dated February 6, 2024, to place absolute
receivership on the assets. The order was published in the Royal Gazette on February 20, 2024,
allowing creditors to request payment of debts to the Official Receiver within 2 months from the

date the order was published in the Royal Gazette.

Therefore, the company as a creditor according to the judgment, has applied for payment of debt
according to the judgment in the amount of 435,011 baht for the bankruptcy case submitted to the
Official Receiver, Legal Execution Department on March 29, 2024. It is the creditor No. 888", the

appointment to check the debt payment on May 15, 2024 at 10:00 a.m.
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Corporate Governance

6. Corporate Governance Policy
6.1 Overview of the Policy and Guidelines

Corporate Governance Policy

The Board of Directors realizes on the importance of the good Corporate Governance which will be the
fundamental factor for improving standard of business operation to create more transparency, competitiveness
and strengthen the confidence of all shareholders, investors, and other related parties. Thus, written Corporate
Governance Policy and Business Ethics, which comply with the Principles of Good Corporate Governance of SET
and Corporate social responsibility and Sustainable development Guidelines, have been provided for practices of
directors, management and employees of the Company under the policy guiding principle of being a good
corporate citizen, who is accountable to employees, customers and shareholders, and being socially responsible.
The Company Secretary Division is a compliance unit to supervise and oversee the operation of the Company,
directors and executives to ensure that they been correctly complied with the regulations of the SET, the SEC, the

Public Company Limited Act., and other relevant laws.
6.1.1 Policy and guideline Related to the Board of Directors

As the Board of Directors is the key success of Corporate Governance practice for the highest benefit of
the Company, thus, the Company sets policies relating to roles and responsibilities of the Board i.e.
composition, qualification of directors in order that the Board performs duty effectively in the following

details:

1. Qualification of directors

The Board of Directors comprise of directors who have various knowledge, experience, transparent
working background, nobility, and integrity and must have occupational diversification. In addition, they
have the skills that advantage to the Company’s business, such as accounting & finance, management,
strategic planning, laws, and corporate governance and other without sexual discrimination. The Board
will also have leadership and vision to carry on the Company’s business and achieve its objectives. The
Company has 8 directors who complied with the qualification that been described under “Management
Structure”. In addition, all the Directors have contributed their best to the Company which may concern

from their participation in the meeting. Details of directors’ qualification shown in “7.2 Information on
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the Board of Directors.” or the charter of the Board of Directors which are displayed on the company

website (www.onetoonecontacts.com)

2. The Independent of the Board of Directors

® Separation of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

For best benefit of the shareholders and to strike a balance of power within the Company, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors is not the same person as Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman
of the Board of Directors is an independent director who has the qualifications of independent
director in accordance with the SET’s notification and has no business relation with any management

of the Company.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer

The Company has clearly set the separate roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer. The Board of Directors will focus and ensure that the Company’s business
will achieve its target and in the direction that create value and best benefit to the shareholders as
well as all stakeholders. Any conflict of interest with the Company and its subsidiaries will be
prohibited. The Board will also comply with the Company’s Ethics with responsibility, due care, and
integrity to ensure all Company’s businesses are run under Company’s objectives, Articles of
Association, resolutions of the Board of Directors’ and shareholders’ meetings as well as laws and
regulations of the SET, the SEC and other related laws. The Company disclosed the scope of role
and responsibilities of the Board of Directors in the "Management Structure" under the heading
"Board of Directors".

Delegation of Authorities between the Board of Directors and the Management

The Company has written the delegation of authorities and the Company has revised policies and
procedures to be appropriate and in line with the current situation. It was specified approval authority
on credit line of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Chief Executive Officer and
Management pursuant to the transaction types, such as finance / accounting / budget, human
resources, procurement, administration, marketing and public relations. In this regard, the latest
version of the approval authority has been approved by the Executive Committee Meeting No. 9/21,

dated August 31, 2021, effective from September 1, 2021 onwards.

6.1.2 Policy and guidelines related to shareholders and stakeholders

1.

Rights of Shareholders
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The Company emphasizes and recognizes the importance of the rights of all shareholders equitably,

minority shareholders, major shareholders, institutional investors, or foreigners. The Company does not

hinder or create barriers to allow shareholders to communicate with each other. The rights that the

shareholders of the Company receive are as follows:

® Rights to get share certificate, sell, purchase, or transfer the Company’s shares
Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. (“TSD”) has been appointed as the Company’s registrar to
provide all services for all transactions related to registration of the Company’s shares.

® Rights to propose agenda and submit question in advance for the Shareholders’ Meeting
The Company is aware of the shareholders’ rights and equitable treatment to the shareholders under
the good corporate governance and to comply with laws. It is the Company policy to allow the
shareholders to propose agenda of the shareholders’ meeting and submit the enquiries concerning
the Company’s operation prior to the meeting date provided that they must comply with criteria on
proposing of meeting agenda for shareholders’ meeting as per specified by the Company’s Board
of Directors.
In the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company allowed shareholders to propose
agenda or submitted the enquiries concerning the Company’s operation at least 3 months in
advance prior to the end of the fiscal year from October 3, 2022. The period time for proposing
agenda ended January 15, 2023. Any questions can send to the Company prior to the date of the
2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The Company notified and disclosed contact
channels and period for proposing agenda and enquiries via the SET’s communication system on
October 3, 2022, and provide details of the procedures on the Company’ s website
(www.onetoonecontacts.com), under “Investor Relation” on the topic of “Proposal question and

additional agenda concerning the Company’s operation in advance of the 2023 AGM”.

® The right to nominate a person to be a director by minority shareholders
The Company is aware of the rights and equality of shareholders following the principles of good
corporate governance, shareholders nominate a person to be a director. This will help select qualified
persons to serve as the Company's directors. And able to perform duties efficiently for the best
interests of the Company and all stakeholders. Including helping the company able to comply with the
principles of good corporate governance concretely. In the year 2023, the Company has informed the
shareholders of the channel and time for receiving the matter via the SET's news system on October
3, 2022 and details the criteria for nominating a person to be a director. From October 3, 2022 to

January 15, 2023 on the company website (www.onetoonecontacts.com) under the category of
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“Investor Relations” under the heading “Shareholder Information” subject to “Nomination of Persons
to be Directors for the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.”
Participation in the Shareholders’ Meeting.
The Company is aware of the shareholders’ rights and equitable treatment to participate in the
shareholders’ meeting, be informed conditions and procedures of meeting as well as having proxy to
vote and comment in the meeting on behalf of the shareholders. The Company was prior to notify and
specify date, time and place that comfort the shareholders to participate in the meeting for convenience
and encourage shareholders to attend the meeting,
The 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company held on April 25, 2023 ,by organizing
electronic meetings (E-AGM) in accordance with the rules stipulated in the law relating to electronic
conferencing. Broadcast the meeting at room, 12th Floor, Software Park Building, 99/23 moo 4,
Chaengwattana Road, Klongklua, Pakkred, Nonthaburi. Province Due to the situation of the
coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) that continues to spread continuously. Where was
convenience for transportation and accommodated number of shareholders. The rights of

shareholder to participate in the meeting are as follows:

Before the Meeting Date

The 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the shareholders would be informed on the date
and agenda of the shareholders’ meeting via the SET’'s communication system 29 days prior to the
meeting date. The Company also disclosed the notice of shareholders meeting as well as related
documents in  both languages, Thai and English, on the Company's website

(www.onetoonecontacts.com) on the section of “Investor Relations’ under the topic of “The 2023

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders” 29 days prior to the meeting date for the shareholders
to have sufficient time for consideration. Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. (TSD), the
Company’s registrar was directly delivered Brief form of Invitation letter and QR code to
shareholders. The QR code were contained the detail of notice of shareholders meeting, fact and
rationales, opinion of the Board of Directors for each agenda, conditions, and procedures of
meeting as well as other related document with sufficient information for shareholders’
consideration. The Company posted all documents on company website 29 days prior to the
meeting date of which better than what required by laws. Moreover, the notice of shareholders
meeting was published on the newspaper 3 consecutive days and 17 days prior to the meeting

date.
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To facilitate the institutional investors to participate in the shareholders’ meeting, the Company tried
to contact them in advance to assist them in proxy preparation and registration. For institutional
investors, the Company tried to contact them in advance to assist them in proxy preparation and

registration. It facilitated to participate in the shareholders’ meeting,

On the Meeting Date

Meeting procedures has been set to conform to laws and considering on shareholders’ convenience.
The Company is aware of the equitable of shareholders’ right and their comfort to participate in the
shareholders’ meeting. Appropriated technology and equipment are sufficient for registration to
review on required documents more than 1 hour prior to commencement of the meeting. There were
9 directors attended in the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Moreover, Chairman of
all committees, the Company’s management and external auditors were also present in the meeting
in order that the shareholders could ask questions during the meeting. Chairman of the Board of
Directors was Chairman of the meeting. Master of Ceremonies (M.C.) introduced all members of
Board of Directors, total shareholders attending in the meeting and total shares that entitled to vote
to the shareholders for acknowledgement. In the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,
there were total 123 shareholders attending the meeting either in person or in proxy. M.C. declared
vote casting, counting procedures and other related matters for shareholder's acknowledgement
before chairman started the meeting to be in line with the agenda without any additional topic from
what have been expressed in the invitation letter. Voting cards were provided for significant agenda.
Voting result in term of approval, disapproval, abstain and invalid ballots for each agenda were
transparently presented to the meeting. The shareholders were encouraged to express their opinions
and raise any questions, either in the agenda or any other questions related to the Company’s
business, at the meeting. All questions had been answered and taken in the minutes of meeting as

well as the opinions from the shareholders.

After the Shareholders’ Meeting

Resolution of the meeting was disclosed to the SET with voting details, approved, disapproved,
sustained and invalid ballots, of each agenda on the same day of the meeting date. Full minutes of
meeting of which contained the attendance record of the directors, summary of questions and
answers during the meeting in both Thai and English had been sent to the SET and related parties
within 14 days after the meeting date as well as posted on the Company’s website

(www.onetoonecontacts.com) for verification.
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® Appointment / Dismissal of Directors of the Company and Approve their Remuneration

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,

one third (1/3) of the Directors has to be retired by rotation. Election for replacement is required. The

retired directors are eligible to be re-elected for another term. The election of the Board of Directors

shall be in accordance with the rules and procedures as follows:

- Each shareholder shall have one vote on each share.

= Invoting, a shareholder shall vote in accordance with the number of votes each shareholder for
one or several directors. The said shareholder may not allot any number of his/her votes to any
person.

- The person obtaining the highest and higher votes respectively shall be elected as directors
equal to the number of directors required or ought to be elected at such a meeting. If persons
receiving votes in respective orders receive equal votes and the number of directors exceeds

the positions required or ought to be, the chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.

Apart from the appointment of Directors, the shareholders also have rights to remove any director
from the office before the expiration of his/her term of office by having votes of not less than three
quarters (3/4) of the number of shareholders attending the meeting and having the rights to vote and
the aggregate number of shares shall be not less than one half (1/2) of the shares held by all the
shareholders attending the meeting and having the rights to vote.

In every General Meeting of Shareholders, the shareholders have the rights to consider and approve
the remuneration for all directors and members of sub-committees. Adequate Information of all
candidates for being considered and appointed as directors or members of committees was also

delivered for shareholders’ consideration.

® Appointment of Auditors and approval of their remuneration

In every Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, one of the agenda is the appointment of
Company’s auditors and consideration of their remuneration. The Company will propose name of
the auditors with sufficient details and remuneration for consideration of the shareholders.

® Regularly and Timely Obtained Adequate Information, Business Performance and

Management policy.

The Company concerns on Shareholders’ rights and not only disclosed Company’s information via
the SET’'s communication system but also posted all significant and updated information on the

Company’s website (www.onetoonecontacts.com).
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® Profit Sharing

On dividend payment, the Company has policy to pay dividend to the shareholders of no less than
50% of its net profit after deduction of all reserves as stated in the Company’s Articles of Association
and related laws, subject to the Company’s future investment plans and business expansion,
including other necessity and suitability. The details in the topic. "Dividend Policy"

2. Treatment of Shareholders

The Company realizes to protect and due care for the interests of all major and minor shareholders as
fairly basis. In addition, the Company sets policy for equitably treatment to all shareholders for attending
and vote in the shareholders’ meetings, sharing in profits, regularly and timely obtained adequate
information, business performance and management policy. In the shareholders’ meeting, each
shareholder shall have one vote on each share. Proxy form requiring documents were delivered together
with the invitation letter for shareholders who would like to appoint a proxy. Proxy form, which contains
detail of voting as approve, disapprove, or abstain, as well as details of independent directors also are
attached for shareholders consideration as alternative proxy. In addition, voting cards were provided
for each agenda, especially, the agenda of appointment of directors of which been appointed by
individual. In the shareholders meeting, the meetings will conduct to be in line with the agenda without
any additional topic from what have been expressed in the invitation letter otherwise rights of the
shareholders who could not participate in the meeting by themselves will be deprived. More details are
shown in “Inside Information Control”

3 . Attention to Stakeholders

The Company is aware of the support from each stakeholder should increase the competitiveness and
ability to generate more benefit for long-term succession and realized the importance of all stakeholders
i.e. Customers, Employees, Shareholders, Business Partners, Competitors society and community
Government agencies and related agencies as well as providing more channels for the stakeholders to
contact directly to the Company in order to provide either comments or recommendations which will be
benefit to the Company. Thus, general rules and practices have been set for directors, management, and
employees in the Company’s Business Ethics for directors, managements, and employees to perform and
disclosed on the Company’s website (www.onetoonecontacts.com).

Disclosure and Transparency

The Company has strong determination to reveal accurate complete, consistent, and updated
information, both financial and general information that related to Company’s business. The complete,

consistent, and updated information will truly reflect Company’s financial performance and future
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business direction. The Company has a disclosure policy to disclose information of any significant and
future business operation directions, so that shareholders and stakeholders can access information

conveniently and speedily as follows:

- To submit the financial report and Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) to the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (“SET”) and the Securities and Exchange Commission Thailand (“SEC”) within
the specified timeframe. The financial report did not have any transactions where the auditor
opinioned with qualified, the financial statement has also never been revised under the order of the
SET and the SEC. To make the investors are more well informed and understand the changes
occurred to the financial position and operating results of the Company in each quarter and post it

on the Company’s website and the SET’s communication system.

- Criteria on provision of remuneration to directors and executives have been clearly disclosed. More
details are shown in "8.1.2 Remuneration for Directors and Non-Executive Directors Policy" and "7.4.2

Management’'s Remuneration Policy"

- Shareholding information of directors and executives has been disclosed in the Annual Report and
the Annual Disclosure information. In addition, the Company has a policy requiring directors and
executives to report the change in their securities holding within 3 business days from the date the
securities have been purchased, sold, transferred, or accepted transfer. The Company Secretary’s
unit shall coordinate on submission of such report to the SET and the SEC. Moreover, it is also
specified that any change of such securities and derivative holding of directors and executives shall
be reported to the Board of Directors’ meeting every time. The 2021 securities and derivative holding

information of the directors and the executives were shown below:

79  ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 56-1 ONE REPORT



Peer For You Public Company Limited ( Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

Number of ordinary shares and warrants to purchase shares of the Company

Acquired / Dispose during the year
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023
oto " oTO-W1?

OTO OTO-W1 buy/receive | Sell/transfer | buy/receive | Sell/transfer OTO OTO-W1

Name

transfer transfer

Board of Directors

1 .Dr. Pakorn Apaphant - - - - - - - -

Spouse and minor children*® - - - - - - - -

2 .Dr. Chuket Ounjitti** - - - - - - ; -

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - - -

3 .Mr. Pattarakit Techasikarn™ - - - - - - - -

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - -

4 .Mr. Priyong Teerasathain - - - - - - - -

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - -

5 .Mr. Kanawuthi Wattanadhirach - - - - - - - -

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - -

6 .Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham - - - - - - - _

Spouse and minor children*® - - - - - - - -

7 .Mr. Panom Ratanarat - - - - - - - _

Spouse and minor children*® - - - - - - - -

8 .Mr. Subhasiddhi Rakkasikorn - 60,000 - 100,000 - 118,000 - NA

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - - -

9 .Mr. Somkit Likitparinyat ** 45,000 | - - 45,000 | - - - -
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Acquired / Dispose during the year
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023
oTto " oTo-w1?

oTO OTO-W1 buy/receive | Sell/transfer | buy/receive | Sell/transfer OTO OTO-W1

Name

transfer transfer

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - -

10 .Ms. Saowanee Kaoubol™* - - ; - - - i} .

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - - -

Executive

11 .Mr.Thawee Udomkitchote ~ - - ; - - . . i

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - - -

12 .Ms. Warunee Poodee - - - - - - - -

Spouse and minor children*® - - - - - - - -

13 .Mrs. Sasakorn Suppatkul

Spouse and minor children*

14. Mr. Praphan Somboonngern

Spouse and minor children*

15 .Mr. Krissada Boontuang - - - - - - - -

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - - -

16 .Ms. Chutima Insawang 100 - 100 - 100 - 200 100

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - -

17 .Mr. Chanatip Pumhirun™* - - - - - - - -

Spouse and minor children* - - - - - - -

18 .Ms. Reathairat Thongjarean - - - - - - - -
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Acquired / Dispose during the year
December 31, 2022

December 31, 2023
oTto " oTo-w1?
Name
oTO OTO-W1 buy/receive | Sell/transfer | buy/receive | Sell/transfer OTO OTO-W1
transfer transfer

Spouse and minor children* -

19 .Ms. Thidarat Kaewyai *** -

Spouse and minor children* -

Remark: * Spouse, cohabiting couple and minor children, including a juristic person whose shares exceeding thirty percent of the total voting rights are held by directors and

executives, including their spouse or cohabiting couple, and minor children.

" Common Stock

Y Warrant
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Furthermore, the Company also has a policy on the report of transaction which has conflict of interest of the

directors and the executives as follows:

1)

The

The director and the executive shall submit the first report on transaction with interest within 30 days from
the date he/she is appointed to be the director or the executive pursuant to the specified report form.
The Director and the executive shall report a change of transaction with interest within 30 days from the
date of such change pursuant to the specified report form.

Report on transaction with interest shall be kept at the Company Secretary and the Company secretary
shall arrange to submit a copy of such report to the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee within 7 business days from the date the Company received such report.

Company were disclosed information to shareholders, investors and any related parties via SET’s

Communication system, Company’s website (www.onetoonecontacts.com), Company’s Annual Report and Form

56-1, press release and as well as participated in the Opportunity Day which arranged by the SET.

The Board of Directors has to ensure that the Company’s disclosures are transparency and strictly complied by

laws, Company’s and any related regulations. The Company has never been notified any offense by the SEC or

the SET on such matter. The Board has major concerned on transparency and disclosure in the following areas:

Information Disclosure Policy

The Company appreciates on management and business operations in accordance with the principles of
good corporate governance. To ensure that the information disclosure is accurate, complete transparency
and equal, complied with laws and the relevant regulations. Therefore, the Company has established
information disclosure policy to be a guideline for directors and employees as follows:

1. Information disclosure in both financial and non-financial should be accurate, complete, sufficient,
reliable and on time to ensure that shareholders and stakeholders of the Company receive the
information equally.

2. Information disclosure of the Company must be prepared carefully, clearly, accurately, and
transparently.

3. Be careful to disclose important information that affects the price or value of the Company's securities
and complying with the regulations and announcement of the SET.

4.  Clearly appoint a responsible person to disclose the Company’s information to public.
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The persons who have the right to disclose important information not yet disclosed to the public are as
follows:

1. Executive Chairman

2. Chief Executive Officer (CEQO)

3. Manager of Investor Relation of the Company

4

Authorized person from Executive Chairman or Chief Executive Officer

Those who do not relevant or assigned duties cannot provide information or interview to the media or public
about the Company’s business.
Provide multi channels for disclosure of information apart from the SET’s communication system

- Annual Report and Form 56-1 One Report

The Board of Directors has to ensure that Annual Report contains adequate information with accuracy,
clarity and could create understanding to the shareholders and related parties on the Company’s
operation and its performance for the previous year as well as the management structure, performance
of the Board of Directors and all Committees.

- Company’s website

The Board of Directors is aware of the efficiency of website disclosure to the shareholders and related
persons as well as equitably and easily of getting information. The Board of Directors therefore ensures
the Company not only provides all significant information of the Company in the Company’s Annual report
but also on the Company’s website (www.onetoonecontacts.com) in both languages, Thai, and English.
The disclosed information comprised of Corporate Governance Policy, Business Ethics, General News,
Financial Statement as well as Annual Report, Form 56-1 One Report, etc.
- Investors Relation

The Company has also set up an Investors Relation section to provide Company’s information and activities
for investors, shareholders, analysts and general public via Company’s website, Road Shows, analysts
meetings, conference calls, etc. The Company’s Investor Relations could be contacted at phone number
0-2685-0000 or via www.onetoonecontacts.com or e-mail address at investor.r@otocontact.com. Ethics of

the investor relations are as follows:

1. Conduct duties with integrity

2. Disclose necessary information completely and fairly to all relevant groups equally

3. Allow all relevant groups to access and enquire the information

4. Perform duties by mainly adhering to benefits of the shareholders and the stakeholders

5. Preserve confidential information of the Company and must not use inside information for personal gain
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6. Perform duties at his/her best and professionally
7. Keep on studying to develop efficiency of the work
8. Observe the principle on not accepting the appointment during the period close to financial statement

announcement and the practical guidelines on securities trading specified by the Company

Disclosure of Information of the Board of Directors and Committees

- Structure, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board as well as performance of the Board and each
Committee

- Directors’'s Remunerations: Policy of Directors’ Remuneration has been clearly and transparently set to
be comparable to the general practice in same industry and be appealing enough to attract and retain
qualified directors. The directors who also be appointed to be the member of any sub-Committees will
be paid appropriately more in accordance with the extra work. The Nominating and Compensation
Committee will consider the remuneration and propose for consideration of the Board of Directors prior

to further approval from the shareholders.

The above information and remuneration of each board member have been disclosed in the Company’s
Annual Report and Form 56-10ne Report. In "8. Report on key operating results related to corporate governance”

under the topic of “Remuneration for Directors ”.

Accountability to the Financial Statement

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s consolidated financial statements and any financial
information which been disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report. They consider financial information are
consistent with strategies and core policies. Such financial statements were prepared in accordance with
the general accepted accounting standard in Thailand with appropriated financial policy. The reports were
carefully considered and prepared with sufficient information in the notes to financial statements. The
financial statements have been audited and commented independently by the authorized auditors of the

SEC to increase confidence and reliability of financial report.

The Board of Directors also set out and maintained for the efficiency of the Company’s internal control
system to ensure that the financial information had been correctly and accurately booked and sufficient to
maintain the Company’s assets to prevent whether from any dishonesty or significant error. The Board of
Directors had appointed the Audit Committee of which comprised independent directors to be responsible
for the quality of the financial statements and the internal control system and disclosed such opinion in the
Annual Report under the Report of the Audit Committee. Moreover, The Company made Report of the Board

of Directors’ responsibility for the Financial Reports was also attached in the Company’s Annual Report.
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6.2Business Ethics
As the Company conducts the business with great awareness in ethical practices, the Board of Directors has
provided the written Thai-English Business Ethics for directors, management and employees of the Company
and subsidiaries since 2005 in order to set as the practical working guidelines with honesty, to be in standard,
quality and integrity which including an attention of all stakeholders, related transaction, compliance with the
laws, assets prevention and conflict of interest. The Company’s directors, management and employees must
perform and comply with strictly. It is also posted on the Company’s website for employees and the outsider’s
acknowledgement. The Company reviews Business Ethics annually of which the latest issue was approved by
the Board of Directors on February 28, 2023. The company has published the complete “Business Ethics” is

posted on the Company's website. (www.onetoonecontacts.com)

Monitoring of Business Ethics

The Company has communicated and set forth the guidelines for compliance with Business Ethics through various
communication channels of the Company. The Company has made it a duty and the responsibility of all directors,
executives and employees to acknowledge and comply with all Company policies and regulations by monitoring
compliance with business ethics. All executives and managers of all levels must monitor compliance to business
ethics, providing consultation and advice for issues, decision making, and the adherence to business ethics in
operations. Such advice and consultation must be legal and follow legal procedure, not go against Company policy
or business ethics, must not negatively affect Company image and reputation, and must not negatively affect the
stakeholders of the Company. Moreover, the Company reviews the business ethics to ensure that it is appropriate and
consistent with the circumstances.

In the event of a violation of business ethics, the executive or manager may take action which is appropriate to
the case in order to take the corrective action or give warning to the involved person. Anyone guilty of violating
Company policies regarding business ethics will be subject to disciplinary action, and may also be punished by

law if the action is in fact illegal.

Therefore, to comply with the requirements and assessment for internal control and to keep in line with the good
corporate governance of the Company. In order for the Company’s executives to conduct self-assessment on
keeping compliance with the business ethics set by the Company and reporting such assessment results to the

Audit Committee. There are 17 assessments topic to review as follows;

1. Conflict of Interest
2. Responsibilities to the Shareholders
3. Employee Policy

4. Employee Ethics
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5. Customer Policies

6. Trade Partner Policies

7. Creditor Policies

8. Counterparty/Competitor Policies
9. Anti-corruption Policies

10. Money Laundering Policies

11. Tax Policies

12. Sustainable Development Policies
13. Corporate Social Responsibility
14. Community Responsibility

15.  Environmental Responsibility
16.  Non-Violation of Human Rights Policy

17.  Policies on Non-Infringement of Intellectual Property or Copyright

The assessment of all 17 topics for business ethics results at an excellent level. Representing a 100 percent
(One Hundred Percent) score, proving that the Company’s executive has complied with the Company’s
business ethics.

The Company also has channels to receive clues, complaints or opinions on illegal or unethical actions. Including
behaviors that may implicate corruption or unfair treatment. The Company set up procedures and methods for
whistleblowing, including protecting whistleblowers according to the “Whistleblowing and Protection of
Whistleblowers.”

Significant changes and developments in policies, practices, and corporate governance systems over the
past year.

Compliance with good corporate governance principles in the past year.

In 2023, the Board of Directors has revised the material matters and improved the policies and guidelines

following the principles of good corporate governance to be appropriate for the circumstances and business
operations of the Company as follows:

— Improvement of the corporate governance policy, including criteria and methods for recruiting high-
ranking executives. Including succession plans for senior executive positions. To achieve flexibility and
consistency with current financial operations without conflicting with the rules and regulation of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

— Improvement of Anti-Corruption Policy to be used as a guideline for managing and preventing corruption

in the business operations. To prove the Company’s intention and determination to fight against
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corruption in all forms. The company submitted a declaration of intent to join Thailand's Private Sector
Collective Action Coalition on November 24, 2022.

Improvement of risk management policy, as well as developing the duties and responsibilities of the
Risk Management Committee. To comply with the Company’s approach after the declaration of intent
to join the Coalition Against Corruption of the Thai Private Sector (CAC) and to create clarity in risk
management. To support the operations of the organization to achieve the goals set.

Improving ethical and business conduct guidelines to be consistent with good practice for all
stakeholders such as directors, executives, employees, etc.

Compliance with good corporate governance principles in other matters.

The Company has complied with the principles of good corporate governance for listed companies 2017
(CG CODE) of the SEC in the overall assessment results of the 2022 corporate governance survey
conducted by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD). The Company is rated “Excellent” for
compliance with the principles of good corporate governance. The company has considered adopting

other practices to suit the business of the company. The details are as follows.

The Role of Stakeholders

The Company prepares the Sustainability Report according to the framework of the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI). Including, the Environmental, Social, and Governance as part of the Annual report / Form
56-1 One Report on the topic of driving business for sustainability, the environmental and climate change
management policies that have been approved and promulgated as a guideline to help reduce

environmental impact and air pollution which will have an effect on the sustainability and business.

Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

1. The Company needs to determine the method of voting for the election of directors by cumulative
voting. The Company has allowed shareholders to have the right to elect directors individually. The
Company nominated the names of directors for shareholders to vote for, whereby one shareholder
has one vote per share. According to the Company's Articles of Association, shareholders have the
right to choose the Company'’s directors.

2. The Company has yet to set a policy for directors and senior executives on the notification of trading
of Company shares at least one day before trading to the Board of Directors or the person assigned
by the Board of Directors. However, the Company has a policy requiring directors and executives

to report shareholding changes in every Board of Directors meeting.
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Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. The Company allows the number of listed companies with executive directors holding director positions6
in up to two places. Policy for senior executives to hold directorships in other companies by stipulating
that before any executive takes a position as a director in another company, they must notify the
Executive Board for approval. However, they must not be a director in a company that operates in the
same business or industry as the Company, or is a competitor of the Company. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will consider and nominate persons to be the Company's directors by
considering their knowledge, capability and time to perform duties for the Company.

2. The Company does not have a female independent director on the Board of Directors. However, the
Company has one female director on the Board of Directors. The Company does not have any gender
discrimination.

3. The proportion of the Board of Directors is 40% independent directors, which is less than the good
corporate governance principles set at more than 50%. In comparison, the proportion of the Board of
Directors is 80% of non-executive directors. Which is higher than the good corporate governance criteria
set at 66%.

4. The Company submitted a declaration of intention to participate in the Collective Action Coalition (CAC)
on November 24, 2022. During the process of submitting documents for certification, the Company has
attended the training to receive advice on anti-corruption procedures and to improve anti-corruption
policies, practices, and relevant work processes in order to be prepared to join the Private Sector

Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC) project.

7. Corporate governance structure and material facts related to the board, subcommittees,

executives, employees and others

7.1 Corporate Goverance Structure

The management structure of the Company consisted of the Board of Directors and 7 Sub-Committees have
been appointed to oversee management and internal control systems to be comply with the Company’s
policies, namely Audit Committee, Corporate Governance Committee, Risk Management Committee,
Executive Committee, Nominating and Compensation Committee Sustainable Development Committee and

Investment Committee, with organization chart as of December 31, 2023, is presented below
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7.2 Information

on the Board of Directors

7.2.1 Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall consist of not more than seven (7) persons. Not less than one half of
the total number of directors shall have residence within the Kingdom.

The Board of Directors must be at least one-third of independent director out of total number of
directors, and at least 3 persons.

The Board of Directors may elect one of the directors as chairman. When considering appropriate, the

Board of Directors may elect one or many directors to be vice chairman(s).

Qualification of directors

Director whose qualification is to comply with the Public Company Act B.E. 2535, regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Company’s Articles of
Association and any other related laws.

Director must not be an entrepreneur or a shareholder of any legal entities which shall be company's
competitors except for the fact that he/she has been approved at the Shareholder's Meeting.

Director must have leadership, vision, and independent consideration for the best benefit of the

Company and the shareholders.
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R —— :_

4. Director must have various knowledge, experience, and specific skill that suitable for the business operation.
5. Director must have responsibility, carefulness, and integrity, and operate with business ethic.
6. Director must have sufficient time for fully participation.

7.2.2  The Information of the Board of Directors and controlling person of the Company.

The Board of Directors as of March 1, 2024 consist of 20 members as following:

Name Position

1. Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul ~ Independent Director / Chairman of Audit Committee / Chairman of the Nominating and

Compensation Committee / Corporate Governance Committee Member

2. Mr. Priyong Teerasathain Independent Director / Audit Committee Member / Chairman of Corporate Governance
Committee / Nominating and Compensation Committee Member / Risk Management

Committee Member

3. Ms. Natenapa Pusittanont - Independent Director / Audit Committee Member

4. Mr. Chirayu Chueyam ~ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors / Nominating and Compensation Committee
Member / Corporate Governance Committee Member /

Chairman of Risk Management Committee / Chairman of Executive Committee / Chairman of
Sustainable Development Committee / Chairman of Investment Committee / Chief

Executive Officer

5. Mr. Prapat Yorkhant Director / Executive Committee Member / Risk Management Committee Member /

Sustainable Development Committee Member

6. Mr. Issara Roungsuk-udom Director / Investment Committee Member / AVP - Investment
7. Mr. Rathapol Limthongchai Director
8. Dr. Pakorn Apaphant * Chairman of the Board of Directors / Independent Director / Chairman of Audit

Committee / Chairman of the Nominating and Compensation Committee / Corporate

Governance Committee Member

9. Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham - Director / Executive Committee Member / Risk Management Committee Member /

Sustainable Development Committee Member / Investment Committee Member

10. Mr. Somkit Likitparinya ’ Director
11. Dr. Chuket Ounijtti - Independent Director / Audit Committee Member
12 .Mr. Kanawuthi Wattanadhirach Director / Nominating and Compensation Committee Member /

Corporate Governance Committee Member / Chairman of Executive Committee /
Chairman of Risk Management Committee / Chairman of Investment Committee /

Chairman of Sustainable Development Committee / Chief Executive Officer
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Name Position
13. .Assoc.Prof. Dr.Apiwat Muttamara Director
14. Mr. Sarayut Yimruen Director
15. Mr. Pattarakit Techasikarn - Independent Director / Audit Committee Member
16. Mrs.Nareerat Ngernnamchokhtanarat b Director
17. Mr. Bundit Sapianchai - Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
18 .Mr. Panom Ratanarat " Director
19 .Mr. Subhasiddhi Rakkasikorn Director
20 .Ms. Saowanee Khaoubol Director

Remark " Directors retire by rotation and resign from the position

— Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham resigned from the director on March 1, 2024

— Dr. Pakorn Apaphant resigned from the director on December 11, 2023

— Mr. Somkit Likitparinya resigned from the director on December 11, 2023

— Dr. Chuket Ounijitti resigned from the director on September 14, 2023

— Mr. Kanawuthi Wattanadhirach resigned from the director on August 22, 2023
— Assoc.Prof.Dr.Apiwat Muttamara resigned from the director on August 22, 2023
— Mr. Sarayut Yimruen resigned from the director on August 15, 2023

— Mr. Pattarakit Techasikarn resigned from the director on July 27, 2023

— Mrs. Nareerat Ngernnamchokhtanarat resigned from the director on June 28, 2023
— Mr. Bundit Sapiancha resigned from the director on June 22, 2023

— Mr. Panom Ratanarat expiration of term of directorshipon on March 14, 2023
— Mr. Subhasiddhi Rakkasikorn resigned from the director on April 28, 2023

— Ms. Saowanee Kaoubol resigned from the director on February 2, 2023

" Appointed Directors
— Mr. Rathapol Limthongchai has been appointed as a Director of the company on March 1, 2024
— Mr. Issara Roungsuk-udom has been appointed as a Director of the company on December 12, 2023
— Ms. Natenapa Pusittanont has been appointed as a Director of the company on September 14, 2023
— Mr. Prapat Yorkhant has been appointed as a Director of the company on August 15, 2023
— Mr. Chirayu Chueyam has been appointed as a Director of the company on August 2, 2023
— Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul has been appointed as a Director of the company on August 2, 2023
— Assoc.Prof.Dr.Apiwat Muttamara has been appointed as a Director of the company on June 23, 2023
— Mr. Bundit Sapiancha has been appointed as a Director of the company on May 2, 2023
— Mr. Sarayut Yimruen has been appointed as a Director of the company on April 25, 2023

— Mrs. Nareerat Ngernnamchokthanarat has been appointed as a Director of the company on April 25, 2023
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Which can see details of the Company's directors' profiles in Attachment 1 "Details of Directors, Executives, Person assigned the highest

responsibility in accounting and finance Persons assigned to be directly responsible for overseeing bookkeeping and company secretary.

The Board of Directors consists of directors who are knowledgeable, competent, experienced, transparent,
ethical as well as having a variety of professions and have experiences that are beneficial to the Company's
business operations such as financial accounting skills management, strategy, legal and corporate
governance, or others without gender discrimination. Which will help the company's operations to achieve
the objectives and goals set. All 20 of the Company's directors have qualifications following the qualifications
of the Company's directors as specified. In addition, all 20 directors also devoted their time and full efforts to
perform the duties of a director. Which can see the number of times the directors attend the meeting. Each

of you can get on the topic. “The attendance of the meetings and the remuneration of individual committees.

Authorized director to bind the company

Mr. Chirayu Chueyam, Mr. Prapat Yorkhant, Mr. Issara Roungsuk-udom and Mr. Rathapol Limthongchai, two

directors jointly sign and affix the company's seal.

7.2.3 Information related to the roles and duties of the Board of Directors

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. Conduct business with responsibility, due care, and integrity and ensure the Company’s
operations comply with the law, Company’s objectives, Articles of Association, resolutions of the
Board of Directors and shareholders’ meeting to protect the rights and benefits of the Company
and shareholders.

2.  Formulate policies and directions for the Company’s operations including supervising
management to proceed all policies and strategies with effectiveness and efficiency.

3. Define and review the Company’s vision, mission, and strategies by prioritize and promote to use
of appropriate and safe innovation and technology to increase business opportunities, including
ensure effective company-wide communication to drive the business in the same direction.

4.  Approve annual budget and investment of the Company as well as ensure proper resource
allocation, appropriate control and monitor the implementation of the Company’s strategies and
annual plans.

5. Appoint directors and committee members to replace of those who retire by rotation as well as
consider the remuneration package for directors and committee members, which are proposed by

Nominating and Compensation Committee, for further consideration of the shareholders’ meeting.
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The Board of Directors also consider the appointment of directors in case of vacancy due to any
reason other than the expiration of the term unless the remaining term of office of the director is
less than 2 months. The replacing director shall hold office only for the remaining term of the replaced
director.

Appoint committees to oversee administrative process and internal system to coincide with
Company’s policies and approve the charter of all committees.

Appoint Chief Executive Officer and also define his/her roles and responsibilities as well as monitor
Chief Executive Officer perform his/her duties as assigned.

Appoint Company Secretary and also define his/her roles and responsibilities as well as monitor
Company Secretary perform his/her duties as assigned.

Approve policy, structure, criteria of remuneration for directors, committees, Chief Executive
Officer, top management and employees as well as propose remuneration for directors and
committees for further approval from the shareholders' meeting.

Prepare quarterly and annual financial statements to disclose or propose to the shareholders'
meeting for approval, as the case may be, and includes to supervise the important information
disclosure that are accurately, sufficiently and on time to comply with related rules and regulations.
Nominate appropriated auditor and its remuneration from proposal of the Audit Committee for
further consideration of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Provide the written Corporate Governance Policy and Business Ethic, and ensure the Company has
prevent conflicts of interest as well as supervise to internal control and risk management systems.
Ensure that good corporate governance is implemented to demonstrate the Company’s
commitment to operate the business with ethics and to bring fair treatment to all stakeholders.

In case of entering into any direct or indirect transaction with the Company and its subsidiaries,
such director should immediately inform his/her or related parties’ interest to the Company.
Supervise to ensure that succession plans for Chief Executive Officer and key executives are in
place.

Encourage and promote innovation and meet social and environmental responsibilities
Approve interim dividend payment to shareholders and report its dividend payment in the next
shareholders' meeting.

Approve the acquisition or disposal of the Company’s assets in according with the rules of the
Capital Market Supervisory Board.

Approve the connected transactions of the Company in according with the rules of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board.
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20. Organize an annual general meeting of shareholders within 4 months from the end of the
Company's fiscal year.

21. Continuously monitor performance of the Company and its subsidiaries to comply with the
operation plans and budgets of the Company.

22. Supervise subsidiary and affiliate to comply with the Company’s policy.

The Company conducted business and manage the Company’s operation ethically and transparently
with honesty and due care for the benefit of shareholders and all stakeholders. The Board of Directors
has provided the Business Ethics manual for the Company’s directors and executives to adhere as

their practical guidelines and posted on the Company’s website (www.onetoonecontacts.com).

The Board of Director also has duties to approve other transactions pursuant to the notification of the
Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other related

laws.

Terms of positions

Pursuant to the Public Company Acts B.E. 2535, at first Annual General Meeting of Shareholders after
the registration of the Company and at the first Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in every
subsequent year one-third of the directors, who have been longest in office, shall retire. The retired
directors are eligible to be re-elected for another term by obtaining majority vote from the Nominating
and Compensation Committee. However the independent directors shall be in post no longer than 3
terms except getting a unanimous approval from the Nominating and Compensation Committee due to
his/her contribution to the Company and the Committee ensures that the extra term will not cause or
impact to the independent of such director, and shall be approved from the Board of Directors and/or

the shareholders’ meetings.

Meeting of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors meeting shall be attended by at least half of all the directors to constitute a
quorum. In the case of the Chairman of the Board of Directors is not present or unable to discharge his
duties, if any the meeting has Vice-Chairman, he/she shall serve as a Chairman. If there is no Vice-Chairman
or such Vice-Chairman is unable to discharge his duties, the directors who attend the meeting, shall elect
one of their members as the Chairman of the meeting and votes. The Board of Directors set its quorum of

the meeting to be at least 2/3 of all directors attending the meeting.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board of Directors

1. Oversee, monitor, and ensure that the Board of Directors efficiently carries out its duties to achieve
the Company’s objectives.

2. Ensure that all directors contribute to the Company’s ethical culture and good corporate governance.

3. Set the board meeting agenda by discussing with the Chief Executive Officer which important
matters should be included.

4. Allocate sufficient time for management to propose topics, and for directors to debate important
matters thoroughly. Encourage directors to exercise independent judgement in the best interest of
the Company.

5. Promote a culture of openness and debate through ensuring constructive relations between

executive and non-executive directors, and between the board and management.

Balance between members

More than half of the members of the Board of Directors are not a part of executive team. One-third of
the Board of directors and shall at least 3 members are independent members who have no relations,
business or personal, with the Company’s executives. Free from executives’ influences, they oversee
the Company’s direction with neutrality and pay careful attention to the rights of shareholder and
stakeholder. To strike a balance of power within the Company, the positions of Chairman of the Board
of Directors and Chief Executive Officer must not be attained by the same person. The Chairman of the

Board of Directors should be an independent member.

The Board of Directors of the Company as of March 1, 2024 comprised of 7 members with various

qualifications, skills, experience and expertise. Composition of the members is as follows:

- 3 Independent Directors  (more than one-third of the Board of Directors)
- 2 Executive Directors

- 2 Non-Executive Directors

The shareholders could have confidence that the directors as representatives of the shareholders could
perform their duty without any influence or control by management of the Company by the above
structure.

7.3 Sub-committees

The Company’s sub-committee consists of 7 sub-committees: the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee,

the Executive Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Nominating and Compensation Committee, the Sustainable
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Development Committee, and Investment Committee. Details of directors, qualification, term of positions and roles and

responsibilities are as follows:

1) Audit Committee

1. Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul Y Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Ms. Natenapa Pusittanont 2 Director (Independent Director)
3. Mr. Priyong Teerasathain” Director (Independent Director)
Remarks: " The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on August 2, 2023

? The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on September 13, 2023

* The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on January 11, 2024

The Audit Committee No. 2 and No. 3 are directors who have sufficient knowledge and experience to be able to review the
accuracy and reliability of the Company's financial statements. You can see details of the Company's directors' profiles. In
Attachment 1 "Details of Directors, Executives, Persons assigned the highest responsibility in Accounting and Finance,

Persons assigned to be directly responsible for overseeing bookkeeping and company secretary.

Qualifications of the Audit Committee

1. The Audit Committee members shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and/or shareholders’ meetings.

2. All members of the Audit Committee should be Independent Directors with the qualifications as specified in
the announcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Capital Market Supervisory Board, and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand

3. Not being a director assigned by the Board of Directors to take part in the business decision of the Company,
parent company, subsidiaries, associate company, same-level subsidiaries, major shareholder or controlling
person of the Company.

4. Not being a director of parent company, subsidiaries, and same-level subsidiaries, which is a listed Company.

5. Having sufficient knowledge, experience, and time to perform duties as the Audit Committee members.

6. At least 1 member of the Audit Committee shall have sufficient knowledge and experience in accounting or
finance to review the reliability of financial statement, the Company has to define in filling form, Form 56-1 One
Report for name of the Audit Committee member who has that qualification and has to define his/her

qualification in the certification of the Audit Committee profile that should be sent to the SET.

Terms of positions

Term of the Audit Committee member is 3 years. All members shall be in post no longer than 3 terms except

getting a unanimous approval from the Nominating and Compensation Committee and the Committee ensures
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that the extra term will not cause or impact to the independent of such director and shall be approved from the

Board of Directors and/or the shareholders’ meetings.

Scope of Responsibilities and Authority of the Audit Committee

1. Review the Company’s financial report to ensure its accuracy with adequate, reliable, and timely disclosure.

2. Review the Company’s internal control, and internal audit systems to ensure that they are suitable and efficient,
and consider the independence of internal audit unit, as well as to propose the appointment, transfer, and dismissal
of the head of internal audit or any other unit in charge of internal audit.

3. Consider and approve the manpower and necessary resources for working process of the internal audit unit,
approve the annual audit plan including significant changes in the audit plan.

4. Review the Company’s compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the regulations of the SET and the laws
relating to the Company’s business.

5. Propose for consideration and approval of the Board of Directors’ and shareholders’ meeting on the selection,
appointment, termination of the external auditors including propose their remuneration for further consideration.

6. Arrange the Audit Committee’s meeting with auditors without management of the Company at least once a year.

7. Review the connected transactions or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests to comply with the
Securities and Exchange Act, and the regulations of the SET and the SEC, including the related laws which are
effectively with the Company and/or the Company’s business to ensure that the transactions are reasonable
with the highest benefit of the Company.

8. Prepare report of the Audit Committee to disclose in the annual report with at least information defined in the
regulations of the SET.

9. Review the scope of authorities, roles, and responsibilities of the Audit Committee in accordance with the situation.

10. Audit and investigate concerned persons to gain the clear information within the scope of authority.

11. Engage the specialist for competent advice and assistance auditing as considered by the Audit Committee with
Company’s expenses.

12. Perform any other activities as assigned by the Board of Directors.

In 2023, the Audit Committee held a total of 4 meetings with the Audit Committee attending and reported to the Board
of Directors. Also has meetings with auditors and those responsible for accounting and finance to review the financial

reports every quarter.

The Audit Committee has reported the annual performance in the Audit Committee's report.

2) Executive Committee

98 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 56-1 ONE REPORT



Peer For You Public Company Limited | Former: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited )

_ ————
1. Mr. Chirayu Chueyam 2 Chairman of Executive Committee

2. Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham * Director

3. Mr. Thawee Udomkitchote " Director

4. Mr. Prapat Yorkhant ¥ Director

Remarks: " The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on May 9, 2023

% The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on August 2, 2023
® The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on September 13, 2023

4 Resigned from the director on February 1, 2024

Terms of positions

Term of each member is 1 year. The Nominating and Compensation Committee will annually consider and
select appropriate persons from the members of the Board of Directors and management propose for further
consideration and appointment from the Board of Directors in the first board meeting after the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders. However, the retired members are eligible to be re-elected for another term.

Scope of Responsibilities and Authority of the Executive Committee

1. Set and review the Company’s vision, mission, strategies, and business plan as well as the Company’s
management structure and delegation of authorities for further approval from the Board of Directors.

2. Review and monitor the operating performance of the Company and subsidiaries to achieve the goal.

3. Audit, monitor and implement the Company’s policies and management practices to conform to the
assignment from the Board of Directors efficiently.

4. Consider and approve annual budget and investment of the Company for further approval from of the Board
of Directors.

5. Determine Policy, structure, criteria for remuneration of employees and managementtogether with the Chief
Executive Officer and propose to the Nominating and Compensation Committee for consideration prior to
further approval from the Board of Directors.

6. Consider entering into any transactions binding the Company as delegation of authorities defined in the
Company’s policy and practice.

7. Report the significant performance of the Executive Committee to the Board of Directors on a regular basis.

8. Review the roles and responsibilities of the Executive Committee in accordance with the situation.

9. Perform any other activities as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The delegation of authorities, duties and responsibilities of the Executive Committee shall not be delegated or

further assigned that authorize the Executive Committee or its attorney to approve any transactions that the
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Executive Committee or connected persons or any persons who may have conflict of interest have done with
the Company or its subsidiaries unless such transactions are complied with the Company’s policy or principle
approved by the Board of Directors. Such connected transactions shall be proposed to the Board of Directors’
and/or shareholders’ meetings for approval to comply with the notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand,

the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) or related law.

In 2023, the Executive Committee held 19 meetings, of which all Executive Directors attended while holding office.

The Executive Committee has reported the annual performance in the Executive Committee's report.

3) Corporate Governance Committee

1. Mr. Priyong Teerasathain Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Mr. Chirayu Chueyam K Director
3. Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul 2 Director (Independent Director)
Remarks: " The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on August 2, 2023

? The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on February 29, 2024

Terms of positions

Term of each member is 1 year. The Nominating and Compensation Committee will annually consider and
select appropriate persons from the members of the Board of Directors and/or any qualified candidates
propose for further consideration and appointment from the Board of Directors in the first board meeting after
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. However, the retired members are eligible to be re-elected for

another term.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee

1. Responsible for governing and monitoring business operation and performance of committees,
management and employees of the Company to comply with the principles of good corporate
governance, the Company’s policies and related laws.

2. Establish corporate governance policy including social responsibility and anti-corruption.

3. Establish and review the Company’s significant procedures and practices to comply with the good
corporate governance policy.

4. Regularly review the Company’s policies, principles and practices.

5. Provide suggestions relevant to business ethics and best practices to the Company’s directors,

management and employees.
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6. Ensure that the good corporate governance policy are performed in practice continuously and
appropriately.

7. Review the roles and responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee in accordance with the
situation.

8. Report to the Board of Directors regarding the Company’s good corporate governance with comments
and recommendations for appropriate improvements.

9. Perform any other activities as assigned by the Board of Directors.

In 2023, the Corporate Governance Committee held 2 meetings with all members of the Corporate Governance

Committee attending while holding office.

The Corporate Governance Committee has reported the annual performance in the report of the Corporate

Governance Committee.

Nominating and Compensation Committee

1. Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul ? Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Mr. Priyong Teerasathain Director (Independent Director)
3. Mr. Chirayu Chueyam K Director
Remarks: " The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on August 2, 2023

? The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on January 11, 2024

Terms of positions

One-third of the Nominating and Compensation Committee, who have been longest in office, shall retire by
rotation every year. The retired directors are eligible to be re-elected for another term by obtaining majority
vote from the Board of Directors. In case of vacancy, the Nominating and Compensation Committee will
consider an appropriate person from the members of the Board of Directors and/or any qualified candidates

and propose to the Board of Directors for appointment.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Nominating and Compensation Committee

1. Recruit, select, and nominate appropriate candidates for the position of independent directors, and
directors, and propose for consideration and approval from the Board of Directors’ and/or the
shareholders’ meetings when those positions are vacant due to termination of terms or other reasons.

2. Recruit, select, and nominate appropriate candidates for the position of director in each committee, Chief

Executive Officer, and Company Secretary and propose for consideration of the Board of Directors’
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meeting when such position is vacant as well as proposed criteria for selecting candidates for the

succession plan.

Determine and review qualification, criteria, and procedures for nomination of directors, committees, Chief
Executive Officer, top management, and Company Secretary to propose for approval from the Board of
Directors’ meeting.

Determine policy, structure, and criteria for remuneration, whether in cash, securities or otherwise, of
directors, committees, Chief Executive Officer, top management, and employees in accordance with the
Company's strategy, goal and operating results as well as market conditions to propose for further
approval from the Board of Directors.

Review the roles and responsibilities of the Nominating and Compensation Committee in accordance with
the situation.

Perform any other activities as assigned by the Board of Directors.

2023, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee there were 11 meetings with nomination and

remuneration for all attendees while holding office.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been reported the annual performance in the report of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Risk Management Committee

> LN

)

Mr. Chirayu Chueyam ! Chairman

Mr. Priyong Teerasathain Director (Independent Director)

Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham * Director

Mr. Prapat Yorkhant 2 Director

Remarks: " The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on August 2, 2023

? The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on September 13, 2023

g Resigned from the director on February 1, 2024

Terms of positions

Term of the Risk Management Committee Member is one year. The Nominating & Compensation Committee

will annually consider and select appropriate persons from the members of the Board of Directors for further

consideration and appointment from the Board of directors in its first meeting after the Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders. However, the retired members are eligible to be re-elected for another term.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee

. Setclearbusiness directions, identify, analyze and investigate significant risk factors as well as determine

strategy for managing those risks to the Company’s acceptable risk level.
Set the risk management policy and propose for approval from the Board of Directors to use as guideline
for each division according to its responsibility with the following 5 aspects:

1) Strategic Risk

2) Operational Risk

3) Financial Risk

4) Compliance Risk

5) Information Technology Risk
Supervise to ensure effective communication of such measures thoroughly the Company and employees
continuously comply with those measures.
Review the roles and responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee in accordance with the situation.
Provide efficiently assessment and review of possible damage that may occur to ensure that risk
exploration covers all processes of the business operations.
Support and develop risk management to cover throughout the organization and ensure that itis complied
with the international standard.

Provide professional opinions from external consultants as necessary with company's expense.

Perform any other activities as assigned by the Board of Directors.

In 2023, the Risk Management Committee there were 2 meetings with all Risk Management Committee

members attending while holding office.

The Risk Management Committee has reported the annual performance in the Risk Management Committee's

report.

6) Sustainable Development Committee

> LoD

)

Mr. Chirayu Chueyam ! Chairman of Executive Committee

Ms. Warunee Poodee Director

Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham Director

Mr. Prapat Yorkhant ? Director

Remarks: " The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on August 2, 2023

% The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on September 13, 2023

° Resigned from the director on February 1, 2024
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Terms of positions

Term of each member is 1 year. The Nominating and Compensation Committee will annually consider and
select appropriate persons from the members of the Board of Directors and management and/or any qualified
candidates propose for further consideration and appointment from the Board of Directors in the first board
meeting after the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. However, the retired members are eligible to be

re-elected for another term.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Sustainable Development Committee

1. Set policy, strategy and action plan for sustainable development to comply with the Company’s business
operation in term of economy, society and environment for further approval from the Board of Directors.

2. Encourage and support the Company'’s activities to achieve the SD policy such as labor and employee
management, employee welfare, employee development, training and promotion, and development of
communities and society around the Company's area.

3. Monitor, review, follow up the operational progress and evaluate the effectiveness of SD policy
implementation.

4. Review the roles and responsibilities of the Sustainable Development Committee in accordance with the
situation.

5. Perform any other activities as assigned by the Board of Directors.

In 2023, the Sustainable Development Committee 4 meetings were held, with all members of the Sustainability
Development Committee attending while holding office. The Sustainability Development Committee has
reported its annual performance in the Sustainable Development Committee Report.

Investment Committee

)

1 .Mr. Chirayu Chueyam ! Chairman

2 Mr. Issara Roungsuk-udom ?

Director and Acting Secretary
3 Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham * Director and Secretary

Remarks: " The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on August 2, 2023
% The Board of Directors Meeting resolved to appointment as a director on September 13, 2023

® Resigned from the director on February 1, 2024

Terms of positions
Term of each member is 1 year. The Nominating and Compensation Committee will annually consider and
select appropriate persons from the members of the Board of Directors and managementand/or any qualified

candidates propose for further consideration and appointment from the Board of Directors in the first board
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meeting after the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. However, the retired members are eligible to be

re-elected for another term.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Investment Committee
To consider and formulate different types of investment policies. This includes the acquisition and disposal
of deposits, debt instruments, equity instruments, derivatives, mutual funds and other alternative assets

carefully such as:

1. Investment limit
Fund type
Acceptable risk level
Preferred return
Investment period

Investment portfolio ratio

R T

Supervisors responsible for investments such as securities companies (securities companies), asset

management companies (asset management companies), etc.

In 2023, the Investment Committee there were 16 meetings with all investment directors attending while in
office. The Investment Committee has reported its annual performance in the Investment Committee's

report
7.4 Information on Executives

7.4.1 The Executives as of March 1, 2024 consists of 15 people as follow:

1. Mr. Chirayu Chueyam ? Chief Executive Officer

2. Mr. Thawee Udomkitchote Acting - Vice Chief Executive Officer

3. Ms. Warunee Poodee Senior Vice President — Operation

4. Mrs. Sasakorn Suppatkul Vice President —Sales and CR

5. Mr. Praphan Somboonngern Vice President —Information Technology

6. Mr. Krissada Boontuang Assistant Vice President - Operation

7. Mr. Chanatip Pumhiran Assistant Vice President - Investment

8. Ms. Issara Roungsuk-udom K Assistant Vice President - Investment

9. Mr. Marut Dharmmapraphon g Assistant Vice President — Finance and Accounting
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10. Ms. Jarinee Ritgunto K Assistant Vice President - Human Resource

11. Mr. Kanawuthi Wattanadhirach ¥ Chief Executive Officer

12. Ms. Chutima Insawang o Assistant Vice President - Human Resource

13. Mr. Oran Sajjapagasit K Acting Assistant Vice President — Finance and Accounting

)

14. Ms. Reathairat Thongjarean ! Assistant Vice President — Finance and Accounting

15. Ms. Thidarat Kaewyai K Assistant Vice President — Finance and Accounting

Remarks: " Resigned to the position on March 1, 2023
2 Appointed from the position on August 3, 2023
K Resigned to the position on August 22, 2023
K Resigned to the position on August 29, 2023
R Appointed from the position on September 1, 2023
o Resigned to the position on September 20, 2023
7 Resigned to the position on December 1, 2023
® Appointed from the position on November 15, 2023

Y Appointed from the position on November 30, 2023

However, the organizational structure can be found in the topic “7.1 Corporate Governance Structure” and details of
educational qualifications and work experience, Attachment 1 "Details of directors, executives, controlling persons,
the person assigned to take the highest responsibility in Accounting and Finance, the person assigned to take direct
responsibility for accounting supervision and the Company’s secretary."

Roles and Responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer

1. Manage and control general business operation of the Company to comply with its objectives, policy and the
Articles of Association.

2. Consider investment plans before proposing to the Executive Board and the Board of Directors for further approval.

3. Consider the criteria and procedures for nomination and recruiting person to be top management together with the
Nomination and Compensation Committee.

4. Entering into any transaction biding the Company conforming to the Company’s Delegation of Authorities;

5. Carry out any assignment from the resolutions of the Board of Directors and/or the Company’s shareholders meetings.

The delegation of authorities, duties and responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer shall not be delegated or further
assigned that authorize Chief Executive Officer or its attorney to approve any transactions that Chief Executive

Officer or connected persons or any persons who may have conflict of interest have done with the Company or its
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subsidiaries unless such transactions are complied with the Company’s policy or principle approved by the Board

of Directors. Such connected transactions shall be proposed to the Board of Directors’ and / or shareholders’

meetings for approval to comply with the notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Securities and

Exchange Commission (SEC) or related law.

7.4.2 Management’'s Remuneration Policy

® Management’'s Remuneration Policy

Remuneration of the top managements shall be in accordance with principles and policies specified
by the Nominating & Compensation Committee. Such remuneration is in the appropriated level and
can be comparable with the rate of the same industry by taking into consideration duties,
responsibilities and performance of the Company as well as performance of each top management.

In addition, it must be able to motivate and retain the qualified and capable personnel.

Annual remuneration and bonus of the top managements shall have the fixed consideration criteria by
based on performance of the Company, overall economic conditions and performance of each top
managements. These criteria shall be explained in advance before they can be used for the
assessment at the end of the year. The Nominating and Compensation Committee shall consider prior

propose to the Board of Directors for approval.

Chief Executive Officer's Remuneration Policy (CEO)

Remuneration of the CEO is not only consideration in accordance with Management's Remuneration
Policy, but the Board of Directors also set the performance evaluation of Chief Executive Officer
annually by each Director in order to be a reference for remuneration consideration. The policy of

remuneration are as follows:

The purpose & link to the principle of
Category
remuneration
Fixed Pay Salary & other benefits, such as, To motivate and retain the competent
Provident fund Chief Executive Officer.
Short Term Incentive Annual bonus To reward for the success of achieving
the goals as defined for each year.
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Category

The purpose & link to the principle of

remuneration

Long Term Incentive

Compensation according to
Stock Option* & provident fund
the part that the Company
contributes and increases
according to year of work

experience

® To motivate and retain the
in competent Chief Executive Officer.
To ensure alignment between
interests of Chief Executive Officer
and shareholder.

To promote the growth and value

to shareholders in long term.

Remark * The Stock Option will be depend on the Board of Directors’ consideration which will be based on the appropriate time and

situation.
743 Cash Remuneration and Remuneration other
In 2023, the Company was paid remuneration to managements. The Company did not paid remuneration to
management who are directors or managements in subsidiary, the details are as following:
Remuneration Total Amount (Baht)
Salary 18,266,666.66
Bonus 2,204,200.00
Provident fund " 636,085.33
Social Security Contribution 65,250.00
Total 21,172,201.99
Remark " The Company paid provident fund to management at the rate of 3-10 percent of salary depending on the year of service

7.5 Human Resources

The Company and its subsidiaries had the number of employees’ during the past 3 years as following:

No. of employee (person)
Company
2023 2022 2021
1. Peer For You Plc. 1,170 1,181 1,163
2. One To One Professional Co., Ltd. 418 178 94
3. Inno Hub Co., Ltd. - 4 2
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4. EV Click Co., Ltd. - - ,

5. One To One (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. - - 10

6. Phygital Space Development Co., Ltd. - 24 -

7. CCS Carbon Clear Solution Co., Ltd. - - -

99 1,588 1,387 1,269

In 2023, the Company and its subsidiaries classify employees as follows:

No. of employee (person)
Company
Male Female Handicapped
1. Peer For You Plc. 326 832 12
2. One To One Professional Co., Ltd. 99 317 2
3. Inno Hub Co., Ltd. - - -
4. EV Click Co., Ltd. - - -
5. One To One (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. - - -
6. Phygital Space Development Co., Ltd. - - -
7. CCS Carbon Clear Solution Co., Ltd. - - -
Classified by Age Male Female

Under 30 year old 219 628
30-50 years old 203 513
Over 50 years old 9 16

Classified by position Male Female
Operational level 408 1,126
Executive level 16 28
Senior management 7 3

The Company and its subsidiaries have no significant labor disputes in the past 3 years.

The Company and its subsidiaries had expenses regarding employee which are consisting of salary, bonus,

provident fund and other remunerations which could be categorized as following details:
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Total expense (Million Baht)
Types of expense
2023 2022 2021
Salary 302.86 248.68 27717
Bonus 20.55 12.19 8.30
Provident Fund 3.62 3.47 3.51
Others 64.31 37.84 42.60

Human Resources Management and Development Policy

The company always regards that our employees are valuable and crucial fundamental for the company’s sustainable
success becoming a leader of contact center and customer Management Services, and digital technology. The Company
has determine human resource strategies and policies that emphasize on increasing efficiency of management and
human resource development and create 6 corporate cultures together, such as Digital skill, Managerial skill, Fast,
Service mind, Creativity & Digital solution and Self-Learning, which are suitable for business operations in the digital
age. Beginning with the analysis of manpower planning to prepare for business extension, competition, and any changes
in accordance with the policy, mission and culture as well as performance evaluation and potential assessment,
developing individual capabilities at all levels progressively. Indeed, these have to be compatible to Company’s business
vision, missions, operation, and corporate culture simultaneously for corporate sustainable growth, include supporting

new business of the company in the future.

1. Human Resources Management Policy

For responding to Corporate HR Policy, Human Resources Management Policy has mainly been concentrated on:

® Manpower planning Policy
To support all lines of business in the Company, The Company has applied a variety of HR indicators and
statistic tools in optimizing manpower planning also balancing among functional workloads to increase HRM
& HRD policy and cost efficiencies. These would enhance organizational design and restructuring as well as
enable HR manpower policy and costing most effective to company business and support new business

leading to meet company’s vision and mission.

® Recruitment & Selection Policy
The company continuously applies proactive approaches in recruiting capable people at all levels including
of sourcing and attracting all levels of candidates by launching Campus Tour and Activities Programs in
leading universities, coordinating with business recruitment agency and allied business network to build the

Company’s branding to all external candidates. In Selection Policy, the company places importance on the
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selection process, focusing on the most appropriate knowledge, ability and attribute by which their virtues
recruitment & selection combines cooperation among original affiliation, specialists in various careers and
human resources to ensure that the process of recruitment & selection on good corporate governance.
Furthermore, the company has relevantly applied new technology connection and social media to support
this process. These would be capable people at all levels and lead them to success their owned career

leading to be the company’s sustainable success.

Performance Development Policy:

The Company ensures an equitable and appropriate performance evaluation system through applying KPIs
approach cascading organization objectives through division and individual goals and corporate
competencies methodologies aligning to business strategic planning at all levels throughout the Company.
It is able to control, inspect, and manage performance of executives and employees at all levels. The
Company use results in ongoing human resource development in order to achieve the mission of the

company with efficiency and sustainability

Human Resources Management and Development Information Systems Policy:

The company conducts information technology to apply in human resource management and development
to support both human resource management and development process to be quick, accurate, appropriate,
safe and reduce costs in every step to efficiency, such as recruitment and selection of personnel By recruiting
and interviewing online. Helps determine the exact length of the interview and applicants do not have to
waste time traveling And can also screen job applicants in many areas, whether it is effective communication
and punctuality, Individual Development Plan for personnel development planning the Individual
Development Plan (IDP) for personnel development planning, E-Document Workflow application, and payroll
services with E-Payslip. Furthermore, The Company would fully utilize hris data to support in HRM & HRD

Policy decision making for sustainable organization achievement.

Compensation & Benefit Policy:

The company formulates compensation, benefit and welfare scheme by job analyzing and evaluating all
positions, responsibilities and their performances at all levels throughout the Company. By the way, company
essentially determines corporate compensation, benefit and welfare policy being compatible to
organizational position including of skill, accountability, knowledge, and competence related to business
operation and economic situation with comparative analysis among businesses in the same and diversified
industry as well as strictly complying to labor law and compliance. These might ensure that our employees

would receive appropriate and equitable compensation, benefit and welfare package being competitive in
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labor market or among leading companies in the industry. The Company has compensation and benefit
policy to provide appropriate compensation to employees, which is consistent with the performance in both
the short term compensation is the bonus and long term compensation is provident fund which a welfare that

is a financial guarantee for employees

e Employee Relation & Engagement Policy:
The company attaches great importance to the creation of inter-company Executives and employees at all
levels by organizing activities to promote relationships and engagement at all levels between executives and
employees as well as promote teamwork by focus on creating values and corporate culture for professional

collaboration.

e  Employee Innovation Recognition Policy :
The company encourages employees to participate in the development of innovations that are beneficial to
the organization. The company emphasized to promote innovation within the organization and therefore
established a subsidiary that provides digital service innovation to develop products, services and business

processes beneficial to the organization customers and the society

Human Resources Development Policy

The company has a consolidated HRD policy to continuously develop the knowledge and ability of employees
being appropriate to their owned position at all levels for leading them to success their owned career at the
Company and also achieving business’s needs and preparing staff for domestic and overseas business
expansion Therefore, the company aspires to develop employees in all careers at all levels by harmonizing a
wind range of development tools for increasing their skill, knowledge, capability through corporate culture and
code of conduct according with the Company strategy and operation not only for present day but the future

business as well.

® Career Development Policy:
The company defines career development policy by which the company further supports employees in all
careers to be continuously developed in their qualifications, knowledge and abilities. Particularly,
competency approach has been applied to categorize required business capabilities to Generic
competency, Managerial Competency and Functional Competency for analyzing, planning, and guiding to
individual competency development with diversified development methods for each levels. This is to build

and develop the potential of the employees to support the growth of the company’s business.
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Employee Training & Development Policy:

The company regards the employees as a key success factor in order to achieve business strategies and
goals, resulting in corporate sustainable growth. Hence, the company has HRD policy to continuously
develop all employees among qualifications, knowledge and ability in parallel with the human resources

development system at all levels as summarized below;

In-house Training
To encourages and develop the employees to facilitate the organization’s strategies and goals most

effectively and efficiently. The company therefore conducts training courses deem necessary, as follows:

For management:

The managerial competency program, courses have been designed for first line, middle and top management
level in order to develop in managerial competency to strengthen leadership and management skills for executives
as well as prepare promotion qualification in the future for pre-executive or talent employees. Moreover, this
program would elaborately lead executives to support organization's business growth and prepare the Company
to become business leader in the industry existed. These courses provide innovated and practical knowledge to
be applied to arrange managerial work such as Creating & Strategic Implementation Plan, Modern Supervisory

Program, etc.

For operational staffs:

The functional competency program, courses have been designed for developing and enhancing functional
knowledge and functional capability related to operational responsibilities and increasing skill of employees
for each career and division concerned such as Risk Management course, Project Management courses,
Compliance and Law course, Financial and Accounting Standard courses, Computer skill and Technology
related course, Marketing and Sales Management course, Information Technology & ISO standard courses,

Administrative Management and Skill standard and test development etc.

For all employees:
The Generic Competency Program, courses have been designed to ensure that the employees could perform
their work in accordance with the corporate culture at the most efficiency such as Orientation course for new

employees, Effective communication, Courses for corporate culture, courses of sustainability (ESG), etc.

Furthermore, to accommodate business expansion, develop employee in English communication skill and
achieve their competence continuously, the company thus developed English communication skills both

Classroom Training and E-Learning being used to support a large group of learner both new and current
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employees, This has enabled employee at all levels developing for this skill more conveniently at anywhere

and anytime.

External Training

In addition to In-house Training, the Company supports all executives and employees to acquire external
standard knowledge and skill from training certified courses conducted or instructed by external reputable
institutes both local and international in order to enhance their expertise, knowledge, ability and also updating
and exchanging new aspect with other organizations to apply some appropriate approach to organization

relevantly.

Knowledge Management :

For human resources developing in long term and adding business value, the company thus considers
information technology as an important tool for improving staff management efficiency, Project has been
implemented, this promotes knowledge management throughout organization and responds to business’

mission continuously and sustainably.

Talent Management Policy and Succession Planning :

The company designed special HRM & HRD programs and tools to prepare excellent performance and high
potential employee (talent) for their succession planning including of Job rotation, Job Enlargement &
Enrichment, Job assignment, Talent monitoring, and fast-track program preparation. By encouraging them
through employee engagement programs as well, these would motivate talent to full utilize their owned skill,
knowledge, competence and potential to dedicate performing all missions to achieve the Company’s goals

most efficiently.

Furthermore, the company always recognizes the importance of having a succession plan, especially at the
top management level. The Company organized Career Path Development Plan to ensure continuity when

there is a vacancy or to support expansion of business.

Summary of training to executives and employees in 2023

Training course No. of trainee No. of Hrs.

In-House training

- Executive 2 48
- Employee 34 422
Total 36 470
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Training course No. of trainee No. of Hrs.
External training
- Executive 10 15
- Employee - -
Total 10 15
Online Training No. of hours No. of trainee
- Executive 1216 49
- Employee 4429 488
Total 5,648 537

Cost of training for executives and employees

In 2023, The Company had cost of training for in-house and external were at Baht 3,968,657.72. The average training for all

employees is 20.08 hours/person/year. Which is more than the standard set by the Department of Labor of 6 hours/person/year.

8.2 Report on the results of duty performance of the Audit Committee in the past year

Details as attachment 6: Report of the Audit Committee

e

9138 /www.onetoonecontacts.com/investor-relations/56-1-one-report/56-1-one-report-2566

8.3 Summary of the results of duty performance of subcommittees

Details as attachment 7:

Report of the Nominating and Compensation committee

Report of the Corporate Governance Committee

Report of the Risk Management Committee

Report of the Sustainable Development Committee

Report of the Investment Committee

2 QR Code 1178 /www.onetoonecontacts.com/investor-relations/56-1-one-report/56-1-one-report-2566
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Internal Control and Related Party Transactions

Internal Control

The Board of Directors and Company Executives has placed great important on the Company’s internal
control system, acknowledging that it is an important mechanism for mitigation business risks, run operations

efficiently and to allocate Company resources efficiently to achieve the Company goals.

The Board of Directors has assigned the Audit Committee to take responsibility on adequacy of the internal
control system, the capability and efficiency of the company’s risk management system, ensure the
company’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. Prevent potential conflicts of interest arising
from transactions with related parties, oversee the company’s operations and monitor wrongful or
unauthorized use of company assets and to protect the company’s assets from loss, leakage or fraudulent
misconduct. Thereby, the company has established mechanisms to monitor and keep track of the operations.
The internal audit department which works independently, is responsible for auditing and evaluating
company performance, the adequacy of the internal control system, review the risk management system and
the corporate governance in all departments of the company. Furthermore, adopting compliance pursuant
to the international standards of COSO (The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tredway
Commission) standards and Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework to support the implementation of
the internal control system and risk management for the company to operate effectively and efficiently. In
addition, the Audit Committee has assessed the adequacy of the internal audit department, reporting to the
Board of Directors annually by referencing the “Internal Control System Sufficiency Assessment Form” of the

Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand (SEC).

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee holds the opinion that the company has an adequate and

effective internal control system, with the key contents summarized as follows:

e Control Environment
The Company adheres to and operates with integrity and ethics, with operations at both the executive
and operational levels acting in compliance with the laws, regulations, policies and anti-corruption
measures. A clearly defined organizational structure, with the scope of duties and authorities of each
position stated in writing. Including clear approval roles and responsibilities within the organization,

creating balance and cross check between one another to ensure an efficient work flow.
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® Risk Assessment
The Company recognizes the importance of proper risk management and the impact such risk could have
on the Company’s operations. Therefore, the Company has assessed internal and external risk factors,
including, strategic risk, operational risk, regulatory risk, financial risks, technological and data risk, risk
of fraud and corruption. These key risks are categorized according to the impact and probability
(likelihood) of it occurring within each operational process. In order to formulate a risk management plan,
annually review the ever changing internal and external risks. To be able to manage the risks at each
operational level appropriately and keeping in line with various important factors effectively.

e Control Activities
The Company has implemented control measures in order to monitor and cover various operational
processes in order to reduce potential risks. This includes setting clear guidelines and assigning
responsibilities to each personnel (job position), conducting audits, monitoring negative impacts,
controlling access to sensitive information, implementing data backup systems, controlling and
monitoring company assets, auditing work and operations to ensure compliance with regulations and
rules, operational manuals and guidelines. These measures provide confidence the Company has a

sufficient and adequate internal control system maintaining efficient operations.

® |nformation & Communication System
The Company has placed great importance on the informational systems and data communication,
promoting and continually developing an accurate and up to date system. Thereby, utilizing modern and
efficient technologies, including the secure management of information beginning from the collection,
processing, storage and follow-up of the information to enable for an effective work performance and the
use of data to assist in the work of the management, employees, shareholders and stakeholders and to
ensure that the relevant parties receive complete and accurate information within a reasonable amount
of time. Moreover, the company has established policies on the security and use of company information
in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles to present accurate, complete and
transparent financial information which are also certified by a qualified external auditor.

® Monitoring Activities
The Board of Directors has established an internal control system covering all aspects of the Company’s
operations including accounting and finance, operational performance, compliance with the laws and
regulations, custody and monitoring of assets. The Company has followed up on the performances to
ensure that it meets the set goals and meeting with the Board of Directors to ensure there is a system to
follow up on the operations. In addition, the Company has an internal audit unit that perform its duties with

independence from the management, monitoring compliance to the internal control system on a regular
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basis, along with providing consultation to improve assessment results that are below standards. The
Company has encouraged the internal audit department to perform its duties in accordance with the
international standards on auditing, where the responsible individual in each department oversees the
compliance with the internal control system, the internal audit department inspects and audits the

operation, then, directly reports independently to the Audit Committee.

Summary of Board of Directors and the Audit Committee opinions on the Internal Control

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee holds the opinion that through various assessments of the
internal control mechanisms, including, internal control in the organization, risk assessment, operational
control, informational and communication systems, data security and monitoring system that the company
has an adequate and sufficient internal control system in place appropriate to the Company’s business
operations. The company has an acceptable level of risk management, accounting and financial reporting
systems that are accurate, reliable, in compliance with the law and the regulations pertaining to the business.
The external auditor did not express any notable opinion on the company’s internal control system in the audit

report.

Internal Audit

The internal audit department works independently, reporting directly to the Audit Committee and conducts
its work according to the Charter of Internal Audit where the duties and responsibilities of the department are
clearly defined. In addition, the department has developed a risk-based audit plan that uses risk levels to
determine the priorities of various tasks. The internal audit department then, communicates its plans to the
senior management and Board of Directors by exchanging information, coordinating, and by considering the

services of quality assurance providers and consultants.

Head of Internal Audit Department

The Audit Committee meeting N0.1/2022 on February 24, 2022 approved the appointment of Mr. Thatchawit
Jarukasemthitipat as the Head of the Internal Audit Department. The Audit Committee reviewed the qualifications
of the Head of Internal Audit, and holds the opinion that the position is held by a person with the proper

capability, knowledge, and work experience to adequately perform the duties that are summarized as follows:
1) Proposing the annual audit plan to the Audit Committee for approval.

2) Overseeing the operations of the internal audit department, provide consultation and ensure

compliance with regulations according to the Company’s internal control system.
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3) Head of Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Board of Directors, which supervises the
internal audit department to operate independently, fairly, and perform duties in accordance with

the professional standards of auditing.

In this regard, the appointment, dismissal and transfer of the head of the Internal Audit department shall be

approved by the Audit Committee.
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9.2 Connected Transaction

The Company had disclosed the connected transactions for the past 3 years on the Company website (www.onetoonecontacts.com). The Company had

transactions with related parties who might have conflicts of interest for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 as follows:

Related Party Relationship Transaction Type A AV Necessity
(THB. millions) (THB. millions)
1 .Inno Hub Co.,
- Joint Diractors: - Interest income 0.445 1.054 | - Short term loans
Ltd.
1 .Mr. Kanawuthi - The company uses services to
(INH) - Buy services 0.919 0.060
Wattanadhirach manage
2 Mr. Chaiwat applications for Pepsi, Exxon, Honda
Phithakraktham projects.
Audit Committee Opinion
Charging service fees and interest
according
to the price and normal trading
conditions
2 .0ne to One - Joint Diractors: - Accrued income - -
Professional Co., 1 .Mr. Kanawuthi
- Management service income 0.660 10.080 | - Management service fee
Ltd. Wattanadhirach
2 .Mr. Chaiwat
(OTP) - Project service income 17.556 62.811 | - Call Center service
Phithakraktham
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Related Party Relationship Transaction Type A2 A0 Necessity
(THB. millions) (THB. millions)
- Turnkey Project, Thammasat
- Construction contract income 1.006 -
University
- Interest income 0.120 - | - Short-term loan company
- Service cost 5.527 - | - The company uses maid services

Audit Committee Opinion

Charging service fees and interest
according
to the price and normal trading

conditions

Remark : Phygital Space Development Company Limited ceases to be an associated company of One to One Contacts Public Company Limited effective March 31, 2023
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Related Party Relationship Transaction Type Az A Necessity
(THB. millions) (THB. millions)
3 .Phygital Space - Service income 2.420 - Platform development cost
Development Co., - Service sales income 1.751 - Service fees for MA, iCloud, Consulting,
. - Management service
Ltd. (PSD) 1.308 Mobile Game Application
income
- Allowance for
0.245 - Management service fee
impairment
of intangible assets - Differences from debt payments, allowance
for impairment of digital assets
Audit Committee Opinion
Charging service fees and interest according
to the price and normal trading conditions
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The Criteria for Connected Transactions, which might have conflicts of interest

1. Necessity and Rationale of the Transactions

The Audit Committee had the opinion that the above said inter-company transactions were reasonable and
necessary for the Company's operations. The conditions were set according to the general trade terms and
conditions.

2 Measures and Steps of Approval for the Connected Transactions

The connected transactions will be reviewed by the Audit Committee in order to prevent conflicts of interest
and proposed to the Board of Directors 'meeting and the shareholders' meeting for approval respectively by
concerning on the terms, conditions and value of the transactions.
In this regard, the directors, the management and the stakeholders who have conflicts of interest will not
participate in approving the connected transactions. The approval on the connected transactions will be in
accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act, regulations, announcements, orders or requirements of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand.
2.1 Principles for business transactions with general trade terms and conditions
The connected transactions that are general trade conditions must be approved in principles by the Board
of Directors. The management can approve the transactions if their trade terms and conditions are the
same manner that any person should do with general contracting parties in the same situation on the basis
of bargaining power without any influence in the status of a director, executive or related person.
The Board of Directors Meeting no. 6/2019 that was held on November 6, 2019 which the Audit Committee
members participated, approved in principles of the criteria for establishing the policy of connected
transactions as follows:
® Pricing for selling goods and services is based on market price. If there is no market price, it will be
based on cost plus margin which must be not over 15% .
® Pricing for the Contact Center Service is based on cost plus margin which must be not lower than
10%.
® Pricing for IT service of parent company is based on the pricing specified in agreed contract. The
parent company set the pricing by base on cost plus margin which must be not over 5%
® Pricing for selling fixed assets is based on net book value plus margin as the condition of assets.
® Pricing for space rental and utility fee is based on market price which is assessed by comparing the
pricing of nearby areas or the pricing which have the same charging rate as specified in effective

agreement of the company.
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All general business transactions have to be reported at the meeting of the Audit Committee and the
meeting of the Board of Directors on quarterly basis.

In such case of business transaction which Audit Committee has inexperienced, an independent financial
advisor will be appointed to provide opinion to the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors' and
shareholders for approval respectively in order to ensure that the transactions are conducted reasonably
by considering on the Company's benefits. All connected transactions are disclosed in 56-1 One Report

and financial notes, which have been reviewed by the external auditor of the Company.

2.2 Policy and Future Trend of the Connected Transactions

In the future, the Company may proceed the connected transactions as necessary by considering on general
trade terms and conditions, which can refer to the same business type of the third parties, and adhering to
the necessity and the Company's benefits as well as strictly following SET’s regulations and notifications.

In case that the connected transactions are proceeded, the Audit Committee's opinion of the necessity and
the appropriateness of the transactions will be required as well as details of the transactions will be disclosed

in 56-1 One Report and financial notes, which have been reviewed by the external auditor of the Company.
8. Key performance in corporate governance report

8.1 Summary of the performance of the Board of Directors in the past year

In 2023, even though the company is faced with the epidemic situation of the Corona virus (Covid-19), the
Board of Directors still attaches great importance to the corporate governance of the company. By reviewing
policies and operating guidelines to ensure compliance with good governance including monitoring and

supervising the business to meet the set goals and considering the benefits of all stakeholders.

8.1.1 Selection, development and evaluation of duty performance of the Board of Directors
(| Independent Director

The Board of Directors stipulates those independent directors must have all the qualifications in
accordance with the rules and conditions prescribed in the Notification of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Capital Market Supervisory Board and Stock Exchange of Thailand each

independent director must meet the following criteria:
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Qualification of Independent Director

Holding no more than 0.5 percent of the total number of voting rights of the Company, parent company.
Subsidiaries, affiliates, major shareholder; or controlling person of the Company, including the shares held

by related persons of the independent director.

Neither being nor used to be an Executive director, employee, staff, or advisor who receives a salary; or
controlling person of the Company, parent company, subsidiaries, affiliates, same-level subsidiaries, major
shareholder or controlling person of the Company unless the foregoing status has ended for at least two

years prior to the date of appointment.

Not being a person who is related by blood or legal registration as father, mother, spouse, sibling and
child. Including spouse of child, other directors, executives, major shareholders, controlling persons, or

persons to be nominated as director, executive or controlling person of the Company or subsidiaries.

Neither having nor used to have a business relationship with the Company. parent company, subsidiaries,
associate company, major shareholder or controlling person, in the manner which may interfere with his
independent judgment and neither being nor used to be a significant shareholder or controlling person of
any person having a business relationship with the Company. parent company, subsidiaries, affiliates,
major shareholder or controlling person, unless the foregoing relationship have ended for at least two years

prior to the date of appointment:

Neither having nor used to have a business relationship with the Company. parent company, subsidiaries,

associate company, major shareholder or controlling person, in the manner which may interfere with his

independent judgment, and neither being nor used to be a significant shareholder or controlling person of any

person having a business relationship with the Company. Parent company, subsidiaries, affiliates, major

shareholder or controlling person, unless the foregoing relationship have ended for at least two years prior to the

date of appointment.

1.

Neither being nor used to be an auditor of the Company. parent company, subsidiaries, affiliates, major
shareholder or controlling person, and not being a significant shareholder, controlling person, or partner
of an audit fim which employs auditors of the Company, parent company, subsidiaries, associate company,
major shareholder or controlling person, unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than two
years prior to the date of appointment.

Neither being nor used to be a provider of any professional services including those as legal advisor or
financial advisors who receives service fees exceeding two million baht per year from the Company, parent

company, subsidiaries, associate companies, major shareholder or controlling person, and not being a
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significant shareholder. Controlling person or partner of the provider of professional services unless the
foregoing relationship has ended not less than two years prior to the date of appointment.

Not being a director appointed as a representative of directors of the Company, major shareholder or
shareholder who is related to the Company's major shareholder.

Not undertaking any business of the same nature and in significant competition with the business of the
Company or subsidiaries or not being a significant partner in a partnership or an executive director,
employee, staff, advisor who earning regular monthly salary, or holding shares exceeding 1 percent of the
total number of shares with voting rights of another company which undertakes a business of the same
nature and in significant competition with the business of the Company or subsidiaries.

Not having any characteristic which cause the inability to express independent opinions on the Company's

business operations.

Q Nomination of Directors and Management
® Nomination of Directors

The Nominating and Compensation Committee has been appointed by the Board of Directors to
select, and nominate appropriate candidates for positions of members of the Boards and other
committees, Chief Executive Officer, other executives, and company secretary as well as
consider the appropriate remuneration for such directors and management with the following
criteria and procedures:

1. The Nominating and Compensation Committee will select and nominate the appropriate
candidate regarding qualifications, experience, knowledge, ability that will be beneficial to
the Company and consider the diversification in the board’s structure, including gender, age,
ethnicity and nationality. The Nominating and Compensation Committee will also consider
the necessary skills that are still lacking to achieve the Company’s business strategy and
using the database of IOD. The appropriate candidates, who have qualifications as specified
by the relevant laws, will propose to the Board of Directors’ or the Shareholders' Meeting for
approval in accordance with the Company's Articles and Association.

2. For election of independent directors, the Nominating and Compensation Committee will
nominate any person who is fully complied with the qualifications of Independent Directors
under the Company’s policy and requirements of the SEC and the SET to propose to the
Board of Directors’ and/or the Shareholders’ Meeting for approval in case of rotation or others.

3. Determining whether to recommend a director for re-election, the Nomination and

Compensation Committee will consider relevant factors such as past performance, directors’
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dedication, history of attendance and participation in meeting, number of listed companies
that each director holds tenure in of not exceeding five listed companies, and other
contributions to the activities undertaken by the Board of Directors. In the case of
independent directors, their respective independent qualifications shall also be considered.
. The appointment of the Board members shall comply with the Company’s Articles of
Association and all relevant laws. Selection of the directors shall be transparent and clear
through initially consider of the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee with the
following criteria and procedures in the shareholders’ meeting:

1) Each shareholder shall have one vote on each share.

2) In voting, a shareholder shall vote in accordance with the number of votes each
shareholder has under (1) for one or several directors. The said shareholder may
not allot any number of his votes to any person.

3) The person obtaining the highest and higher votes respectively shall be elected as
directors equal to the number of directors required or ought to be elected at such a
meeting. In the event that persons receiving votes in respective orders receive
equal votes and the number of directors exceeds the positions required or ought to
be, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.

The Company proposed shareholders to elect the directors on an individual basis to allow

shareholders to elect the desirable directors.

In case a directorship becomes vacant by any reason other than the expiration of the term,
the Board of Directors shall elect a person possessing the qualifications and being under no
prohibitions under the relevant laws as a replacing director at the Board of Directors’
Meeting, unless the remaining term of such director is less than two months. The replacing
director shall hold office only for the remaining term of the replaced director. The resolution
of the Board of Directors’ Meeting must be passed by votes of not less than three-fourths of
the remaining directors.

. For nomination of sub-committee, the Nominating and Compensation Committee will
consider appropriate knowledge and ability, composition of the entire committees, criteria of
directorship and independence of director prior to propose to the Board of Directors for

approval.
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® Nomination of Chief Executive Officer

The company has criteria and methods for selecting the Chief Executive Officer. By the
Nominating and Compensation Committee considers selecting individuals with knowledge, abilities,
experience, and expertise. To present the Board of Directors to consider and approve the

appointment.

Criteria for selecting the Chief Executive Officer

1. Qualifications of the Chief Executive Officer Must be a person with knowledge and ability
Have management skills and experience in running a business that is consistent with the
company's business Has specific expertise that is beneficial to the company's business
and consistent with business operations strategies

2. Have leadership qualities Have a broad vision Have morals and ethics as well as having a
good attitude to the organization. Able to devote sufficient time that is beneficial to the
business operations of the company.

3. Have a transparent work history including must not have prohibited characteristics as

specified by the announcement of The Securities and Exchange Commission.

® Nomination of Top Management

The Company has criteria and procedures for nomination of top management with the process
start from recruiting internal and external persons who have leadership skills, ability to manage
the organization and good understanding of company’s products and services and propose to
the Nominating and Compensation Committee consider favor of person to be Top Management

to propose to the Board of Directors for approval.

a Executive Succession Plan

The Company is aware of the importance of executive succession plan when any executive position
is vacant. To create confidence for investors, shareholders and employees on the continuity
operation of the Company, an Executive Succession Plan has been considered. The potential
candidate will be selected, trained, and developed to be ready to accommodate the vacant position

in the future. The Company will review the succession plan for top management on an annual basis.
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In addition, the Company should encourage the Chief Executive Officer to invite key management
to attend the Board of Directors’ meetings and/or the Executive Committee’s meetings to present
details on the agenda items related to matters that they are directly responsible for, and to allow the

board to gain familiarity with key management and assist succession planning.

The assessment of the Board of Directors, Sub-Committees, Chief Executive Officer / General

Manager, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit

1 . Board Self-Assessment and Director Self-Assessment
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for self-assessment of the Board of
directors and individual director to annually review and evaluate directors’ performance to
comply with Corporate Governance of the Company. Comments and recommendations from the

assessments are further considered in the Board of Directors’ meeting for improvement.

® Board Self-Assessment
The Corporate Governance Committee has initiated the Self Assessment form for board
members to review and evaluate their performance for 2023. The Board of Directors meeting
no. 18/2023 held on November 14, 2023, approved assessment form and submitted to all

directors for assessment. The questionnaire covered the following areas:

1. Structure and Qualification
Roles and Responsibilities
Meeting

Accountability

Relationship with management

I T

Self Development and Development

The 2023 Board Self-Assessment, it has an excellent evaluation by obtaining average score

of 97.56%.

® Director Self-Assessment
The Corporate Governance Committee has initiated the Self Assessment form for director to
evaluate their performance. The result of assessment was used to develop the performance
of director to efficiency. The assessment form, approved by the Board of Directors in its
No0.18/2023 on November 14, 2023, was submitted to all directors for assessment. The

questionnaire covered the following areas:
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1. Structure and Qualification

2. Meeting

3. Roles and Responsibilities

4. Self-development

The 2023 Director Self-Assessment, it has an excellent evaluation by obtaining average score

of 99.02%.

2 . The Audit Committee Self-Assessment
The Audit Committee Self-Assessment is implemented for the Audit Committee to evaluate its
own performance in the past year with regards to the compliance with prudent practices and

effectiveness. The questionnaire covered the following areas:

1. Structure and Qualification
Meeting

Roles & Responsibilities
Development & Training

Auditing Activities

@ o M w0 D

Relationship between head of internal audit unit, external auditors and the

Company’s executives

The 2023 Audit Committee Self-Assessment, it has an excellent evaluation by obtaining

average score of 97.42%.

3. Sub-Committee Self-Assessment
The Corporate Governance Committee has initiated the self-assessment form of sub-
committees annually. The assessment result is considered to continuously improve the
performance of the committee and to comply with roles and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board of Directors. The assessment form, approved by the Board of Directors meeting no.
18/2023 on November 14, 2023, was submitted to all sub-committee’s members for
assessment. The criteria for self-assessments of Executive committee, Corporate Governance
Committee, Nominating and Compensation Committee, Risk Management Committee,

Sustainable Development Committee, and Investment Committee covered the following areas:

1. Structure and Qualification
2. Meeting

3. Roles & Responsibilities
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4. Development and Training.

The resolutions of Sub-Committee Self-Assessment are shown below:

Result Average Score (%)

1. Executive Committee Excellent 90.55
2. Risk Management Committee Excellent 97.71
3. Nominating and Compensation

Excellent 100.00
Committee
4. Corporate Governance Committee Excellent 100.00
5. Sustainable Development Committee Excellent 100.00
6. Investment Committee Excellent 100.00

4. Chief Executive Officer Assessment
The Corporate Governance Committee conducts Chief Executive Officer Assessment annually.
The form has been approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting no. 18/2023 on November
14, 2023, and was submitted to all directors for assessment. Assessment result would be

considered for remuneration adjustment. The questionnaire covered the following areas:

—_

Leadership

Strategy formulation

Financial planning and performance
Board relations

Risk management and internal control
Human resources management
Succession

Product and service knowledge

© © N o o &~ w D

Good corporate governance and code of business conduct

The 2023 Chief Executive Officer Assessment, evaluated in the above 9 topics, it has an

Excellent evaluation by obtaining average score of 96.69%.

5. Company Secretary Assessment
The Board of Directors conducts the Company Secretary assessment annually. Results of the

assessment will use to develop working performance of Company Secretary to support the
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Board of Directors in compliance with the roles and regulations of the SET and the SEC. In
2023, the Board of Directors considered the criteria of Company Secretary Assessment in its
meeting no. 18/2023 on November 14, 2023. The form of Assessment was submitted to each

director for assessment in the following areas:

1. Knowledge
. Compliance

. Communication and Coordination

2

3

4. Documentation
5. Meeting

6

. Corporate Governance

The 2023 Company Secretary Assessment, evaluated in the above 6 topics, it has an excellent

evaluation by obtaining average score of 98.21%.

. Head of Internal Audit Assessment

The Audit Committee is assigned by the Board of Directors to assess performance of Head of
Internal Audit annually. Results of the assessment will use to develop working performance of
Head of Internal Audit and Internal Audit Office in both audit work and independent consulting
on governance, risk management and other control. The form has been approved by the Audit
Committee in its meeting No0.4/2023 on November 14, 2023, and was submitted to each

member for assessment in the following areas:

1. Purpose, Authority and Responsibility
Independence and Objectivity
Qualification and Professional
Continuous Improvement

Internal Audit Office Management

IR T

Knowledge and Competency

The 2023 Head of Internal Audit Assessment, evaluated in the above 6 topics, it has an

excellent evaluation by obtaining average score of 98.09%.
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Q Development of Directors and Management

® Development of Directors
The Company specified that whenever there is a change of director, there shall be an
orientation for a new director every time to get sufficient information before his or her post. In
addition, director’'s manual, document, and useful information which shall be beneficial to the
duty operation of the new director shall be provided, in order that such new director can be
ready to conduct his/her duty. The Company Secretary shall be a coordinator for the

orientation with the following matters:

[ Matters that should be known: Nature of business, business structure, directors’ structure,
scope of power and duty, related laws as well as policies and practical guidelines for
supervising the Company’s business.

®  (General knowledge of the business: Business operation guidelines to enhance knowledge
and understanding on business and various operations of the Company.

®  Arrange to have a meeting with the Chairman and the Executive Chairman /CEO to enquire

in-depth information about business operation of the Company.

In addition, to support and increase knowledgeable of the directors, the Company also
encourages all directors to strengthen their skills and knowledge for performing their duties
including knowledge and understanding of relevant law and standards, and other applicable
obligations, risk factors, and the Company’s business environment. The board should receive
accurate, timely and clear information, including timely and regular updates. Periodical training
will be provided especially the Director Accreditation Program (DAP) and Director Certification
Program (DCP) and other programs relating to director which arranged by the Thai Institute of
Directors (I0OD), 1 director had joined DCP program, and 5 directors had joined DAP program.
|OD training course of each director is shown in “Directors, Management, Company Secretary and
Head of Internal Audit”. Each year, the Company shall submit the training courses arranged by
various institutes to the Committee members for their consideration on attendance pursuant to

their needs.

® Development of Management

The Company develops our management through chief executive courses to further enhance their

leadership skills and knowledge, resulting in higher management efficiency. This will also prepare
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them for future promotions in accordance with their line of work and further enhance all lines of
business in the company to be able to compete and take leading positions in their respective industry

both in the present and in the future.

In 2023, there were managements attended the training courses to enhance their knowledge. The

details are as follows:

Managements Training courses
1. Mr. Chirayu Chueyam —  Wealth of Wisdom 3/2023
2. Mr. Thawee Udomkitchote — Company valuation techniques to suit the business In the

present era

3. Ms. Warunee Poodee —  Apply for renewal of license to be a casualty insurance broker
no.1

—  ESG Profressionals Forum 2023, SET

4. Mrs. Sasakorn Suppatkul —  Successful Formulation & Execution of Strategy (SFE)

5. Mr. Praphan — Organizations that drive strategy with data and artificial
Somboonngemn intelligence

6. Mr. Krissada Boontuang — Law for business: Basic laws for business.

8.1.2 Meeting of the Board of Directors and Remuneration for Directors

° Meeting of the Board of Directors

1) The Board of Directors
The Board of Directors meeting shall be attended by at least half of all the directors to constitute
a quorum. In the case of the Chairman of the Board of Directors is not present or unable to
discharge his duties, if any the meeting has Vice-Chairman, he/she shall serve as a Chairman. If
there is no Vice-Chairman or such Vice-Chairman is unable to discharge his duties, the directors
who attend the meeting, shall elect one of their members as the Chairman of the meeting and
votes. The Board of Directors set its quorum of the meeting to be at least 2/3 of all directors

attending the meeting.

The Board of Directors sets the meeting schedule in advance throughout the year and the
schedule of the meeting has been set at least 6 meetings per year. The meeting schedule will
be sent to each director by the Company Secretary for preparation and arrangement for

meeting participation. However, additional unscheduled board meetings may be called upon
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appropriate notice at any time to address specific needs of the Company. The operating results

will be regularly reviewed. The notice of the Board of Directors’ meeting as well as meeting

materials will be delivered by the Company Secretary to all directors at least 7 days prior to

the meeting date for consideration. To comply with the Company’s Articles of Association,

unless any urgent matters, the notice of the Board of Directors’ meeting will be delivered by

the Company Secretary to all directors 7 working days prior to the meeting date for

consideration. In addition, if directors would like to propose the agenda, they will inform prior

to the meeting date or propose as other matters in the meeting.

The average length of the meeting is approximately 2 hours. In 2023, there were 22 meetings

as follows:

Directors

Position

Date of

appointment

Term of
position

) year / month(

Number of
attendance / Total

number of meeting

1 .Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul -

Independent Director /
Chairman of Audit
Committee / Chairman of
Nominating and
Compensation Committee
/ Corporate Governance

Committee Member

August 2, 2023

5 Month

9/9

2 Mr. Priyong Teerasathain

Independent Director /
Chairman of Corporate
Governance Committee /
Audit Committee Member /
Nominating and
Compensation Committee
Member / Risk
Management Committee

Member

March 8, 2021

2 Year 9 Month

22/22

3 .Ms. Natenapa Pusittanont b

Independent Director /

Audit Committee Member

September 14,
2023

3 Month

6/6

4 Mr. Chirayu Chueyam -

Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors /

Nominating and

August 2, 2023

5 Month

9/9
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Directors

Position

Date of

appointment

Term of
position

) year / month(

Number of
attendance / Total

number of meeting

Compensation Committee
Member / Corporate
Governance Committee
Member / Chairman of
Risk Management
Committee / Chairman of
Executive Committee /
Chairman of Sustainable
Development Committee /
Chairman of Investment
Committee / Chief

Executive Officer

5 .Mr. Prapat Yorkhant b

Director / Executive
Committee Member / Risk
Management Committee
Member / Sustainable
Development Committee

Member

August 15, 2023

4 Month

8/8

6 .Mr. Issara Roungsuk-udom -

Director / Investment
Committee Member / AVP

— Investment

December 12,

2023

1 Month

22

7 .Mr. Rathapol Limthongchai h

Director

March 1, 2024

0/0

8 .Dr. Pakorn Apaphant '

Independent Director /
Chairman of the Board of
Directors / Chairman of
Audit Committee /
Chairman of the Nominating
and Compensation
Committee / Corporate
Governance Committee

Member

December 14,

2020

3 Year

18/19

9 .Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham

Director / Executive

Committee Member /

December 14,

2020

3 Year 1 Month

22/22
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Directors

Position

Date of

appointment

Term of
position

) year / month(

Number of
attendance / Total

number of meeting

Investment Committee
Member / Risk Management
Committee Member /
Sustainable Development

Committee Member

10 .Mr. Somkit Likitparinya ' Director January 14, 2022 1 Year 11 19/19
Month
11 .Dr. Chuket Ounijitti ' Independent Director / April 28, 2021 2 Year 5 Month 16/16
Audit Committee Member
12 Mr. Kanawuthi Wattanadhirach™ | Chairman of Risk December 14, 2 Year 8 Month 14/14
Management Committee / 2020
Chairman of Sustainable
Development Committee /
Corporate Governance
Committee Member /
Chairman of Executive
Committee / Chief Executive
Officer / Chairman of
Investment Committee /
Nominating and
Compensation Committee
Member / Director
13 .Assoc.Prof.Dr.Apiwat Director June 23, 2023 2 Month 3/3
Muttamara "
14 Mr. Sarayut Yimruen Director April 25, 2023 4 Month 8/9
15 .Mr. Pattarakit Techasikarn Independent Director / April 28, 2021 2 Year 3 Month 12/12
Audit Committee Member
16 .Mrs. Nareerat Director April 25, 2023 2 Month 5/6
Ngernnamchokhtanarat "
17 .Mr. Bundit Sapianchai Vice Chairman of the May 2, 2023 2 Month 3/4
Board of Directors
18 .Mr. Panom Ratanarat - Director December 14, 2 Year 3 Month 5/5

2020
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_ ———
Directors Position Date of Term of Number of
appointment position attendance / Total

) year / month( number of meeting

19 .Mr. Subhasiddhi Rakkasikorn 1 Year 10 5/5
Director June 11, 2021
Month
20 .Ms. Saowanee Kaoubol Director November 10, 1 Year 2 Month 11
2021

Remark  Directors retire by rotation and resign from the position
— Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham resigned from the director on March 1, 2024
— Dr. Pakorn Apaphant resigned from the director on December 11, 2023
— Mr. Somkit Likitparinya resigned from the director on December 11, 2023
— Dr. Chuket Ounijitti resigned from the director on September 14, 2023
— Mr. Kanawuthi Wattanadhirach resigned from the director on August 22, 2023
— Assoc.Prof.Dr.Apiwat Muttamara resigned from the director on August 22, 2023
— Mr. Sarayut Yimruen resigned from the director on August 15, 2023
— Mr. Pattarakit Techasikarn resigned from the director on July 27, 2023
— Mrs. Nareerat Ngernnamchokhtanarat resigned from the director on June 28, 2023
— Mr. Bundit Sapiancha resigned from the director on June 22, 2023
— Mr. Panom Ratanarat expiration of term of directorshipon on March 14, 2023
— Mr. Subhasiddhi Rakkasikorn resigned from the director on April 28, 2023
— Ms. Saowanee Kaoubol resigned from the director on February 2, 2023
" Directors appointed to the position
— Mr. Rathapol Limthongchai has been appointed as a Director of the company on March 1, 2024
— Mr. Issara Roungsuk-udom has been appointed as a Director of the company on December 12, 2023
— Ms. Natenapa Pusittanont has been appointed as a Director of the company on September 14, 2023
— Mr. Prapat Yorkhant has been appointed as a Director of the company on August 15, 2023
— Mr. Chirayu Chueyam has been appointed as a Director of the company on August 2, 2023
— Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul has been appointed as a Director of the company on August 2, 2023
— Assoc.Prof.Dr.Apiwat Muttamara has been appointed as a Director of the company on June 23, 2023
— Mr. Bundit Sapiancha has been appointed as a Director of the company on May 2, 2023
— Mr. Sarayut Yimruen has been appointed as a Director of the company on April 25, 2023

— Mrs. Nareerat Ngernnamchokthanarat has been appointed as a Director of the company on April 25, 2023

In 2023, the Board of Directors considered the following agendas:
- Approved the Company’s financial statement
- Consider and approve the appointment of sub-committees to replace those whose terms
have expired

- Consider and approve the appointment of Chief Financial Officer
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Consider and review the vision, mission and approve the annual budget. And the company's
business plan for 2024

Consider reviewing / amending / adding corporate governance policies. Business Ethics and
Charter

Consider and approve salary increase rates. Determination of bonuses and bonus payment policy
Consider and approve the disposal of investments in Hinsitsu (Thailand) Public Company Limited.
Consider and approve the establishment of a subsidiary company

Consider approving the deduction of investments in digital assets (HUB Coins)

Consider and approve directors' liability insurance. and executive officers of the company
Consider and approve the transfer of the Company's business to One to One Professional
Company Limited (subsidiary company)

Consider and approve the disposal of investments in Phygital Space Development Co.,
Ltd. (subsidiary) and the termination of being a subsidiary

Consider and approve changes in authority to sign financial documents

Consider and approve the appointment of the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
Consider and approve the increase of the Company's registered capital in the amount of
THB 50,000,000 from the original registered capital of THB 839,999,995 to the new
registered capital of THB 889,999,995 by issuing the newly ordinary shares of 50,000,000
shares at a par value of THB 1 and the amendment of Memorandum of Association in Clause 4
to be in line with the registered capital increase of the Company

Consider and approve the issuance and offering of debentures in the amount not exceeding
THB 2,000,000,000

Consider and approve calling the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2023
and setting the date for determining the names of shareholders who have the right to attend the
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2023 (Record Date)

Consider approving the sending of a letter to the relevant agency to request an investigation of
stock trading transactions that have unusual characteristics.

Consider approving the increase in registered capital of One to One Professional Company Limited
Consider and approve the appointment of persons to the position of accounting supervisor
(accountant)

Consider and approve requests for study and investment in wind power plants in Vietham. and
placing a deposit

Consider and approve the granting of loans to Wow Factor Public Company Limited
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Consider and approve granting of investment loan amounts to Inno Hub Company Limited
(subsidiary company)

Consider and approve the issuance and allocation of warrants to purchase the Company's
ordinary shares No.2 (“OTO-W2 Warrants”) to be allocated to the Company's existing
shareholders in proportion to their shareholding (Rights Offering)

Consider and approve the date, time, and location of the Extraordinary General Meeting of

Shareholders No. 1/2024

inutes for all meetings had been taken, kept and been ready for verification by the

directors or any related parties.

In add

ition, the minutes of the meeting were written and approved by the Board of Directors.

Then, such approved minutes were kept for further examination by the Board of any related parties.

2) Sub-Committees

In 2023, numbers of each meeting and time attendance of each member were summarized

below:
Number of Attendance / Total Number of Meeting
Directors / Executive Audit Executive | Corporate | Nominating and Risk Sustainable Investment
Committee | Committee | Governance | Compensation | Management | Development Committee
Committee Committee Committee Committee

1. Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul ? 2/2
2. Mr. Priyong Teerasathain 2/2 11/11 2/2
3. Ms. Natenapa Pusittanont o 171
4. Mr. Chirayu Chueyam '” 8/8 11 4/4 1/1 2/2
5. Mr. Prapat Yorkhant ” 6/6 1/1
6. Mr. Issara Roungsuk-udom ®
7. Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham " 19/19 2/2
8. Dr. Pakorn Apaphant 2 4/4 2/2 10/10
9. Dr. Chuket Ounjitti ® 3/3
10. Mr. Pattarakit Techasikarn ' 2/2
11. Mr. Kanawuthi Wattanadhirach
- 9/9 171 6/6 17 2/2
12. Mr. Thawee Udomkitchote ™ 10/13
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Number of Attendance / Total Number of Meeting

Directors / Executive Audit Executive | Corporate | Nominating and Risk Sustainable Investment
Committee | Committee | Governance | Compensation | Management | Development Committee
Committee Committee Committee Committee
13. Ms. Warunee Poodee " 3/6 4/4
14. Ms. Chutima Insawang * 13/13 33
15. Mr. Thanachote 10/11

Phisphahutharn )

Remark

K Resigned from the position of Executive Committee Member, Risk Management Committee member,

Sustainability Development Committee member and Investment Committee member on February 1, 2024

2 Resigned from the positions of Chairman of Audit Committee, Corporate Governance Committee Member,

Chairman of the Nominating and Compensation Committee member on December 11, 2023

K Resigned from the position of Investment Committee member on October 1, 2023

K Resigned from the position of Executive Committee Member, Sustainability Development Committee

member on September 20, 2023

¥ Resigned from the position of Audit Committee member on September 14, 2023

o Approved the appointment as an Audit Committee member on September 14, 2023

K Approved the appointment as an Executive Committee Member, Risk Management Committee member,

Sustainability Development Committee member and Investment Committee member on September 14,

2023

K Approved the appointment as an Investment Committee member on September 14, 2023

K Approved the appointment as an Audit Committee member on August 2, 2023

10 Approved the appointment as Nominating and Compensation Committee Member, Corporate

Governance Committee Member, Chairman of Risk Management Committee, Chairman of Executive

Committee, Chairman of Sustainable Development Committee, Chairman of Investment Committee on

August 2, 2023

" Resigned from the position of Audit Committee member on July 27, 2023

" Resigned from the position of Chairman of Executive Committee, Corporate Governance Committee

Member, Nominating and Compensation Committee Member, Chairman of Risk Management Committee,

Chairman of Sustainable Development Committee, Chairman of Investment Committee on July 1, 2023

' Approved the appointment as an Executive Committee Member on May 9, 2023

" Resigned from the position of Executive Committee Member on May 9, 2023

3) Meeting among members of non-executive directors

In 2023, non-executive directors convened non-executive directors’ meeting without any

participation of management to discuss any managementissue freely before started the Board

of directors meeting.
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All sub-committees carried out their duties assigned by the Board of Directors, regularly report the
performance to the Board of Directors, and provide annual performances report to shareholders

in the Annual Report.

® Remuneration for Directors
The remuneration of the directors and Non-Executive Directors consist of meeting allowance and bonus
by which the meeting allowance was approved from shareholders meeting and only pay to the director
who attend the meeting. Member of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee receive the same rate
of meeting allowance while the Chairman receives 1 time more than other members. Chairman of the
Nominating and Compensation Committee and the Chairman of Corporate Governance Committee
receive 50 percent more than the committee member. There is no meeting allowance for Executives
Committee, Risk Management Committee and Sustainable Development Committees because the
members of these committees are the company executives. Bonus is determined by considering the
various appropriations and compared to the organization in the same industry and similar size of
business together with company operation result, performance and responsibility of the directors and
overall business conditions.
The remuneration of directors of the Company and Committees’ members was approved from the 2023
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders at the amount of not exceeding Baht 4,000,000 consists of
meeting allowance for each meeting participated of the Board of Directors and Committees and bonus
without other benefits. The meeting allowance was fixed and paid to directors attending the meeting as
following:

Board of Directors and Audit Committee

- Chairman Baht 20,000 per meeting

- Director Baht 10,000 per meeting

Nominating and Compensation Committee and Corporate Governance Committee

- Chairman Baht 15,000 per meeting

- Director Baht 10,000 per meeting
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Cash Remuneration

In 2023, the Company paid remuneration to the directors and sub-committees which the Company has not

paid remuneration to directors and executive committee members who are directors in subsidiary, with the

following details:

(Unit: Baht)
Meeting Allowance
Total
Board of Audit Nominating Corporate
Remuneration
Directors Directors Committee and Governance Bonus )
paid to each
Compensation Committee
Director
Committee
Mr. Supreedee Nimitkul 90,000 20,000 - - 110,000
Mr. Priyong Teerasathain 220,000 - 110,000 30,000 360,000
Ms. Natenapa Pusittanont 60,000 10,000 - - 70,000
Mr. Chirayu Chueyam 90,000 - 40,000 10,000 140,000
Mr. Chaiwat Phithakraktham 220,000 - - - 220,000
Mr. Prapat Yorkhant 80,000 - - - 80,000
Mr. Issara Roungsuk-udom 20,000 - - - 20,000
Dr. Pakorn Apaphant 360,000 80,000 150,000 20,000 610,000
Mr. Somkit Likitparinya 190,000 - - - 190,000
Dr. Chuket Ounijitti 160,000 30,000 - - 190,000
Mr. Kanawuthi
140,000 - 60,000 10,000 210,000
Wattanadhirach
Assoc.Prof.Dr.Apiwat
30,000 - - - 30,000
Muttamara
Mr. Sarayut Yimruen 80,000 - - - 80,000
Mr. Pattarakit Techasikarn 120,000 20,000 - - 140,000
Mrs. Nareerat
50,000 - - - 50,000
Ngernnamchokhtanarat
Mr. Bundit Sapianchai 30,000 - - - 30,000
Mr. Panom Ratanarat 50,000 - - - 50,000
Mr. Subhasiddhi
50,000 - - - 50,000
Rakkasikorn
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Ms. Saowanee Kaoubol

10,000 - - - - 10,000

Total 2,050,000 160,000 360,000 70,000 = 2,640,000

8.1.3 Supervision of subsidiaries and associated companies

The Board of Directors supervises the operations of subsidiaries and associated companies as follows:

Before establishment of any new company, the responsible managing department shall propose such matter
to the meeting of the Board of Directors for consideration and approval before the registration of the new
company is arranged. The Board of Directors shall consider on appointment of the executives who shall hold
positions of director and management of such subsidiary and the associated company including scope of
authority and responsibility of the directors and the management who shall be the Company’s
representatives in such company. The management of the subsidiary and the associated company shall
report business performance of the Company they are responsible to the Executive Committee every month.
Any investments or substantial operations as per specified in the delegation of authorities must be performed
pursuant to the policies specified and they must be presented to the meeting of the Executive Committee as
well. The management of the subsidiary and the associated company must present the annual business plan
to the meeting of Executive Committee and the Board of Directors for consideration and approval every year.
If performance of any company has not achieved as per the targeted plan, the management must clarify to
the meeting of Executive Committee. In case business operation encountered a lot of problems, the
management is required to clarify to the Executive Committee as the watch list so that precaution and

corrective measures can be closely monitored and taken.

The subsidiary and the associated company must have the internal control system or measure that the
Company’s Internal Audit Department can audit and report to the Audit Committee and the Executive
Committee. If internal control system of any company is defective which may likely cause risks and damage
to the Company, the Executive Committee shall order such company to make good and rectify defects in
such internal control system immediately. In addition, if the subsidiary has to conduct any transaction which
is required to comply with the regulations of the Company or of the relevant laws and which is required to be
approved from the shareholders’ meeting of such subsidiary, i.e., capital increase, capital decrease or
dissolution of subsidiary and etc., such transaction shall be proposed for the Executive Committee’s

consideration and approval on voting guideline during the shareholders’ meeting of such subsidiary.
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For establishment of a new company or investing in significant portion in other businesses between 20% and
50% of shares with voting rights, and the amount of investment or may have to more invest significantly, the
Board of Directors should ensure that shareholder agreements or other agreements are in place to enable
the Company’s performance monitoring and participation in management, including for approval of
significanttransactions and decisions. This is to ensure that the Company has sufficient, accurate, and timely

information for the preparation of its financial statements that conform to the relevant standards.

In the event where the subsidiary performs any transaction about acquisition or disposal of assets, the
Company shall treat the same way as criteria on acquisition and disposal of assets of its own which must be
pursuant to criteria on undertaking the significant transaction on asset acquisition or disposal as per
specified by the Capital Market Supervisory Board. In case the subsidiary has performed any transaction
with its related persons, the Company shall not involve in such matter, except the subsidiary has performed
any transaction with the related person of the Company, then the Company shall comply with the criteria on

related transaction announced by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

In 2023, associated companies or subsidiaries comply with the policy of supervising subsidiaries and
associated companies. And no actions that cause conflicts of interest including the preparation of financial
reports and important transactions can be carried out and disclosed in their entirety accurately and within

the specified time.

8.1.4 Monitoring of compliance with the corporate governance policy and guidelines

1) Conflict of Interest

To prevent conflicts of interest, the Company has drawn out guidelines for directors and employees

in the Company’s Business Ethics to follow:

1. Avoid all actions that may cause conflicts of interest with the Company.

2. In case that directors or employees commit any action related to the Company, the particular
director and employee will be treated like an outsider and will play no part in decision-making
process.

3. Refuse to use Company’s information obtained in their posts for an opportunity to derive
personal benefits by creating rivalry with the Company or involving in related businesses.

4. Refuse to use Company’s information for securities purchase for personal benefits or to leak

Company’s information to outsiders for their benefits. Any trading of the Company’s securities
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within 1 month prior to disclosure of either the Company’s financial performance or any other
information that may affect securities’ price is prohibited.
5. Refuse to reveal Company's classified information e.g., electronic information, financial

situation, work’s plans, business information, Company’s future plans and others.

On any conflict-of-interest transaction, before entering the transaction, the Company specified
that the Board of directors, Managements, Employees, and relevant parties must disclose the
transactions with interest to the Audit Committee to consider the appropriateness of such
transactions. The Audit Committee will carefully review prior to submit with opinion either on such
conflict or connection to the Board of Directors for further review and to ensure that the
transaction has to be complied with the SET’s regulations, information of the transaction i.e.,
value of transaction, party involved and necessity etc., has been disclosed in the Company’s
Annual Report and 56-1 One Report. The auditor's note in the financial statements. Any
consideration of the connected transaction, the directors who may have conflict of interest will
neither participate nor vote in such meeting both in the Board of Director’s and the Shareholders’
Meeting. Details of the transactions which may have any conflict of interest in 2023 are provided

under “Related Transactions”.

2) Inside Information Control

The Company set criteria about inside information usage control for personal advantage,
undisclosed and confidential leak to public or be used from unauthorized for personal benefit. IT
system has been implemented for a secure access for all users inside and outside the firewall in
conjunction with the Company’s own user authentication and security system. In addition, the
Company sets as policy that all employees shall acknowledge and sign the agreement of non-
disclosure confidential information, non-violation of concealment of computer related and non-
infingement of intellectual property. New employee shall sign this agreement together with
employment contact. It was also set forth in the Company’s Corporate Governance Policy and
Business Ethics to refuse the directors, management and employees of the Company to use
Company’s inside information for personal benefits. Any trading of the Company’s securities within
one month prior to disclosure of either Company’s financial performance or any other information
that may affect securities’ price is prohibited. To ensure that the policy is acknowledge and
complied, the Company will notify the year plan schedule of such periods in advance to all directors

and executives. Every quarter, the Company has also delivered such notice to directors and
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executives to acknowledge. In 2023, there is no case of insider trading from the Company’s directors
and executives. The press releases for the corporate governance are published on via email, tips

and poster in the Company’s promotion board.

The Directors and management of the Company had been informed on their duties and punishment
regarding to report on securities and derivative holdings of themselves, their spouse, cohabiting
couple and any minor children, including a juristic person whose shares exceeding thirty percent of
the total voting rights are held by directors and executives, including their spouse or cohabiting
couple, and minor children to the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) within 3 days from the
transaction date according to the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535. Any change in securities
and derivative holdings, such directors and managements have to report the Company Secretary
for coordination and preparing report submit to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). In
addition, the Company has set as a policy to report on securities and derivative holdings of directors
in every meeting of the Board of Directors. In case that any director or managements violates the

regulations, the warning notice will be made to that director or management to avoid re-misconduct.

In case of conflict of interest, it is the Company’s Policy to have the directors, management,
employees, and related parties to disclose such interests to the Audit Committee for consideration
of the transaction to be complied to the SET’s regulations and any governing laws and regulations
prior to further submit for consideration of either the Board of Directors or the shareholders. The
directors who have conflict of interest will not participate in any agenda that they have conflict of
interest. Moreover, any conflict-of-interest transactions with the connected persons will be disclosed

in “Connected Transaction”.

General practices for conflict-of-interest protection have been set not only in the Company’s
Business Ethics but also in “5. Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors” under the topic
of “Conflict of Interest”. Such practices have been delivered to all directors, management, and
employees. The Corporate Governance Committee will monitor and ensure that Company’s
regulations, Corporate Governance Policy, and Business Ethics have been strictly and continually

complied.

Moreover, the Corporate Governance Committee has been established to ensure that good
corporate governance is being conducted continuity at all levels in accordance with legal

requirement and the Company’s Articles of Associations.
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3) Anti-Corruption
The company places importance on good corporate governance, believing that good corporate
governance and management within the framework of transparent corporate governance can be
checked, help preserve the interests of all stakeholders. The company has established policies
and guidelines “Anti-corruption” and announcements for executives and employees at all levels
to adhere. There is a scope of anti-corruption management system covering every step. Every
work process of the company and its subsidiaries that is involved in procurement work including
other work steps that are at risk of corruption. The Company has announced its intention to join as
a member of Thailand Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC) on
November 24, 2022 to participate in the evaluation in requesting certification of membership of
CAC, which will be in 2023. The company tries to follow the process of participating in the
evaluation to request certification of membership of CAC with an audit committee. Internal Audit

Department and the CAC committee appointed by the company as the main working group.

1. Responsibilities

1.1 Board of Directors Has duties and responsibilities as follows:

® Setting policies and supervising to have a system that supports effective anti-
corruption efforts to ensure that the Executive Committee is aware and give
importance to fighting corruption and cultivated until it becomes the culture of the
organization for employees at all levels of the company Understand and realize the
importance of problems arising from corruption. In the event that the Audit Committee
has reported acts of corruption that affect the company. The Board of Directors is
responsible for giving advice and recommendations. Consider penalties and work
together to find solutions to the problems for the Chief Executive Officer and the
Executive Board.

e Follow the anti-corruption policy and guidelines. And there are penalties when non-
compliance occurs. The punishment for directors retirement When there is a report on

the results of an internal audit or there are complaints about acts of corruption.

1.2 Audit Committee Has duties and responsibilities as follows:
® Consider policies and guidelines for anti-corruption measures to be appropriate for
the business model. Company environment corporate culture and present to the

Board of Directors for consideration and approval.
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Consider and review the appropriateness of the change. Anti-corruption policy and
practice guidelines and present to the Board of Directors for consideration and
approval.

Review financial and accounting reporting systems, internal control system, internal
audit system and risk management system to ensure that it meets international
standards. It is concise, appropriate, modern and efficient.

Receive information on whistleblowing. Actions resulting from corruption that people
in the organization are involved and check the facts as informed and present the
matter to the Executive Committee to jointly consider punishing or resolving such

problems.

Internal audit department has duties and responsibilities as follows:

Check and review operations according to the established audit plan that it is correct,
consistent with policies, operating guidelines, regulations and laws to ensure that
there is a control system that is appropriate and adequate for potential corruption risks
and reported to the Audit Committee.

Perform tasks as assigned by the Audit Committee. In the matter of investigating

corruption related to the organization in addition to the specified inspection plan.

Good Corporate Governance Committee has duties and responsibilities as follows:

Establish a framework for overseeing the company's anti-corruption operations.
Provide suggestions and guidance. Monitor and evaluate operations related to anti-

corruption.

Sustainability Development Committee have duties and responsibilities. In determining

appropriate guidelines and operational plans for sustainable development. In line with

the company's anti-corruption policy and guidelines.

1.6 Risk Management Committee have duties and responsibilities to supervise and support

the implementation of corruption risk management. By assessing the risk of corruption and

review anti-corruption measures to be adequate and appropriate.

1.7 The Executive Committee and executives have duties and responsibilities as follows:

Require an assessment of corruption risks. In the work process that may cause

corruption.
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® Setup a promotion and support process. Anti-corruption policies and guidelines and

communicated to employees and all involved departments.

® Adopt a policy and framework to prevent corruption. Implemented continuously

throughout the organization.

® Review the suitability of procedures and preventive measures. To comply with

changes in business, rules, regulations and legal requirements.

2. Anti-Corruption Policy

The Company operates a business by adhering to good corporate governance. Consequently,

the anti-corruption policy is established to be the guidance for all related parties such as

directors, executives/management, and employees to strictly follow. The major principles of

the anti-corruption policy are specified as below.

2.1

2.2

2.3

Political Impartiality and Code of Conduct

The Company has the policy to operate a business with political impartially that covers
compliance with the laws and democratic governance with the King as Head of State.
Thereby, directors, executives/management, and employees, who have political rights
and liberties pursuant to the laws, commit not to perform any acts including resource
usage that cause the loss of impartiality or damages from the involvement in political
activities. In addition, the Company also has the policy to operate a business with ethics,
integrity, and management with transparency by implementing in the organizational

culture of the Company.

Donation for Charity and Supporting Fund

The Company promotes community and social development for quality-of-life
improvement through business processes or donations for the charity that shall be
supported by completed evidence and in line with the Company's rules, which specify

that the donation and the fund shall be applied for business support and public charities.

Receiving or Giving Gifts, Gratuities, Assets or Other Benefits.

Improper receiving or giving gifts, gratuities, assets, or other benefits causes the support

or obligation that affects decision-making for business operations, which incur damages
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or losses to the Company. Thereby, the Company does not support such kind of the
operations and determines that directors, executives / management, employees, and relevant

persons shall adhere to the following key principles:

e Conduct the receiving or giving ethically and legally by being aware of laws, rules or
traditions of each country or locality that may contain different conditions or practices
and strictly following them. The rules include the hiring of a government employee in
term of consultant or permanent staff of the Company by defining transparent and
suitable employment conditions

® (Conduct the receiving or giving appropriately and honestly by covering the
transactions with government agencies

® Not conduct the receiving or giving to any persons who intend to persuade others to
perform inappropriate activities or omit to perform the right actions.

e Not conduct the receiving or giving that has the influence in unfair decision making
for operating responsible duties

e Conduct the receiving or giving with low value and suitable for each occasion and
report to supervisor in case of necessity in conducting the transactions whose value
are higher than business usual

e Conduct the receiving or giving according to the rules specified by external agencies
in case of being assigned from supervisor to support the external agencies

e Conduct the spending of expenses for business entertainment and other expenses
which are directly relevant to abiding business contracts reasonably

e Conductthe document keeping of the financial evidence that clearly present the value

of the receiving or giving and are auditable as requested

Practice Guidelines

1 . Risk Management
The Company clearly structures risk management by establishing the Board of directors and executives to
oversee their management and their employees in all levels to apply the practice guidelines consistent with
the Company's policy. In addition, the committee for risk management is also set for overseeing the managing

of relevant risks to be conducted in appropriate manners.

2 Building a Preventive Organizational Culture
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The Company supports directors, executives/management and employees at all levels to perform their
operations with no fraud and no corruption including adhering to ethics, integrity, and management with
transparency as well as be responsible for all stakeholders by giving fair compensations and rewards to

outstanding staff together with punishing the staff who violates the Company's policies and rules.
. Training Arrangement and Communication

The Company arranges the staff training to promote honestly and inform the practice guidelines for the
standard of good behavior, Code of Conduct and business ethics. The training and communications are
performed via new employee orientation and additional training during employment as well as electronic

communications such as websites and applications.

. Reporting

The Company encourages directors, executives/management, employees and stakeholders to report
the violation of the Company's policy as well as unfair practices by providing reporting channels to
inform any traces of improper activities, which include the breach of good governance, code of
conduct/business ethics, policy and rules of the Company or laws. Thereby, the Company provides
mail and e-mail as reporting channels directly to the internal Audit department and protects informers

by not disclosing their name to any persons.

.Monitoring of Policy Compliance
The Company establishes the Internal Audit department to monitor the policy compliance of each business
unit as risk base basis in Order to ensure that the Company has the appropriate internal control systems. In
case that the deficiencies, which incur significant damages to the Company, are found from inadequate
internal control systems of any business units, the Internal Audit department will report the audit results directly

to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, respectively.

Penalty
Any actions that directly or indirectly violate this policy will be considered disciplinary punishment according

to the rules set by the Company as well as legal penalties in case of illegal acts.

In summary, the Company brings the mentioned policies and practice guidelines of Internal Control,

Risk Management and Anti-Corruption into practice appropriately. And for the past year 2023, the

company has not had any corruption occur, whether directly or indirectly.
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4) Whistle Blowing

® Suggestions and complaints

The Board of Directors respects the importance of all stakeholders in participation of the
Company's success and discloses related important information to stakeholders sufficiently
and transparently. The Company provides channels for all stakeholders to send suggestions
and complaints that is beneficial to the Company. Those channels consist of direct mail or E-

mail as informed at the Company's website www.onetoonecontacts.com

Mailing Address: Internal Audit Department
Peer for you Public Company Limited
99/26 Moo 4 Software Park Building,
9 FI. Chaengwattana Rd., Klong Gluar.

Pak-kred, Nonthaburi 11120 Thailand

or E-mail address:  auditcommitteesecretary@Peerforyou.co.th

The Internal Audit Department will collect the suggestion and complain, then, inspect and analyze
the information according to the procedures and methods on “Notifying the information on

misconduct and the protection of the informant”

® Procedures and methods on "Notifying the information on misconduct and the protection of the
informant”
The Company adheres to good corporate governance principles and encourages its
stakeholders to examine and oversee any action which is against the corporate governance
principles, ethics, rules and regulations of the Company, laws, corruption or any action which
might cause damages to the Company including rights violation. If such action is found, the
stakeholders can notify the clue on misconduct behavior to the Company by sending information

and/or document and/or concerned evidence (as the Company's form to notify the information
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on misconduct) to Internal Audit Department. If the name and surname of the informant is

specified, it will be more beneficial to the Company for convenience on enquiry and/or contact

for more information.

In the year 2023, the company has "no" complaints or corruption or legal disputes that may have a

significant impact on the Company's business in any way.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of One to One Contacts Public Company Limited

My opinion

In my opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of One to One Contacts Public Company Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (the Group) and the separate financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its consolidated
and separate financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS).

What | have audited
The consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements comprise:

the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 31 December 2023,

the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, which include significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements section
of my report. | am independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants including Independence Standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions (TFAC Code) that are
relevant to my audit of the consoclidated and separate financial statements, and | have fulflled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the TFAC Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters

| draw attention to the notes to financial statements, which describes the significant events and transactions during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

1. Disposal of investment in an indirect subsidiary

Note 11 describes the disposal of investment in an indirect subsidiary of the Group amounting to Baht 150
million during the first quarter of 2023 and payments from buyers made in only the first instalment from a total
of four instalments. Management recognised an expected credit losses for the outstanding balance related to
such items of Baht 120 million during the third quarter of 2023. This amount has a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

2 Other current assets

2.1 Note 15.1 describes a deposit payment of Baht 100 million to study a wind power plant project in
Vietnam. This was for investing in the common shares of a holding company. The holding company is
a foreign legal entity that holds shares in a legal entity registered in Vietnam, which owns a wind power
plant. The holding company is an indirect subsidiary of a listed company. Later, the Company requested
to cancel this initiative in October 2023 and requested a deposit refund from the seller. Then, the seller
refunded only a part of it of Baht 20 million and submitted a request to extend the repayment period for
the remaining deposit of Baht 80 million.

2.2  Note 15.2 describes the subsidiary of the Group making a deposit payment of Baht 10 million to study
a joint investment with a company in Thailand. The objective was to investigate a joint investment to
develop a marketing platform. Later, the subsidiary requested to cancel this initiative and management
recognised an expected credit losses for the deposit during the fourth quarter of 2023.
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& Oihar non-curmant assats

31

32

Mote 21.1 describes the approval 1o invest In @ peer-to-peer lending platform through a targeted
company. A largeted company s a8 holding company in Thailand thal holds shares in a Thal company
that operates an elecironic system or network for peer-to-peer lending transactions, along with the
payment of a deposit made o the existing shareholders of Bakht 190.20 milkon of the holding company,
which are two listed entites. This item has been approved by the relevant regulator on the change in
shareholder structure on 23 February 2024,

Mote 21.2 describes the approval o study and invest in a selling products and providing services
through digital TV media and onling platforn business. This was for acquiring the iotal common shares
of such company, along with the refundable deposit made to the exsting shareholders of such company
of Baht 25 million. This item has been approved (o enter indg the transaction by the Extraordinary

General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company on 12 February 2024,

My opinion s not modified in respect of these matters:
Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of mosi significance in my audit of the
consolidated and separate financial stalements of the cument period, These matters were addressed in the context of my
audit of the consoidated and separate financeal statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion theseon, and | do noi

provide a saparate opinion on these matters,

Key audit matter

Revenue recognition
The Group has various revenue streams fram rendering

todal solutions, elc. The aggregate service revenues
wiere Baht 55540 million and Baht 43541 million,
shown in the consclidated and separate statements of
comprehensive income for the year 2023 respectively,
Revenue recognilion on each senice vares according lo
the nature of the services and the conditions in the
agreement. This is disclosed in Note 4.17, ‘Accounting
pobicies - Revenus recogniton’, 1o the financal stabements.
Management delerminad the appropratensss of e revenue
recognition by ensunng an actual occummence and recognisicn
inv the pencd when the control of services was transferred,

| focused on revenue recognition becawse if is matenal
to the financial statements. Also, revenue recogniticn
depends on determining the approprate timing for providng
services which vary for each of the Group’s services,

How my audit addressed the key audit matter

| azzessad the Group's revenue recognilion from rendenng
services, oulsourced conlact centre services, tumkey services by performing the following procedures:

understanding, evaluating and vakdating key imemal
controls over the Group's revenue cycle by enquinng
with relevant persmnal, conducting walkhnoughs,
and tesing & sample size. This involved samping
revenue ransactions 1o vakdate key imemal contrals
for revenue recording at te Eq:lpmpﬁh recognition
paints in accordance with the service condifions. |
aleo tested th contnosl wisther he aulhonsed persons
reviewed the accuracy of the accounting recards
festing revenus recognition in accordance waith
control transfer principles by identifying types of
contracts and performance obligations. Including
the fransaction price determination and allecation
of the transachon price to each performance
obligation, and inspecting relevant documents such
as senice contracts, delvery nobes and retated billing
documents. For collected revenue transactions, |
traced cash receiptl iransactions 1o involoes and
transactions in bank slalemants, lo assess whelher
the Group's revenue recognition prnciples comply
with the financial reparting standard

testing a sample of revenus transacions that ocoumed
rar the end of the accounting penicd, both in the
perad munnng before and after the perod end, in
accordance with the risk determined by the terms of
each type of sales and services. This was 1o assess
whather the revenue was recorded in the appropriate
penod

Az a resull of the procedunes performed, revenue recogriion
‘was appropriate and consistent wath the relevant accounting
policies and supporing evidence.
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Key audit matter

Az al 31 December 2023, the Group had shori-term
leans to third party with the beok value before expecied
credi less of Babt 100 million. Then, there wene indications
of default on the lcan repayments.

Management estimates the expecied credit losses on
loans as at 31 December 2023 by

# calculabng the expected recoverable value based
on the present value of the estimated cash inflows
from the assets thatl deblor pladged as collateral
for the loans if the debtor is unable to repay the
debt as planned. This referred o collateral values
from external sources thal were considened rebevant
and reliable

. pompanng the value based on the present
value of the collateral wath the book value of the loan

Foflowing the evaluation outlined above, managament
recognised an expected credit loss of Baht 5750 milion
for the year ended 31 December 2023

I focused on auditing this item because it was significant
to the financial statements. Also, the methods for
aslimating the value expecled lo be recoversd from
collateral and the saelechon of information sounces used

as references refied on management's judgement

Other matter

How my audit addressed the key audit matter

+. inquire managemant to gain an understanding aof
the methods they used o assess Indicalicns of
default, the curment status, action plans and important
business plan of the debtor. | then evaluated that
information by cross-checking i agains! infomnaton
oiainad from exltemal and itemal sources o assass
the appropriatensss of management's judgement

= evaluated the reasonableness of the wvaluation
miethods and information used to estimale the vaiue
axpacted o be recedvad from the relevant collateral
which is the common shares of the indirect subsidiany’s
debior by comgparing the share price with relevant
and reliable financial information, number of shanes
with the: loan contracts and collateral pledge agreements

* fesl the mecowerabls amount caloulabons  thal
management has prepared and compare the resuls
with the book value of the kans and evaluate the
reasonableness of the expacted ced? less of such loans

Based on the above procedures, the methods and
infarmation used by management in estimating cash
infiows from assets that debior provided as coliateral for
leans were consistent with the evidence obtained

The comparative consolidated financial statements of the Group and separate financeal statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 were sudited by another audidor, whose report dated 27 February 2023
expressed an unqualified opimion,

Other information

The dereciors are responsible for the other information, The ather infermation comprises the informaton inclueded in
tha annual report, bul does not include the consalidated and separate financial statements and my auditor's report
thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available o me after the dale of this auditor's report.

My opinion an the consolidaled and separate financial statements does nol cover the other information and | will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thareon

In connecton with my audit of the consolidated and separate fnancal stalements, my responsibility is (o read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consoldseted and separate financial statements or my knowledge oblained in the
audit, or athersise appears to be matenally misstated,

When | read the annual repot, if | conclude that these s a matenal misstatement therein, | am required to communicate
the matter 1o the audit committee
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements

The direciors are responsible for the preparation and fair preseniation of the consolidated and separate financial
stalements in accordance with TFRS, and for such intermal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consclidated and separate financial stalements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether
due 1o fraud or ermor.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial siatements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's and the Company’s ability o continue as a going concem, disclasing, as apphcable, matters related to gaing
concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group and
the Company of o cease operations, of has no realistic altemative but 1o do so.

The audit commities assisis the direciors in dischanging their responsibilites for overseeing the Group's and the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements

My objectives are 1o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated and separate inancial statemenls
as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to isswe an auditor's repaort that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expecied o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial
stalerments.

As part of an audit in accardance with TSAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional sceptlicism
throughout the audit. | also:

+« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or eror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
avidance that is sufficsent and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The rsk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ermar, as fraud may inwolve collusion,
fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control,

«  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audd in order 10 design audn procedures that ane
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's and the Company's intemal control.

¢+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors,

+« Conclude an the appropristeness of the directors” use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on
the awdit evidence obtained, whether a malerial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern_ If | conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report o the related disclosures in the
consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinicn.
My conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the date of my audilor's report, However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease o conlinue as a going concerm.

+«  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financal statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidaled and separate financial statements represant thea
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

«  Obtain sufficlent appropriate asdil evidence regarding the financial information of the entities oF business
activities within the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. | am responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinicn.
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| communicale with the audil commitiee regarding. ameng ather matlers, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controd that | identify during my audit.

| alzo provide the audit committee with a statement that | have compled with relevant ethical regquirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on my independence, and where applicabile, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committes, | determine thosa matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the cument period and are therefore the key audit
matters. | describe these matters in my auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matier ar when, in extremely rare circurnstances, | determine that a matier should not be communicated in my repaort
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication,

PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

Sanicha Akarakittilap

Certified Public Accountant ( Thailand) No. 8470
Bangkok

28 February 20
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One to One Contacts Public Company Limited
Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

Congolidated Separaie
financial stalements financial stalements
1023 20xz 2023 Iozz
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thowusand
Notes Baht Bahi Baht Baht
Aszels
Current assels
Cash and cash sguivalents 10 T4,522 100,045 34,900 71.983
Financial assals measured at fair value
throwgh prafit or loss. 12 228,225 234,571 228,225 T34 571
Trade and othar recoivables Lk | 91,080 118847 BY.3TE 85,897
Contract assots 11 408,482 42,405 28711 38848
Shart-tarm leans o third party 13 42,500 - 42,500
Bhart-lerm loans fo related party 36 c) ) = 76,000
Invaniories 14 280 Ga4
Drher curent assots 15 101,356 48177 9B, 186 42348
Total current asseis 588,435 548,453 521,898 549750
Mon-current assets
Finanelal assats meosured at falr value
through prodit or loss 12 650,200 166000 &0,200 166,000
Diher financial assels measured ol
amorfeed cost 12 4.318 6555 3,864 5. Tes
Investmenls in subsidianies 16 - - 41,214 39_BES
Property, plani. and eguipment - nel 17 196,490 64800 184 874 56,993
Righl-of-use assels - nad 18 14,014 14,611 13,018 13.668
Intangibla assats - net g} 33323 103,082 33,986 25,180
Goadwill 20 - 53,130 - -
Defarred tax assats 33 834 21.282 19075
Ciher non-current assots 24 246,969 276 244,518 TG
Tolal non-current assels 308,148 425 BEE 581,875 327 544
Total assets 1,148,573 org, 350 1,113,573 BTT 2ol

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these conschdated and soparate financial stalemants.
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Cne to One Contacts Public Company Limited
Statements of Financial Position (Cont'd)
As at 31 December 2023

Caonsolidated Separale
financial statements hinancial statements
2023 2022 2023 2032
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Motes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Liabifities and equity
Current hablities
Trage and othar payables 22 52,382 84,321 43, 748 43,915
Currend portion of lcaso liabilitios 23 B.060 10,067 7,440 8,575
Income tax payabla 1.417 - -
Cdher cumant liakilties 24 16,434 15,286 12,185 13,773
Total current liabilities T8.273 105 B4 63383 B7.263
Non-current liabilities
Loase liabillias 23 6224 5074 5759 4 580
Employee bonofit obligations 25 14,932 12351 13,202 11,011
Defarred tax labilibas - 13432 -
her non-current linbilities 1.865 1,655 1,602 1.638
Total non-current liabilities 22,811 32 556 20,603 1T.219
Tolal Habilithes 101,084 142 220 83,966 34 482

Thie accompanying notes ana an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statemants.
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Cne fo One Contacts Public Company Linited
Statements of Financial Position (Cont'd)
As at 31 December 2023

Consolldated Separale
financial statements financial statements
a3 2032 2023 2022
Thousand Thausand Thousand Thousand
Motes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Liabilithes and equity (Cont'd)
Equity
Share caphal
Autherised shar capital
889,999 685 ordnary shares
af par at Baht 1 each
{As al 31 Decamber 2022,
autharised share capital
895,000,000 erdinary shares.
of par at Bahl 1 sach) T 880,000 585,000 BS0,000 Ba5.000
Issued and paid-up share capial
793,236,509 erdnary shares

al pald-up al Bahl 1 ebeh
{As at 31 December 2022,
issued and paid-up share capital

550,998, 595 ordinary shares:
of pald-up at Bahi 1 each) 27 793,237 S0 000 793,237 580,000
Sharg pramium 27 70882 304 419 7D ag2 304, 419
Retained aamings
Agpropriaied - legal reserve 28 28,700 28,700 26,700 28,700
Unappropriated (deficits) (547 828) (105 458) (5835, 222) (100,307}
Oiher components of aquity 288 04 - P
Equity attributable to the cwners
of the parent 1,045,489 TAT.NE 1,028,607 Ta2e12
Non-contralling intarasis - 45 224 - -
Total equity 1,045,489 837,138 1,029.607 782812
Total liabilities and equity 1,146,573 979.358 1,113,573 877 204

The accompanying nates are an inbagral part of these consoidated and separate financial stalements.
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Qe fo One Contacts Public Compary Limited
Statements of Comprehensive income
Faor the year ended 31 December 2023

Consolidated Separale
Tinancial staterments financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thausand Thousand
Hotes Bakt Baht Baht Baht
Rotvenpees.
SOrvice Ecome EBE &0 00,315 435 40 484 TIE
Ravenuas from conbrac work 18,985 15,048 aT¥ 12,873
Revenves from sales 208 4197 -
Oitheisr InCime Fa 14970 14,180 18.041 3134
Todsd revenues 587 505 634,637 453178 500,733
Expenses
Gt of sardces k1 473209 459,33 IT4.014 388,353
Cost of oontract work g 10,884 11,042 BATT 11,088
Cosl ol sales 1449 1,655
Sefling expensas 30 2014 1,522 1988 1,348
Somirestrative axpenses bl 116,185 O 508 102 452 79,648
Expacted credit loss 3 144,973 1 126,970 280
Oibwar lnsses - ned n 283030 189,118 SHT.500 186,846
Total expenses 1,010.282 Tra.ze6 11401 E57 581
Bperating loss 422,757) {138.759) (448 232} {156 848)
Firaron inbome 3963 257 4834 Tz
Financy cosl (535) (810 {502} (758)
Loss before ncorme tax (418,324} {138.312) (443, 40} {156.4834)
oo K i3 {27,587} 23,553 (19,075} 22088
Wt loss for the year (447 321) (118758 [4E2.915) 1134.748)

The accompamyng notes ang an imegral pan of ihese consslidaled and saparabe Ainandcal stalaments
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One fo One Contacts Public Company Limited
Etaternents of Comprehensive Income [Sont d)
Faor the year ended 31 December 2023

Consolidated Sepatate
financial statements financial statements
2033 2z 2023 022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Hode Baht Bahi Baht Bahit
Other cofprehendive Moome:
It thiat Wil b reclpssifipd
subsaquently o profl of ioss
Cummency ranslBion dilfedancs (6} 13
Mevmis thad Wil nod Do reclassiieg
subpagquontly fo prof o ioss
Actuatial gain floss) on defned bensbt plan - (B5) S 156
Less: Income lax effec - 18 - 131
Dihar comprehensive mcome nol to be reclassified 1o
profit or loss in susequent pencds - rat of income (5 - (78] - 125
Other comprehensive noome
{expense] for the year, net of thx &) (83 - 125
Tolad comprehensive expense
Tor the year (447 227} (115822 {462.815) {134.821)
—_—
Loss for the period atiribuiable to;
Owmors of the parent {442,130} {118,221) (462,815} {124, 748
Nan-conirolling inberesls 15.991) 402
{447 321) {115.753) (462,915} {134.746)
Total comprehensive expense for
the period attributabile {o:
Cramers ol the parant (442,136) (116284 [462.915) {134.621)
Hon-conirelling inbonests. {5,13) 442
(447,327} AR Fd] (452,915} {1621
EEESSSSSS————— SIS eSS SRR —
Loss par share
Basic bass por share (Baht} a4 {083} (3.24) (DUEG) [0.24)

The accompanying notes are an inlegral pan of these consolidaled and separato financal statpmisnts.

164  ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 56-1 ONE REPORT



Peer For You Public Company Limited | Foermer: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited |

One to One Contacts Public Company Limited
Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2023

-

Opening balance at 1 January 2022
Invests in subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year
Closing balance at 31 December 2022

Qpening balance at 1 January 2022

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
|ssues commen stocks

Total comprehensive axpense for the year

Closing balance at 31 December 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

Attributable to owners of the Company

Capital contributed Other components

Issued and Retained earnings of equity Non-
paid-up Premium on Appropriated Unappropriated Translation of Total owners controlling Total
share capital  paid-up capital - legal reserve (deficits)  financial statements of the parent interests equity
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Motes Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
560,000 304,419 28,700 10,800 281 204 200 - 504,200
- - - - - - 48,762 48,762
- - - (116,288) 13 (116,285) 452 (115,823)
560,000 304 419 28,700 [105,498) 294 787,915 49224 837.139
560,000 304.419 28,700 (105.498) 284 T87.915 49,224 837139
26 G ] & 3 & = (44,033) (44,033)
27,35 233,237 466,473 E - - 698,710 - 699,710
= 2 F {442,130 {6) {442,136) {5.191) {447,327)
793,237 770,892 28,700 {547 .628) 288 1,045,489 - 1.045,488

165

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 56-1 ONE REPORT



Peer For You Public Company Limited | Foermer: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited |

One to One Contacts Public Company Limited
Statement of changes in equity (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Separate financial statements

Capital contributed

Issued and Retained earnings
paid-up Premium on Appropriated Unappropriated Total
share capital  paid-up capital - legal reserve (deficits) equity
Note Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
Opening balance at 1 January 2022 560,000 304 419 28,700 34,314 927.433
Total comprehensive expense for the year _ - = (134,621) {134,621)
Closing balance at 31 December 2022 560,000 304 419 28.700 (100,307) 792,812
Opening balance at 1 January 2023 560,000 304 419 28,700 {100,307) 792,812
Issue ordinary shares 27,35 233,237 466,473 a - £99.710
Total comprehensive expense for the year i - 1 (462,915) {462,915)
Closing balance at 31 December 2023 793,237 770,892 28,700 (563,222) 1,029,607

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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B
Cine bo One Contacts Public Compary Limited
Sestemants of Cadh Mows
For tise year ended 34 Deceembar 2023
Conalidated Separate
Timaneial slabements Tinameisl sialensenis
el oz 023 o g
Thousand Thisusand Thousand Thowsand
Hofes Baht Baht Bahk Bakt
Cath fewa fram sporating setivities
Licess baafora ta 1418, 3324) 38,342 {43 By {56, Baay
Adpusimmnis for.
Dopracinbon pyd movisaton 17,18, 48 4ra 50565 &8 087 dnati
Abpwanos for expacied credd losses 31 144 57y 3 126,970 50
Incrinee in feduchon cost of myeniony 1o
il dmbaatie v - 1418 - 1415
Gian on daposal of equpment . (& 808} (218} -
Giirs on disposal of mlangible ssets {32 (116} . i
Less on dinposal of digilal agsels 43 - T3 -
Giain from rewards of cigial assots {65} = (85} -
Lows on desposal of francal assets
e &% R vakes thicigh ol of ioes 32 15202 40 750 w2028 AD. 750
Mat diffenencs of righl-of-use ossels and loase hatdkbes,
inniang Fom lamealion of conlisc 110y (11] {1ay LRl
Traler minrghls assets 0 aponsa . Ba2 7 =
Liovass: o wiito-off fioed assets. - 1407 - 113
Lies on chargs o fair vabe of finsscinl asasly messured
Wt b SOOLgh pIoiTt O kKgs 12,32 68 el 107 S Bg, 544 107 ST
Browvision for long e emgloyoo bonalis 7604 2810 A 2078
G on dasposal of f | gty |
o {r walun Frough profit of koss ) £2.700) - Ty -
Less on rsgammant i rvosirmeed in subsadisry a2 - - 35,000 15 000
Abpwnnog for mpaamont in rrvostmant for dgtal sssets . Flln o] = 2BEn
Alpmancs for mparment of offtsr asets = ¥ 4,505 i
i £ dimhangs Pk {183y : {14z} -
Indnest ncome 4,338 (] (4884 T
Inbisrms? ewpehie 532 a2 502 T
Chnange i working capal
Trode and ofher recsivables 450 (A2 5T 508 {2,385)
Ciardric] dnsli 1813 113537 S0z 8172
vdshoras " (RETS . 2541
Ciiher cumen asseds 10,840] 163 2638 1530
Financinl s ssdi Mmoo o smorkssd oos) 2.7 -] 1925 12005
Criner noa-curranl francial assels ; [B3%] = 1415
Crfer noreoaTont mssots . 13 230 EALH
Trade and ctber payatdes (L] 42 SdE 3 ey ERET
i coatan Biibties 1.756 1%2] 1,808} 1.400
Orwer non-cuavnn Rataties. a8y a5 (7] .
Cash et guenaraied lrom cparating aciniins 4470 BT 455 w0 B5.02E
Carsh pad for incorme tax {81,508 (12531 (15T {11,560
Cash pand for inemst sxpense Eany - e ] .
Caeh paid for prowision $0f long-lerm ssmployes banafis £ MES) 3 {465)
Cash ecewved from wirtoldng tax rofund 12.887 1T.Tad 12,338 171
Hel cheh genetaled from cperating sctivities. 2ATE a1 K], 384 TR.ETS
Thw dcoorpanyeng nokes ane an miegra? parn of hess consclciated and sep fnanoal
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Gne to One Contacts Public Compary Limited
Stalemants of Cikh Flaws (Conld)
For the year ended 3 December 2023

Coralidated Spparate
financial slaléments Tinancial $lalensents
ELre) 203 033 el

Mot Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousard Baki Thowssnd Baht

Cash fows fram Investing activilies
Carsh paid for purchase of Snancal asses.

mansred i e vakos hroogh profil or e 4 {460,983} [268, 0E8) {80 95 2066 065
Carh recishind Trom dispossd of miestmesn

magsured ol Tair wnkos Mrough profif o oss F4 367 216 E43 34267 FIEB43
Carsh recond froon disposal of imvestment in subsadiory
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One to One Contacts Public Company Limited
Motes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1 General information

One to One Contacts Public Company Limded, (“the Company”}. 15 a public company incorporaled and domiciled in
Thaitand, The Company is pancipally engaged in providing customes contaci center senvices, lis registered address is
9, Moo 4, Software Park Building, 9th Floor, Chaengwatlana Road, Klong Glur, Pak-Kred, Monthabur 11120,

The prncipal business oparabons of the Company and its subsidiaries (logether, "the Group™) are thea busmess of outsourced
cortact center services and hemkey tolal solutions.

These consolidated and separate financial statements were authorsed for issue by the Board of Direclors on
29 February 2004,

2  Basis of preparation

The comsolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with That Financial Reporting
Standards ("TFRS"} and the financial reporiing requirements issued under the Securities and Exchanga Act.

The consokdaled and separate financial statements have been prepaned vnder the histoncal cost comention excepl
certain financial assets and liabilties, and employes benefit obligations.

The preparabon of inancial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management io wse certain crnibcal accounting
estimates and fo exercise its judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas imvolving-a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas that are more likely to be materially adjusted due lo changes in eslimates and
assumptions are disclosed in Nota 8

An English version of the consolidated and separate financial stalemenis have been prepared from the statutory financial
statements that are in the Thai language. In the event of & confiict or a difference in interpretation between the two
languages, the Thai language statutory financiad statemeants shall prevail,

3  New and amended financial reporting standards

3.1 New and amended financial reporting standards that are effective for accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and are relevant to the Group

a) Amendment to TAS 16 - Property, plant and equipment clarified to prohibit entities from deducting from
the cost of an item of PPAE any proceeds received from selling any items produced while the entity is
preparing that assed for its intended use.

b)  Amendment to TAS 37 - Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets clarfed that, in
considenng whether a confract is omerous, the direct costs of fulfilling a confract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling the confract and an allocation of other costs directly related io fulfilling the
coniract. Before recognising a separale provision for an onerous coniracl, the enfify must recognise any
impairment losses thal have ocourmed on the assets vsed in fulfillng the contract,

&) Amendment to TFRS 9 - Financial Instruments clanfied which fees should be included in the 10% test
for the derecognition of financial liabilities. It should only include fees babween the bormmower and lender,

The new and amended Thai Financal Reporting Standards do nol have matenal impact fo the Group.
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Amended financial reporting standards that are effective for the accounting perlod beginning on or after
1 January 2024 and have significant impacts on the Group.

The following amended TFRSs were not mandatory for the cumrent reporting perod and the Group has not early
adopted them.

a) Amendment to TAS 1 - Presentation of financial statements revised the disclosure from “sigrificant
accounting polices’ to ‘materal accounting policies’. The amendment alsa provides guidalines on identifying
when the accounting policy information is matenal. Conseguently, immaterial accounting policy information
does nod need fo be disclosed, If it is disclosed, it should not ebscure material accounting information

b) Amendment to TAS 8 - Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors revised to
the definiion of 'accounting estimates’ to clarify how companies should distinguish bebween changes in
actounting policies and changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important bacause changes in
accounting estimates are applied prospectively to fransactions, other events and conditions from the date
of that change. Whereas changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events as well as the current period as if the new accounting policy had always
been applied.

€} Amendments to TAS 12 - Income taxes require companies to recognise defemed tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single transaction that, on initial recognition, gives rise to equal amounts of
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Example transactions are leases and decommissioning
obligations

The amendmaent should be applied o transactions on o after the beginning of the earlest comparative
perod presented. In addition, entities should recognise deferred lax asseds (1o the extent thal they can
probably be utilised) and deferred tax Babilities at the beginning of the eariest comparative pericd for all
deductible and taxable temporany differences associaled with:

+ right-of-use assefs and lease liabilities, and
* decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding amounts recognised as
part of the cost of the related assets,

The cumulative effect of recognising these adustments is recognised al the beginning of retained eamings
or anather component of equity, as appropriate.

The impact of the amended financial reporting standards is under the management's consideration,

Amended financial reporting standards that is effective for the accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2025 and has significant impacts on the Group,

The following amended TFRSs were not mandatory for the current reporting perod and the Group has not early
adopted them.

aj TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts TFRS 17 has replaced TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

It requires a current measureament model whera estimates are remeasured in each reporting penod.
Contracts are measured using the building blocks of:

+ discounted probability-weighted cash flows

= an explicil risk adjustment, and

« a confractual service margin [CSM) representing the unearmed profil of the contract which is
recognised as revenue over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice betwean recognising changes in discount rates either in the statement of
profit or loss or direcily in other comprehensive income. The chodee is likely to reflect how insurers account
for their financial assels under TFRS 9.

An aptional, simplified premium allocation approach is parmitted for the liability for the remaining coverage
for eligible groups of insurance contracis, which are often written by non-life insurers,

There is & modification of the general measurement model called the “varable fee approach’ for cartain
contracls written by life insurers where policyholders share in the retums from underlying ilems. When
applying the vanable fee approach, the entity’s share of the fair value changes of the underying itams is
included in the CSM. The results of insurers using this model are therefore likely to be less volatile than
under the general model,
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Adopting TFRS 17, the Group can choose 1o recognise any curmulative negative impacts from insurance
contract habiities in retained eamings by applying the straightine method, using no more than a three-
vear penod from the fransition date,

Thee new rudes-will affect the financial statements and key performance indicators of all entities that ssue
insurance contracts or investment contracts with discretionary participation features,

The impact of the amended financial reporting standards is under the manageameant’s consideration

Accounting policies

Principles of consolidation
a]  Subsidiaries

Subsadianies are all enfities over which the Group has control. The Group confrols an enbity when the Group
i exposed 1o, or has nghls o, vanable refums from its involvemant with the enlity and has the ability fo
affect those retums through its power over the entity, Subsidianes are consolidated from the date on which
controd is transferned (o the Group wuntil the date that controd ceasas.

in the separale financial statements, investments in subsidianes are accounted for at cost whech s
consideration paid and directly atirioutable costs,

b)  Chanrges in ownership interests

The Group freats transactons with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of confrod as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests io reflect their relative inferest in the subsidiary and any consideration paid or received
5 recognised within eguity.

When the Group losses control, joint control of significant influence over investments, any retained mterest
in the invesiment is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in camying amount recognised in profit or
loss, The fair value becomes the indial carmyng amount of the retained interest which is reclassified fo
investment in an associate, or @ joint venture or @ financial asset accordingly.

e} Intercompany ransackons on consolidalion

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on fransactions are eliminaled. Unrealised gains
on transactions between the Group ard its associates and joint venfures are eliminated fo the extent of the
Group’s inlerest in the associates and joint venlures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated in the same
manner unless the transaction provides evidence of an impasrment of the asset transferred.

Business combination
Business combination under common conbnol

The Group accounts for business combination under common control by measuring acquired assels and liabilites
of the acquires al lheir carming values presented in the highest level of the consolidation, The Group
retrospectvely adjusted the business combination wnder common conirol transactions as if the combination kad
occurmed on the later of the beginning of the preceding comparative period and the date the acquires has become
under commen control

Consideration of business combination under commaon contral ane the aggregated amount of fair value of assats
transfarred, hakiities incwrred and equity instruments issued by the acquirer at the date of which the exchange in
control cocurs,

The difference between consideration under business combination under common control and he aoguirers

inkerests in the camydng value of the acquires s presented as “surplus anseng from Business combinabion under common
confral” in equity and is derecognised when the imestment is disposed of by ransfermed to relained eamings:
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Foreign eurrency translation
a) Functional and preseniation currency

The financial statements are presented in Thal Baht, which i the Company’s funclional and presentation
CLMEncy.

B Transactions and balances

Foreign cumency fransactions are franslated into the functional cumency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
iranslation al year-gnd exchange rales of menelary assels and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies
are recognised in the profit or loss,

Any exchange component of gaing and losses on a non-manetary iem that recognised in prafit of loss, o
other comprehensive income is recognised following the recognition of a gain or loss on the non-monetary
itemn.

c) Group companies

The operational results and financal positon of the Group's entities (none of which has the curmency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) thal have a different funclional currency from the Group's presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- Assels and liabilities are iranslated at the closing rate at the date of respective stalement of financial
position;

- Income and expenses for statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange
rates; and

= All resulling exchange differences are recognised in other comprebensive income,

Cash and cash equivalents

In the statements of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call, shor-
term highly liguid investments with matunties of three months or less from acquisition date.

Trade accounts receivable

Trade receivables are amounts duwe from cusiomers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary cowrse of
business, They are generally due for settliernent within 30 - 90 days and therefore are all dassified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, they are recognised at fair value, The Group holds the frade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cosi

The impairment of trade receivables is disclosed in Note 4.7 (e).
Inventories

The cost of finished goods, work in progress, and supplies are staled at cost (weighled average method) or the
lower of cost and nel realisable value,

Financial asset
a) Classification

The Growp dassifies #s debt instrument financial assets in the following measwement categories depending
on i) business moded for managing the assat and i) the cash flow characteristics of the asset whether they
represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

s those o be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through
profit or kass), and
+ lhosa lo be measurad al amortised cost.

For investmenis in equity instruments, the Group has an imevecable election at the time of initial recognition

1o account for the equity investment at fair value through profit or loss (FYPL) or al fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYWOCI) except those that are hald for trading, they are measured at FVPL.
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b)  Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases, acquires and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
1o receivie cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been ransferred and the Group has
fransfermed substantially all the nsks and revards of cewnership.

c) kleasurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset,
Transaction costs of financial assets carmed al FVPL are expensed in profil or loss.

d) Equity insiruments

The Group measures all equity investments at fair value, Where the Group has elected o present fair value
gains and losses on equity instruments in QG there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses o profil or lss following the derecognition of the investment. Gan or 1655 from disposal of
these assets are recognised directly to retained earnings. Dividends from such investrments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as dividend income when the right to receive payments is established,

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other income in statement of
comprehensive income. These financlal assets include dervatives, securty iInvestments held for trading,
equity imsestments which the Group has nol imevocably elected to classify al FVOCH and financial assels
with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest.

Impairment losses and reversal of impairment losses on equity investments are reporied together with
changes i fair value.

) Impairment
The Group assesses and recognises kboss on impairment of frade receivables, contract assets, and lease
receivables by simplified approach, Loss on impairment by simplified approach is based on aging of trade
receivables, contract assets, and lease receivables and the statistical observation of historical default and
includes also foreard-locking information. The loss on impaiment recognesed by such approach has been
cisclosed nnole 11.3,
Impaiment and reversal of impaiment losses are recognised inprofit or loss and included in expected credit loss,
Property, plant and equipment

All ather property, plant and equipment are stated at histonical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to the acquisition of the iterns.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s camying amouwnt, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow o the Group. The camying amount of the replaced par & derecognised,

All ather repairs and maintenance are charged o profit or loss when incurmed.

Larnd is not depreciated. Depreciation on other asseis is calculated using the siraighi-line method 1o allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Tools and equipmant 3 - 5 years
CHfice equipment and computer 3 - 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Senvice equipment 3 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropeiate, at the end of each reporting perod.

Gains or losses on disposals ane determined by companng the proceeds with the carmying amount and are recognsed
in profit or loss.
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Intangible assets

Acguired intangible asseils

Separately acquired intangible assels are measured at historical cost.

The intangible assets with infinite useaful life are subsequeantly measured at cost less impairment losses.

The asseis with limited life are subsequently camied and cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses, The amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

Computer software 3 - 10 years
Digrtal platform 10 years
Trademark 10 years
Right for spart teams 10 years

The Group does nat apply amorisation for Compuler software under installation.
Actuired compuler soffware

Acquired computer software are measured at cost, These costs are amontised over their estimated useful lives
not over than 10 years,

Cost associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incumed,
Impairmant of assels

Assets that have an indefinite useful e are lested annually for impairment, and more frequently if events or changes
in circurmnstances indicate that i might be impaired. Assets thal are subject o amorisation are reviewed for
impairment wheneaver there is an indication of impairment. An impairment less is recognised for the amount by which
the carmyng amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in usa.

Where the reasons for previously recognised impainments no longer exist, the impairment losses on the assels
cancemed other than goodwill is reversed.

Goodwill impa .
The recoverable amounts of cash-generafing units have been determined based on value-in-use caloulations. The

calculaions use cash flow projections based on financial budget approved by management covering a five-year
period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth ratesl These growth rates are
consistent with forecasts induded n industry reports specific o the industry in which each CGU operates.

Leases
Leases - where the Group is the lessee

The Group rcognise leases as a nghl-of-use assel and a corresponding liability at the date at which the lsased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease pericd so 8s lo produce a constant pericdic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the assel's useful life and the lease term on a siraighl-line basis.

Contracts may confain both lease and non-Jease components. The Group allocales the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-ease components based on thair relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases
of real estate for which the group is a lessee, it has elecied not fo separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component,
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Assats and liabilies ansing from a lease ane indially measured on a present value basis. Lease labikbes include
the met presant valua of the following lease paymeants:

fueed payments (including in-substance fixed paymenis), less any lease incentives recaivable

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guaraniees

the exercise price of a purchase opton if the lessee is reasonably certain fo exercise that option, and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that oplion.

Lease paymenis to e made under reasonably cerain exiension opbons are also ncluded in the measurement
of the hability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the l2ase, If that rate cannot be detarmined,
the lessee's incremental borowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary o oblain an asset of similar value in a similar economic envirenment with similar terms and
condilions.

Right-of-use asseis are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liakbility

any lease payments made al or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
any inrbal direct costs, and

restoration cosis.

Fayments associated with shorl-lerm leases and leases of low-value assels are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss, Shart-ferm leases are keases with a leasa term of 12 months or less. Low-valus
assets comprise small tems of office furniture,

4.12 Financial liabilities
a) Classification

Financial instruments issued by the Group are cassified as either financial liabilities or equity securities by
considering contraciual obligations,

= Where the Group has an unconditional contraciual obligation to deliver cash or ancther financial asset to
anciher entity, il i considered a financial liabdity unless there i a predetemnined o possible settlement for
a fioed amount of cash in exchange of a fixed number of the Group's own equity instaments.

= Where the Group has no contraciual obligation or has an unconditional nght to avold delivering cash
or ancther inancial assel in settlement of the obligation, it i considened an equity instrument.

ings are classified as curent liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer setfement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

b}  Measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recognised al fair value and are subsequenily measured al amorised cost.
c) Derecognition and modification

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the coniract is discharged, cancelled,
or expired,

Wheare the terms of a finandcal liakility are renegotiatedmodified, the Group assesses whather the
reneguotiation / modification results in the derecognition of that financial liakdity, Where the modification results
in an exinguishment, the new financial kability is recognised based on fair value of its obligation. The
remaining carmying amount of fnancal ability 1 derecognised. The diference as well as proceed paid is
recognised as other gains/(losses) in profit or loss.

Where the modification does not result in the derecognition of the financial liabdity, the camying amouni of
the financial liability is recalculated as the present value of the renegotiated / modified contractual cash
flows discounted at its original effective interest rate, The difference is recognised in other gains/i{losses)
in profit oF loss.
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Current and deferred income taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except o
the extent that it relales to items recognised in oiher comprehensive income or directly in equity,

Current fax

The current income lax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacled at the end of
the reporting pericd. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax refurns with respect fo situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interprefation. The Group will establish provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid (o the tax authonties,

Dafarred imcome fax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising from differences between the tax base of
assets and liabilties and their camying amounts in the financial statements. However, defemred income tax is not
recognised for temporary differences anse from:

* initial recognition of an asset or liability in a fransaction ather than a business combination that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss is Rol necognised

* invesiments in subsidiares, associates and joint arrangements where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it s probable that the temporary difference will not
reversa in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income fax is measured using tax rates of the penod in which temporary difference is expected o be reversed,
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the repaorting period,

Deferred tax assels are recognised only to the exdent that it is probable that fulure taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be ufilised.

Defered tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset cument tax assets
and liabilies and when the deferred fax balances relate to the same taxation authonty. Current tax assets and

tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and imMends either to setile on a
nied bases, or b0 realise the asset and settle the hatdlity simultaneously.

Employee benefits
&) Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for shart-term employes benefits such as wages, salanes, bonuses, and contribution to the social
securify fund that are recognised in respect of employess’ service up io the end of the reparting period.

[+ Defined contribuiion plan

The Group pays contibulions 1o a separate fund on a voluntary basis. The Group has no further paymant
obligations once the contnbutions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employes benefit
expensa when they are due.

g} Defined benefit plans

Amount of refirement benefits is defined by the agreed benefils the employees will receive after the
completon of emplayment. I usually depends on faclons such as age, years of serace and an employes’s
latest compensation at retiremeant.

The defined benefit cbligation is calculated by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method, The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash oulflows using markel vield of government bonds thal malches the terms and curency of the
expected cash outflows.

Remeasurement gains and losses are recognisad directly to other comprehensive income in the period in
which they anse. They are included in retained eamings in the statements of changes in equity.

FPast-service cosls ane recognised immediately in prof or loss.
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d) Tarfmnabion banaits

The Group recognises termination benefits at the earier of (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for the related restructuring. Benefits due
mare than 12 months are discounted o their present value,

al Provision for vacalion

The Group has set up provision for vacation which is cabculated in accordance with the Group's policy and
formula, taking into consideration the employee’s salary, the number of senvice years and the unused
vacation days,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probabile that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
ectimated.

Provisions are measured al the present value of the expanditures expectad to be required 1o selle the cbligabion.
The increase i the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Share capital

Orinary shares ane classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuwe of new shares or oplions (net of tax) are shown as a deduction
im equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenuwe includes all revenues from ordinary business activiies. All ancillary income in connection with the
delivery of goods and rendering of services in the coursa of the Group's ordinary activities are also presaented as

reEvenue,

Revenue s recorded net of value added tax. They are recognised in accordance with the provision of goods or
services, provided that collectability of the consideration is probabbe.

Multiple element arrangements invalving delivery or provision of multiple products or services are separated info
imdividual distinet performancs cbligations. Total fransaction price of the bundled contract is allocated 1o each
performance obligation based on their relative standalone selling prices or estimated standalone selling prices.
Each performance cbligation is recognised as revenue on fulfilment of the obligation to the customer,

Revenues from confracls with cusiomers

The Group accounts for & confract with a customer when it has entered into an agreement between counter
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations. The Group has to identify its performance obligations and
allecate a ransaclion price 1o each obligation on an approphiate basis,

Reavenue from customer confact canler sernaces

Customer contact center services comprise 8 comprehensive range of services, from project design and planning
of customer contact center services, based on the customer's requirement and installation of hardware andlor
softwane which are treated as a single performance cbligation. Revenue 5 recognised over time when sarvices
have bean rendarad taking inlo account the stage of complation, using an input methed, based on comparison of
actual costs incurred up to the end of the perod and foial anticipated costs to be incumred fo complefion.
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract assel is recognised whene the Group recorded revenu for fulfilment of a contractual performands
cbligation before the customer paid consideration or before the requinements for billing.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer paid consideration or a receivable from the customer that is
due before the Group fulfiled a contractual performance abligation

For each customer contract, contract abiliies are set off against contract assets.,
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Revenues from Senics

Revenue of services is recognised over fime based on the percentage of complebion,

Salez of goods

Sales of goods are recognised al the point in me when condral of the goods is transferred to the customer,
genarally upon delivery of the goods. Sales is measured at the amount of consideration received or receivable,
exciuding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting refums, discounts and allowances to customers,
Irferest income

Interest income is recognised on a tme proportion basis, faking account of the principal oulstanding and the
effective rale aover the perod to maturty, when il is determined that such income will accrue to the Group.
Dividend income s recognised when the right o recelve payment (s established.

Costs to fulfil contracts with customars

The Group recognises cosis to fulfil a customer contract as an assel provided that the costs generale or enhance
resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying performance oblgations in the fulure ard the cosls ane
eupected to be recovered. The assel recognised is amartised 1o supanses on a systemalic basis thal it consisten
with the pattern of revenua recoghition. An mpairment koss & recognised to the exdent thal the carmying amount
of an assat recognised exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the entity expects o receive less
direct costs.

Reclassification

The Group has reclassified items ta be appropriate o the nature of the transaction and consistent with the presentation
of the current penod.

The retroactive impacts o consolidated and separate financial statements are as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

As of
31 December As of
2022 31 December
previously 2022
reported  Reclassification restated
Statements of Financial Position Motes Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
Current assets
Inventories 1) 3,238 {2.582) 44
Other current financial assets 2) 234 571 {224,571} .
Fimancial assels measured at
fair value through profit or loss 2) - 234 571 234 571
Non-current assets
Property, plant and eguipment 1} 62 308 25092 64 500
Ciher non-curreni financial assels 3 172,555 (172,555) .
Financial assels measured at
fair value through profit or loss 3 = 166,000 166.000
Financial assels measured at amonised cost 3 - 6,555 6,555
Total assets affected 472 BT0 - 472,870
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Statements of Financial Position

Current assets

Inventonas

Other current financial assats

Financial assels measurad at
fair value through profit or loss

MHon-current assets

Plant and egquipment
Oither rof-curnent inancial assets

Financial assefs measured at
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assefs measured at amontised cost

Total assets affected

For the year ended
Statements of Cash Flows

Cagh flows generated from operating activites

Cash flows used in investing actvities

Hotes:

Separate financial statements
s of

3 December As of
2022 3 December
As praviously 2022
reported Reclassification As restated
Motes Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
1) 2,19 (2.191) .
2) 2145M (234,571} -
2) - 234 571 23,571
1) 54,802 2191 56,003
3) 171,789 {171,789) -
3) - 166,000 166,000
3 - 5789 5,789
463,353 463,353

Separate financial statements

As of

31 Decembaer As of
2022 31 December
previously 2022
reported Reclassification restated
Hote  Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
1} 73,434 2,19, 75,625
1) {175.800) (2,181) (177,981)

1) Classifying equipment used for providing services to customers, previously classified as service of work in progress
under contract in inveniones to Plant and equipmeant in accordance with the nature of the transaction.
2y Classifying other current financial assels as financial assets measured at fair walue through profit or loss in accordance

with the nature of the transaction

3) Clagsifying other non-cumrent financial assels as financial assels measured at fair value through profit or loss for
invesiments in non-marketable equity securities and financial assets measured at amortised cost for deposits, 1o
make (i consistent with ihe nature of the ransaction.
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Financlal risk management

Financial risk

The Group exposes (o a vanety of financial risk: marked risk {inciuding foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise patential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance. The board of directars provides watien principles for overall risk managemeni which is carried out
by a central treasury departmeani (the Growup treaswry), including identification, evaluation and hedge of financial
risks in chose co-operation with cperating units,

Financial sk management is camed cut by the Group Treasury Commitiee. The Group's policy includes areas
such as forelgn exchange risk, interest rate rsk, price nsk, credit isk and liquidiy nsk, The framework parameters
are approved by the Board of Direclors and uses as the key communication and control toals for Treasury team
giobally.

6.1.1 Market risk
aj Imterest rate risk

The Group's income and operaling cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to intersst rate nsk relates pimarily to #s deposits at financial institutions,
shorn-term and long-term loans to other parties, and long-term borrowings. Most of the Group's financial
assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate.
The Group assesses thal the interest rate risk is insignificant as the imerests from financial assets and
financial habdities are not significantly different. However, the Group will use inlerest rale swap lo
managemsant the risk when necessary.

The Group and the Company does nol apply hedge accounting,
b}  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates nternationally and & exposed ko foreign cumency risks, primarily from trading ransactions.
The Group and the Company does not apply hedge accounting.

6.1.2 Crediirisk

Credil risk arises from cash and cash equivabents, contractual cash fiows ol debl instruments carred al a)
amortised cost, b) at fair valuee through profit or loss (FYPL) and deposids with banks and financial
institubons, as well as credit exposures to customers, including cutsianding receivables

aj Risk management
For banks and financial inslifulions, the Group's deposits are limited to high credit quality financial
mstitubions

If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used, Otherwse, if there is no independent rating,
rigk conirol assesses the credil quality of the cusiomer. taking into account its financial position, past
expenence and other factors. Individual risk lmis are sel based on mternal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit limats by customers is regulary
manilocred by line management,

Sales to retail customers are required to be seitled in cash or using major credit cards: lo mitigate credit
risk, There are no sEgnificant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual
customens, specilic mdustry seclons andlor regions.

The Group's mvestments in debl instruments are considered 1o be low risk investments. The credif ratings
of the invesiments are monitored for credit detenoration,

b}  Security

For some frade receivables the Group may oblain secunty in the form of guarantees, of lellers of credit
which can be called upan if the counterparty is in default under the larms of the agreament
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Impairment of Minancial assets

The Group has 5 types of financial assels that are subject 1o the expecled credit loss model:

trade and other recaivables

confract assets

shorl-term loans o third parties

shor-term Ioans o related parties

other current assels and olher non-curment assels

While cash and cash equivalants, shor-term loans to other parbes and ather currenl assets and other
non-cument assats are alse subject to the impairment requirements of TFRS 8, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial. For the short-lerm loans o third parties and shor-term loans to relailed parties, the
Group considers the impairment in Mote 13 and MNote 36 (c)

Trade recelvatves and confract asseis

The Group applies the TFRS 9 simpiified approach fo measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all irade receivables and contraci asseis.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and confract assets have been grouped based
on shared credit nisk charactenstics and the days past due. The contract assets refate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantiatly the same risk characieristics as the trade receivables for the same types
of confracts, The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a
reascnable approximation of the loss rates for the confract assets.

Armcunt of loss allowance on credit side as at 31 December 2023 for trade recelivable and confract assels
that calculated as expected credit loss method shown in Note 11.3.

Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management impllies maintaining sufficent cash and marketable securities and. the
availabdity of funding throwgh an adequate amewnt of commitied credd facilies ko meet obligatans when due
and o close oul markel pasitions, Al the end of the reporting penod the Group held deposits at call of Bahi 74 .52
million (2565; Baht 100.05 million) that are expected to readity generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve {comprising the undrawn bormorwing
facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

Financing arrangements
The Group had access io the following undrawn credit facilibes as st 31 December:

Conscolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Bahi Baht Baht Baht

- Bank overdraft and
bill faciliy 20,000 38,000 20,000 38,000
- Bank loans 150,000 250 000 150 000 280 000
170,000 328,000 170,000 a78,000

Maturity of financial Habllities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the confractual undrscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting ks not significant. For interesi rate swaps,
the cash flows have been estimated using forward interest rates applicable at the end of the reporting
perod. The table below excluded trade and other payables which maturity date within 1 year
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Th tabla below excluded trade and other payables which matunity date within 1 year,

Consolidated financial statements

Within 1 year Book value

Thowsand Ohvar 1 year Tatal of liabilities

Maturity of financial Habilities Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
As at 31 December 2023

Lease ligbilities g.427 &, 488 14,915 14,284

Total fimancial liabilities 8,427 6,488 14,915 14 284
As at 31 December 2022

Lease ligbkilities. 10,432 5. 148 15,578 15.131

Total financial liabilities 10,432 5,146 15,578 15,131

Separate financial statements

Within 1 year Book value

Thousand Over 1 year Total of liabliities

Maturity of financial Babilites Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
As at 31 December 2023

Lease liabdlities Ta1T 6,052 13,869 13,248

Total financial liabilities 7817 6,052 13,869 13,248
As at 31 December 2022

Leasa liabilities B830 4. 644 14 574 14 155

Total financial labilities 8,830 4 644 14,574 14,155

6.2 Capital management

6.2.1 Risk managemant

The Group's objectives when managing capiial are fo:

« safeguard their ability to continue as & going concern, so that they can continue 1o provide retums for

sharaholders and benefils for other stakeholders

, and

= maintain an optimal capital structure fo reduce the cost of capdal,

I order o mainian or adjest the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount af dividends pasd 1o
shareholders, return capital o shareholders, issue new shares or sell assels o reduce debi

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital based on the basis of the following geanng rato

The geanng ratios at 31 December were as follows:

Med dabt
Todal equity (incheding non-controdling inferests)

Met debt to equity ratio

182

Consalidated
financial statements
2023 2022
Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
101 054 142 220
1,045 480 BaT 139
.10 o017
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7  Fair value

The following table presents fair value of financial assets and labilities recognised by their fair value hierarchy

Consalidated ardl aeparaie financial slatenents

Loyl 1 Ll 2 Ll 3 Todal
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
i ] 2022 nrs 2032 2023 20x2 2023 2
Thoesang Thoasand Thausand Thousand Thowsand Thousand Thausand Thousznd
Baht Baht Bahd Bahk Bahit Baht Bahit Baht
Financial assels
Financial assets ad Fair value
theesgh prafi o ok
Hor-labd poualy imasimand 220325 34,571 . - B 23451
Listed ooty invostman 5 H B0 200 166,000 B0 200 166,000
Total inancial nssets 298398 3uah 0200 18B000  TMe438 4001

The classification of financlal assets and financial labilities by measurement s presented in Note 12, The far value
financial assets and liabilfes of the Group and the Company that are not measured al fair vabue which shawn in that

noles are approximate thesr book valwes.

Fair values are categorised info hierarchy based on inpuls used as follows!

Level 1 The fair value of financal instrumaents &5 based on the current bid pace or cloging prce by reference 1o the
Stock Exchange of Thailand / the Thal Bend Dealing Centre,
Lenval 2 0 Thea fair value of financkal instruments is determined using significant cbservable Inpuds and, as little as

possible, entity-specific estimates.

Level 3 ; The fair value of financial instrumenis is not based on chservable market data.

The fair value measurement of financial assets and financial lkabilites is in accordance with the accounting policies

disclosed in Mole 4.7,

The Group has no fransfers between fair value hierarchy during the year,

The foflowing table shows movement of financial assets for period ended 31 December 2023

The movements of financial assats {or the year ended 31 Decembear 2023 are as follows:

Current assets
Opening net book value
Addition

Disposal

Change in fair value
Closing net book value

Other non-current assots

Additicn

Digposal

Disposal of investment in subsideary

Gain from disposal recognised in profil or loss
Change in fair value

Cloging net book value

Consolidated financial statements

Financial assets measured at

Financial assets measured af

fair value through profit or loss amoriised cost
Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
234 5N -
400,993 -
(453, T95)
(42 544)
2208 225 -
186,000 6,555
- 184
(52,500} {2.211)
. {219)
2.700 -
546,004} =
60,200 4,309
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Separate financial statements
Financial assets measured at Financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss amartised cost
Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
Current assets

Opening net book value 234 571 -
Addition 490,903 -
Disposal (453, 705) .

Change in fair vakie (42,544}

Closing net book value 230 225
Other non-current assels 166,000 5,789
Addition - 184
Disposal (52,500} {2,118}
Gain from disposal recognised in profit or loss 2700 .
Change in fair value (56000} -
Closing net book value &), 200 3,855

Valuation fechnigues used to defermine fair values,

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instrumenis include:
= for other financial instruments - discounied cash flow analysis

Fair valus measuraments using significant unobservable inpwts (level J)

The following table presents the changes in fair values in level 3 for the years ended 31 December:

Consolidated and separate
financial statements
Unlisted equity securities
Thousand Baht

fs at 1 January 2022 175,000
MNet less from fair value adjusiment {8,000)
Closing balance 31 December 2022 166,000
Disposals (92,500}
Gains from disposals mcogrised in profit or loss 2,700
Loss from fair value adjustment {56,000)
As at 31 Decembaer 2023 60,200

During the year ended 21 Decamber 2023, the Company sold investmant in Hinsitsu (Thailand) Puiblic Company Limited which
is investrment in financial assets measwed at fair value through profit or loss. The carmying amount is Bahi 166 00 miion, the
Company has gain from sold mwestment by Baht 270 milion, The ransaction 15 sale back to Simal Technologies Public

Company Limited,
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The faliowing lable summarises the quantitative nformation aboul the significant uncbserable inpuls used in level 3 fair
value maasuremeants.

Fair value Range of inputs
2023 2022
Thousand Thousand 2023 2022
Baht Baht Unobservable inputs {%a) )
Linlisted equity securities 60,200 166,000 Risk-adjusied discount rate 8.50 8ar

Relaticnzhip of unobservable inpuls 1o fair value are shown as follows,

Change in fair value

Increase in Decrease in

Unobservable Movement assumptions assumptions

Inputs (%) 2023 2023

Unlisted equity securities Risk-adjusted discount rate 1.00 Decrease by 18% Increase by 25%

The Group’s valualion processes

Chéef Financial Cificer (CFQ), Audit Commitiee (AC) and a valuation team discuss valuation processes and results al
least every quarter.

Signaficant unobservable input of fair value higrarchy level 2 is risk adjusied discount rate. It is estmated based on public
companies’ weighted average cost of capital thal. are in opinion of the Group, ina comparable financial position with the
counterpany in the contract, The Group has subscriptions to information brokers 1o gather such informiation,

B Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other faciors, including
expectations of future events thal are bekieved 1o be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of certain financial assets and derlvatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is dalermined using valuation technigues.
The Group uses judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumpbons that are mainly based on market
conditions exsting at the end of each reporiing period. Details of key assumpbions used are included in Note 7

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about default sk and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selacting the inpuis wused in the impairment calculabon, based
on the Group's past histery and existing market conditions, as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period

Deferred tax asset for carried forward tax losses

The Groug has incurred losses for the past two yvears. Based on the projected future profits derved from the business
pan and approved budgs, the Group conciuded thal i would not be able to ulilise from defemed tax assets within 5
years. Therefore, the Group and (ke Company have nol recognised defermed tax assets for the carried forward tax losses
and tax losses incurred during the year,

Useful life of plant and equipment and intangible assets and right-of-use assets

Management estimates the useful lives and residual values for plant and equipment, induding velicles, Intangible
assels, and right-of-use assels, which ane factors in determining asset depreciation. Thare will be a review af the useful
Ives and residual values al least annually. The Group will wiile-off assels thal are impaired or ne longer in wse through
sale or cessation of us
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8  Segment information

The Group's strategic steering committee, consisting of the chief executive officer (CEQ) and the chief financial officer (CFO), examines the Group's performance from a group of service
perspective and has identified three reportable segments of the Group's businesses which comprise outsourced contact center services, tumkey total solutions, and others.

The steering committee primarily uses a measure of segments’ revenue and gross margin to assess the performance of the operating segments, Significant information relating to revenue
and profit of the reportable segments are as follows:

Consolidated financial statements
Data centre service

Outsourced contact development and
center services installation business Others Total

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand

Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

Total revenue from sales, contracts, and services 616,118 567,333 17.480 19,939 3428 63,079 B37.026 650,351

Revenue from related party (64.431) (25,900) - (3,994) - - (64,431) (29,894)

Revenue from external customers 551,687 541,433 17,480 15,845 3,428 63,079 572,595 620457

Cost of sales, contracts, and services (484,047) (512,991)

Segment profit 88,548 107,466

Qther revenue 14,910 14,180

Selling expense (2,011) (1,522)

Administrative expense (116,195) (99,889)

Expected credit loss (144,979) -

Net loss for the year (263,030) {159,118)

Finance revenue 3.968 257

Finance cost (535) (809)

Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets - 123

Net loss before income tax benefit (expense) (419,234) (139,312)

Income tax benefit (expense) (27.,887) 23,553

Net loss for the year (447,321} (115,759)
Timing of revenue recognition:

Over time 551,687 . 17,480 - 3,219 A 572,386 620,457
At a point in time - - - - 209 - 208 -

The Company and the Group do not have significant service revenue that is concentrated in any one customer or any part of the wark,
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Therafore. the managament has considered recognising an expeclad credit oss an ihe outsianding balance of
Baht 120 million during the third quarier of 2023, The axpecled credit losses are recogrised in profit or loss fram,
neat from the gains on disposals of this indirect subsidiary (Moka 31).

Hewever, the management & currently in the process of considenng negatations with both parties 1o reach a
miual agreemant. This includes taking legal aclions as necessary o minimise the impact on the Group as much

as possible,
Trade receivables as of 21 December can be analysed by aged as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial information financial infermation

3 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thausand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Mot vt dus 67,741 53,559 51,562 48,059
Up to. 3 months 15,004 85,874 2T 446 ar.1vo
3 - B months 1,583 1,891 1,105 E
6 - 12 months 750 413 TG 413
12 = 18 months 57 . . .
Orver 18 months 36,382 34 950 35,382 34 9eg
Less Alipwance forespeced credi loss (36.235) (28 262) (36.027) {35,382)
Total 85 182 116,444 Bl 234 a5 269

Trade and cther receivables fair value

The nalure of trade and other recevables 5 curment assels. Their camying amount (5 considened o be approsmats

it fair vialues.
Contract assets
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Contract assets:
= Third parties 42,971 4 BO9G 28170 38,96
- Redated party {Nate 36) - 2514 763 =
Less Loss allowance (48] £ {222y =
Total contract assats 40 482 A9 A05 28,711 38,946
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1.3 Loss allowance for trade recelvables and contract assets

The loss allowanca for irade receivables and conlract assets was delermined as follows:

Consolidated financial statements
Up to 3-8 G-12 Ower
Current 3 months manths months 12 months Tatal
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
At 31 December 2023
GrOss carmymng amount
- frade receivables B7. 741 15854 1.583 750 35438 121,417
- contract assats 41,819 6435 1,540 Tr - 45 971
Gross amourt 1048 660 22 329 4 133 B27 A5 438 171,388
Loss allowance
- trade receivabias (305) (206) {210} 132y  (35,382) (36,235)
- contract assets (189) (B3 (203) {14} - (4ag)
Totel loss allowance (484} (2B9) {413} (146) (35,382 (36,724)
Consolidated financial statemants
Up to 3-6 6-12 Over
Current 3 months moanths months 12 months Tatal
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Bahi Baht Baht Baht
3 December 2022
Gross canying amaunt
- frade receivables 535549 65874 1.891 413 34 069 156,706
- ponfract assels - 45481 2,829 B9t 208 49,409
Gross amaoun 53,559 111,355 4. 720 1,304 302177 206,115
Loss allowance
- lrade recaivablas - - - - (38,262) (38, 262)
Total loss allowance - . (38,262) (38.262)
Separated financial statements
Up to 3-8 6-12 Owver
Current 3 months months months 12 months Taotal
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thouwsand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
31 December 2023
Gross Carrying amaunt
- frade recalablas 51592 27 446 1,105 736 35382 116,261
- contract assals 26774 2300 Ta2 Tr - 28933
Gross amount 78 366 20,746 1,887 £13 35,382 146,194
Lass allowancs
- trade receivabies (2043 (163) (1485) [(132)  (35,382) (36.027)
- contract assals {120} (25] (B3} {14} < {222}
Total loss allowance (324) {188) (204 (146)  (35,382) (36, 24%)
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Separated financial statements.
Up to 3.8 6-12 Over
Current 3 months months months 12 months Taotal
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
31 December 2022
Carrying amount
- trade receivables 45 084 37,170 - 413 34 864 120, 651
= contract assets - ar. 182 1.555 - 208 S8, 046
Gross amount 48 088 Tab 352 1.5655 413 25,177 150,547
Loss allowance
- trade receivables - - . - (35382)  (35,382)
Total loss allowance - < = - (35382) (35,382}

The loss allowances for trade receivables and confract assels as at 31 December reconcile io the opening oss
allowances as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

Trade receivables Contract assels
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
At 1 January 38,262 34,860 - -
increase In loss allowance recognised in
profit or loss during the year B53 3,293 480
Disposad of equity investment {2.880) . .
At 31 December 36,235 38, 262 480 -
Saparate financial stalements
Trade recelvables Contract assets
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
At 1 January 36,382 34,969 - -
Increase in loss allowance recogrised in
profit or loss during the year B45 413 222 -
At 31 December 36,027 35,382 222

Trade receivables and contract assels are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery,
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor i
engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make confractual payments of cannot be conlacted
for a penod greater than 120 days past due,

Impairment losses on trade receivables and confract assets are presented as net impairment losses within profit

before finance cosls and income taxes, Subsequent recoveres of amounts previcusly written off are crediled
against the same lne ifem,
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12 Financial assets and financial llabilities

The following table shows fair values and carmying amounts of financial assels and liabilities.

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 20E2 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Financial assets
Flnanr:ral assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 4,522 100,045 34 000 71,088
- Trade receivables 91,060 118,647 87.a7s a5 aar
- Shor-term loans to related parties - - - 76,000
- Shor-term loans to third parlies 42 500 - 42,500 -
- Other current assets® 80,216 641 &0.062 208
Deposils 4318 6,555 3,864 5,789
Cither non-current assefs® 220,900 278 220,000 276
Flnanuaa assets at fair value through prafit or
loss [FWPL)
- Invesiment in listed equity securbies 228 F2hH 234 571 220 225 234 571
- Invesiment in non-listed equity securifies &0,200 166, 000 B0, 200 186 00O

* Excluding items thal are nol financial assets
Shortl-term koans fas value

The nature of shor-term loans are cument assets, Their camying amount is considered to be approximate their fair values,

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thausand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Bakht Baht Baht Baht
Financial liabilities
Fimancial labiites at amorbsed cost
- Trade and other payables 52,362 B4 321 43,749 43815
- Othver cusrent labifikes® 16,434 15,286 12,183 13,773
- Current portion of lease liabilities B.060 10,057 T.4449 9575
Lease labdities 6,224 5,074 5,794 4,580
Crther ran-current labilifies® 1,665 1,699 1,602 1,628

* Excluding items thal are not financial liabilites

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company enterad into a secured shar-ierm loan agreemant with third party
which has a contract period of & montihs. The contract bears interast rate at §.00% per annum (2022; Mone) (Note 13)
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121 Other financial assets at amortised cost

a)

Classification of financial assets at amortised cost
The Group classifes its inancial assets as at amortised cost only if bath of the lolowing criteria are met.

= the assetis held within a business model whose objective is 1o collect the contractual cash flows, and
« the contractual terms givee rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interast

Financial assels measured al amonised cost comprise of cashand cash equivalents and irade and other
recaivables. These inclede short-term loans fo related parties, shori-term loans fo third parlies, other
current assels, and other non-current assels. Also, these financial assels, measured at amortised cosi,
include items such as rental deposits, office buiiding senvice fees, and warehouse rental fees, which are
gccounted for as follows:

Consolidated Bnancial statements

31 December 2023 3 December 2022
Current Mon-current Total Current Mon-current Total
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Bakt
Short-term loans to third party 100,000 - 100,000 - - -
Crher current assedis and
other non-cument assets Q0218 220,900 MG 541 276 a7
Financial assats
at amodtised cosl - 4,470 4470 - G707 & 707
Less Expectad credit loss (6T, 5000 i52 T 6E2) - [152) {152
Tatal 122 716 zfé.‘ﬁg %ﬁﬂ'ﬁd Bl GA Tdis
Separate financial statements .
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Current Mon-current Total Current Mon-current Total
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Shoet-lenm loans o
third parties 100,000 - 100,000 - - -
Shodt-1enm loans o
releled parties 67,600 - 67800 6,000 - 76,000
Crther curment asseés and
other non-cument assats B0 062 220 200 300 B2 288 276 574
Financial assats
at amorfised cosi = 4 016 4016 - 5541 5,941
Less Expected credit loss {125,300) (1527 (125458 : (152 {152}
Total 122 662 224 764 347 33 V6,298 5085 82 363
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12.2 Financial assets measured at falr value through FVPL
aj Classification of fimancial assets measured af fair value through FVPL
Financial assets measured at fair value through FYPL comprise:

. Imvestment in listed equity securities
. Investment in non-listed equity securities.

Fimancial assels measured at FVPL comprisa the following imvestments;

Consolidated and separate
financial statements
2023 2022
Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht
Current assets
Investments in equity investmenis
- Listed secunties 280,225 234,571
Invesiments in debt secunbes
= Unlisted debt secuniies 60,200 166,000
Total 288,425 400 571

b} Amounts recognised in profit of loss
The following gains/ilosses) were recognised in profit or less during the year as follows:

Consolidated and separate

financial statements
2023 2022
Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht

Losses from changes in fair vakue of financial assats

measured al FvPL {90,544 ) {107 887
Lesses from disposal of financal assets measured at FYPL (162 028) (40, 750)

13 Shori-term loans to third parties

Movemeants of short-term loans to third parties for the year ended 31 Decamber 2023 as follows:

Consolidated and separate
financial utntum_g_nl:a

Thousand

Baht

Cipening net book value -
Loans addition during the year 100,000
Less  Expected credit loss (27, 500)
Closing nel book vakie 42 500

On 21 July 2023, the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 1272023 spproved a non-revahing loan 1o Wow Facior Publc Company
Lirnitesd (WOAY), a hsted company in which the Company hokds 7.92% of #s issued and paid-up shames, amounting to Baht 100
milban. The koan i setuted by common shares of WOW's subsidianes, has a berm of s months and cames & fixed inenest
rate of % per annum. The princpal and inferest will be fully repaid by 25 danuary 2024
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On 24 January 2024, WOW sent a letler 1o mform the Company of the interest payment on the Isan, The Company
recaived the paid interest on 25 January 2024, along with a request (o exdend the loan repayment penod for another six
moaths. WOW swill repay ihe principal by 25 June 2024, along with providing additoral collateral for the kaan in the form
of ordinary shares of WOW's indirect subsidiary, The pledge of these shares will be recorded in accordance with the
steps prescribed by law,

Subsequently, on 19 February 2024, the Company’s Beard of Directors Meeting No. 4/2024 considered and approved
an exfension of the repayment perod for all loans including interest that WOW has not yet paid to the company. The
extersion will b2 granted within seven days after WOW increase s capital by issuing and offering additicnal common
shares fto Bmited persons, and will be presented in WOW's Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on 20 April 2024
or no later than 25 June 2024 (whichever comes first). The company's executives have already reviewed the WOW's
capital increase plan and the business plan presanted by WOW to the Company and they assessad (hat the Company

‘will receive the entire amount from the bormower amount of Baht 57 50 million in expected credit foss. (Mote 31)

14  Inventories

Consolidated Separate
financial atatements financial statements
2023 2022 20231 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Raw malenal 1,445 1,742 1,416 1416
Supplies 247 318 - -
Less Allowance for net realisable value (1.416) (1.416) {1,416) {1.418)
Tetal 280 44 = =
15 Other current assets
Consolidated Separate

financial infermation

financial infermation

31 December 31 December

31 December 31 December

2023 2022 2023 2022

Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Prepaid expenses 8875 i, 964 BoTE 6,751
Withhaolding tax expected fo be

recovered within one year 8 665 34,915 B.BES 32402

Deposit to be refunded within one year 80,216 641 80,062 288

Dthers 3,500 3,657 1,283 2887

Less Aowance for expected credit loss {10,000 - - -

Total 104,358 46177 98 188 42 348

151 On 13 September 2023, the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 1672023 passed a resolution approving the
Company's study and investmaent in wind power plants in Vietnam hrough the purchase of 19% commaon shanes
af a haolding company. The holding company is a foreign legal entity that holds shares in 8 Vietnamesa legal
entity, which owns wind power plants with a tofal capacity of 60 megawatts. The holding company is an indirect
subsidigry of a listed company (the sefler) The total offering price from the seller is Baht 665 millicn, The
Company has signed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) setting out the details, condiions and various
operations related 1o the share purchase transaction mentioned above. The decision 1o enter inlo the purchase
and sale agreement is subject to due diligence of the target companies and ather condiions précsedant, including

ihe approval procadures of the Company,

To gecure the exclusive right to purchase such shares (exciusivity nght), the Board of Directors approved the Company
to place a refundable deposit of Bahit 100 millian, which aceounted for 15% of the price offered o the seller,
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Hewever, on 2 Oclober 2023, the Company sant a letber requesting 1o cancel the MOLU. This decision was made
after the Company studied additional information, induding information the current situation, especially the
commercial operation date (COD), electricity rates, and the financial structure of the progect which has nol yet
been finalised. The Company requested the seller to return the deposit logether with compensation for related
due diligence expenses within the period specified in the MOLL

In addiions, the Company received a refund of Baht 20 million fram the seller and reguested the seller o return
the remaining deposit of Baht &0 millkon together with a penalty at the rate of 15% per annum. As of 31 December
2023, the Company had not yet received the deposit from the seller.

Events after the reporting period

n 21 February 2024, the Company and the Seller signed a Memarandum of Agreemant (MOA) regarding the
repayment of deposits, penalties and due diligence costs to the Seller, in reference to the MOU dated 13
September 2023, which includes the following imporiant points,

1) The seller agrees o returm the remaining depoesit of Baht 80 million in six instalmeants as follows:

Period Due date Payment amount (Milllon Baht)
1 28 March 2024 1250
2 30 April 2024 12.50
3 31 May 2024 1260
q 28 June 2024 12.50
5 31 July 2024 15.00
] 30 August 2024 15.00

Tatal &0.00

2)  Theseller agrees to pay interest at a rate of 15% per annum on the cutstanding deposit amount plus auditing
expenses totaling Baht 550,000 within three business days from the dale of agreement.

3) Both parties agree to grant the Company the Right of First Refusal. Within 12 months from the signing of
this memarandum, if the seller receives any offers from other investors in the project, the seller will inform
the company in advance before entering a sales contract with that clher investor, This provides an
opporiunity for companies to express their interest or decling investment in such projects,

Howewar, the Company's management has evaluated the feasibdity and financial ability of the seller, taking
into considaration the deposit repayment plan, the value of the collateral and the progress of the power plant
project. They consider that the Company has an opportunity to receive the refund of deposit as specified in
the MOU. Therefore, the company presenis the deposit as a revolving fund in its entirety,

152 On 13 July 2023, the Board af Directors of Inne Hub Company Limited (a subsidiary of the Group) No. 572023
approved the company's participation in a joint investrment study with a Thai juristic person. The objective is ta
siudy three joint invesiments in developing and marketing platforms, with a combined invesiment value of Baht
40 million. Additionally, the Board approved a guarantee of Baht 10 million for other investors, which accounted
for 25% of such tramsactions, As a result, as at 20 September 2023, the Group has a guarantee for invest in the
platforms totaling Baht 10 millicn,

Later, on 4 October 2023, the Board of Directors Meeting of Innd Hub Company Limited No. T/2023 approved the
termination of the joint investment study in such platforms becausa the Group's current investment policy focuses
on the energy business so it's necessary to use funds carefully. In addition, changes in key executives and
employesas responsible for the project have also impacted the Group, polentially leading to a lack of continuity in
the investment study. The Group s currently in negotiations to cancel the investment and will proceed with
recalling the guaranies.

Howevar, managemeant has assessed the countarparty’s ability 1o repay the security deposit, taking into
consideration their financial siatus and operating resulis. The managemsant has decided to record an allowance
for expected credit loss for the entire cutstanding insurance amount of Baht 10 million in the fourth guarter of
2023, It Is recorded as part of expected credit k0ss in the statements of comprehensive income in the consalidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 (Mote 31).
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16  Investments in subsidiaries

Movements of invesiments in subsidiaries for the year ended 31 Decembear 2023 and 2022 are as follows.

Separate financial information
Investment in cost method
31 December 31 December

2023 2022

Thousand Thousand

Baht Baht

Opening net book value 39 965 14,965
Increase in investment 36,2459 40,000
Lass on impairment of investment 125,000} 115,000}
Closing net book value 41,214 20,055

On 10 January 2023, the Board of Direciors” Meeting Mo, 1/2023 approved the establishment of a new subsidiary b support
the business expansion of the Group, The new company's business is importing, manufacturing, assembling and selling
electrz moloreycle vehiche parts, and the establishiment of the new company was registensd with the Department of Business
Developrment on 28 Febneary 2023, The new company has regisiered capital of 100,000 shares with a par value of Bant 100
par share, totaling Baht 10.00 million. The new company already has paid up shares in the full amount.

On 28 Februasy 2023, the Board of Directors’ Mesting Mo, 220023 approved the establishment of a new subsidiary fo expand
business opporunities and adapt io economic and indusinal changes. The new campany’s business is trading carbon credits,
and the estabéshment of the new company was regstiered with the Depariment of Business Development on 26 Apnl 20123,
The reew company has regestered capital of 50,000 shares with a par value of Bahl 100 per share. tofaling Baht 5.00 million,
The new company has already paid up 25% of the total shares

On 11 August 2023, the Extracminary (General Meeling of Shareholders Mo. 12023 approved e increase in the registered
capital of One 1o One Professional Company Limited (a subsadary of the Group) in the amount of Baht 25 million, divided irto
2.5 milllon eommon shares with a par value of Baht 10 per share, The original registered capital of Baht 5 milBon was rased o
registersd capital of Baht 30 million, Including approval of amendments 1o Section 5 of the Companys memorandum of
assocation to align with the increase n capital. The subsidiary requesied Tull payment for the shares. and the Company paid
the full amount on 16 August 2023,

Dwring fhe third quarter of 2023, the Company recognised an aflowance for impairrment in its investment in Inno Hub Company

Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. The impairment amount was Baht 35 million, recorded a5 other expense in the separale
Tinancal statements of comprahensive incomes for the tsetve-manth penod ended 31 December 2023 (MNole 30}
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As at 31 December, details of investments in subsidiaries are as follows:

Ownership interest held

Separate financial information

by Company Investment in equity method

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Country of 2023 2022 2023 2022

Company's name incorporation Mature of business %o %  Thousand Baht Thousand Baht
Subsidiaries

One to One Professional Company Limited Thailand Fully outsourced contact centre and 100.00 100.00 30,000 5,000

customer management services
One to One (Cambodia) Company Limited Cambodia Fully outsourced contact centre and 100.00 100.00 19,725 19,725
{In the process of being liquidated) customer management services
Inno Hub Company Limited Thailand Digital service innovation 100,00 100.00 50,000 50,000
EV Click Company Limited Thailand Import, manufacture, assemble and 99 .99 - 9999 -
sell electric motorcycles.
CCS Carbon Clear Solution Company Thailand Carbon Credit Trading 99.99 - 1,250 -
Lirmited
Less Loss allowance on impairment (69,760) {34,760)
Total 41,214 39,865
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J

17  Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated financial statements

Equipment
Office Service Tools and Motor under
Land equipment Equipment equipment Computer vehicles installation Total
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand

Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
At 1 January 2022
Cost or fair value - 36,419 4502 657 686 211,778 - 36,569 046 054
Less Accumulated depreciation - (27,220) {(1,577) (646,275) (207,808) - - (882,880)
Net book amount - 9,199 2,925 11,411 3,970 - 36,569 64,074
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amount - 9,199 2925 11,411 3,970 - 36,569 65,074
Acquisition of a subsidiary - 56 - 715 357 - - 1,128
Additions - 4 564 - 1,655 5016 - 18,944 30,079
Disposals and write-off, net - (1,084) - (38) (28) - - (1,158)
Transfer in (out) - 3,080 1121 41974 3913 - (50,088) -
Depreciation charge - (4,469) (1,855) (18,635) (4,260) - - (29.219)
Exchange differences - (4) - 1 (1) - = (4)
Closing net book amaount - 11,332 2,191 36,985 8,967 - 5425 64,900
At 31 December 2022
Cost - 37471 5,623 698 705 218,228 - 5425 965,452
Less Accumulated depreciation - (26,139) (3,432) (661,720) (209,261) - - (900,552}
Net book amount - 11,332 2,191 39,985 8,967 - 5425 64,900
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Consolidated financial statements

Equipment
Office Service Tools and Motor under
Land equipment Equipment equipment Computer vehicles installation Total
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
For the year ended 31 December 2023
Opening net book amount = 11,332 2,191 36,985 8,967 = 5,425 64,900
Additions 140,000 1,634 15,035 2873 6,291 - 1,085 166,918
Transfer from right-of-use assets - - - - - 3.103 - 3.103
Disposals and write-off, net - (46) - (384) (1) (2,996) - (3.427)
Transfer in {out) - 5,638 - 401 - - (6,039) -
Depreciation charge - (4,638) (2,299) (18,929) (4,833) (107} - (30,8086)
Acquisition of a subsidiary - (129) - (973) (1,096) - - (2,198)
Closing net book amount 140,000 13,791 14,927 19,973 0,328 - 471 198,490
At 31 December 2023
Cost 140,000 42,249 20,658 702,086 220,102 - 471 1,125,566
Less Accumulated depreciation - {28,458) (5,731) (682,113) (210,774) - - (927,0786)
Met book amount 140,000 13,791 14,927 19,973 9,328 - 471 198,490
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At 1 January 2022

(Reclassified comparative figures)
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

MNet book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amount

Additions

Disposals and write-off, net

Transfer in (out)

Depreciation charge

Clesing net book amount

At 31 December 2022
Cost or fair value
Less Accumulated depreciation

MNet book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfer from right-of-use assets
Disposals and write-off, net

Transfer in {out)

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2023
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

Met book amount

Peer For You Public Company Limited | Foermer: One To One Contacts Public Company Limited |

-

Separate financial statements

Equipment

Office Service Tools and Motor under
Land equipment Equipment equipment Computer vehicles installation Total
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
- 34,457 4,502 648,118 207,695 - 36,168 930,940
- (24,493) (1,577) (641,142) (204,010) - - (871,222)
- 8,964 2925 6,976 3,685 - 36,168 58,718
- 9,964 2925 6,976 3,685 - 36,168 59,718
- 49 - 1,207 4,036 - 18,944 24 236
(955) - - - - - {955)
= 3,080 1,121 41,974 3,913 = (50,088) =
(3,832) {1.855) (16,361) (3,958) - - (26,006)
- 8,306 2,191 33,796 7,676 - 5,024 56,993
- 32,821 5623 690,875 215,644 - 5024 949 987
(24,515) (3,432) (657,079) (207,968) - - (892,994}
8,306 2,19 33,796 7,676 - 5,024 56,993
- 8,306 2,19 33,796 7,676 - 5024 56,993
140,000 1,608 15,035 2,460 5911 - 1,085 166,099
- - - - - 3,103 - 3,103
= (46) % (85) (1) (2,996) o (3,128)
= 5,638 5 5 - - (5,638) -
- (3.724) (2,299) {17 .456) {4,607) (107) . (28,193)
140,000 13,791 14,927 18,715 8,979 - 471 194,874
140,000 37,566 20,658 596,791 217,087 - 471 1,012,573
E (25.784) (5,731) (578,076) (208,108) 2 5 (871,699)
140,000 11,782 14,927 18,715 8,979 - 471 194 874
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Depreciation recognised in profil and loss as follows:

Cost of senvices
Adminisirabion expenses

18 Right-of-use assets

Balance as al 1 January 2022
Additians

Lease lerminabon
Amorlisabon

Balance a5 al 31 Decamber 2022

Balance as at 1 January 2023
Addatans.

Lease modifications

Lease lermination

Transfer o equipment
Deprecation

Ealance as at 31 December 2123
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Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Eaht Baht
24 208 24 8T8 23,956 22,063
6.508 4 311 4837 3,043
A0 206 292149 28,193 26,006

Buildings and vehicles

Congolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Thousand Baht Theusand Baht
23977 23757

3,863 2666

{1,714} (1,714)
{11,615} {11,043}

14,611 13,666

14,611 13,666

5,012 4,385

8,523 B 523

{2008) (08

(3.103) (3,103)

(10,820} {10,254}

14,014 13018

The expense relating ioleases that not included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right -of-use and cash outfiows

for leases s a5 folbows!

Expense relating to shor-term leases

Consolidated Scparate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2023
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
12,316 16,423 10,620 14,685

Total cash outflow for leases in 2023 is Baht 13596 million in the consaldated inancial statements and Baht 13.37 million
in the separate financial statemants (2022 Baht 15.8 million in the consaolidated financial stalements and Baht 153

million i the separate financial statements).
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19  Intangible assets

At 1 January 20232

Cost

Less Accumulated amortisation
Less Accumulated impairmant

MNat book amoung

For the year ended

3 December 2022
Cipening net book armount
Acquisition of a subsidisry
Addition
Disposal and wnbe-off, ned
Transfer in {out)
Amuorisation
Exchangs differences
Impairmant charge

Clasing net back amount

At 31 December 2022

Cost

Less Accumulsied amaortsation
Less Accumulated mmpairmant

Met book amouni

For the year ended

31 December 2023
Opening net book armount
Addition
Transfer n {out)
Disposal and write-off, mel
Acquisition of 8 subsidiary
Amuoaisation
Closing net book amount
At 31 December 2023
Cost
Less Accumulated amortization
Less Accumulsied impairmeant

Met baok amount
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Consolidated financial statements

Computer

softwarg

Compauter Digital Right far Digital under
soffwars platform  Trademark sport beams assets  installation Total
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
103,493 - - - - 3,285 106,778
{73,763) . - - - (73,763)
(4.582) - - - - (4,582)
25,148 « - - - 3,285 28433
25 148 - - - - 3,285 28433
15 £4,150 8,731 . - - T2 BOG
2,152 1.700 = 8.507 8380 1.004 21,743
{149) - - : (818 (981) (1.228)
2437 - - - 3 [2.437) -
15,773 (4925 {711) (275) - - {11, 688,
i3 - - - - (3
: - - = (70600 (7,060)
23827 60.021 8,020 8.232 1221 E71 103082
106,831 B5 BE0 8,73 8,507 8,281 871 198,071
(78,422 [, ) (711} (275 4 - (B4 3aT
14,582) - - - (T, 060) {11,642)
23.827 80.021 B.020 B8.232 1221 871 103092
23,827 B0E2Y B.020 8232 1,221 ar 103,082
10,097 - - - 65 4 870 15152
4,728 3 2 . - {4.725) :
; : - 3 (1.206) - (1,286
{245) [B0.821) [8.020) (8:232) - (TT.418)
[CREL - - - - {8,157}
32,207 - - - - 1.118 33323
121,653 - - - - 1,116 122 TES
{84,864 - - - - - {84,864)
14, 552 - - - - (4,582
3z.207 - - - 1,118 33323
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At 1 January 2022

Cosl

Less Accumulated amortisation
Less Accumulated impairment

Met boak amount

For the year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amiownt

Addition

Disposal and writa-of, net

Transfer in (out)

Amortisation

Impairment charge

Closing net book amaunt

At 31 December 2022

Cost

Less Accumulated amorhsation
Less Accumulated impaimment

Met book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Crpaning el book amount

Addition

Disposal and write-off, net

Transfer in (out)

Amaortisation

Closing net book amaunt

At 31 December 2023

Cosl

Less Accumulated amorbsation

Met book amount

Separate financial statement

Computer

Computer software under
software Digital platform installation Total
Thousand Baht  Thousand baht  Thousand Baht  Thousand Baht
92,608 - 4. 281 B, 889
(59,042 - - (69,042)
23 566 - 4 281 2T Ba7
23,556 - 4,281 &7 847
1,904 3,880 1.004 6,799
> J (881) (981)
2,437 - (2,437) -
(5,218) - - (5,216)
= {g.ﬁﬁﬂ} |:=|Eﬁg:|
2602 1221 1,867 25,780
6. 950 3,880 1.8a67 102,707
{74,258) B = (74,258)
- {2 669) (2 BED)
22602 1,221 1,867 25,780
22692 1.221 1.867 25,780
10,097 63 4,970 15.132
- {1,286) - [1,286)
5,539 5 {5,539) :
(5,840) - - (5,640)
32,688 - 1,298 33,988
112,786 - 1,298 113,884
{79,894) s 2 (78,808)
32,688 = 1,298 33,986

Amortisation change relating o ntanglble assets recognised in oost of senices and adminisiralive expenses in profit or loss
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]
20 Goodwill
Consalidated
financial statements

2023 2022

Thousand Baht Thousand Baht

Chpenang net book amaouwnt 53,180 -
Addition - 53,150
Disposals {53.150) -
Closing net book amound - 53,150

Om 14 March 2023, the Board of Directors’ meeating no, 4/2023 approved Inno Hub Comipany Limited (subsidiany numparrﬂ
to cispose of all investments in Phygital Space Development Co,, Ltd.. which operates content and marketing services,
regarding games and electronic sports compeditions (Elecironic Sports) to third parties amounting to Baht- 150 million
The Company entered into the share purchase agresment on 30 March 2023, resulbing in the termination of confrol over
such entity and elimination from prepanng the consohdated financial information. This includes goodwll in the financs
information and amounts since that date. The mentioned transaction resulted in the Group recognising gain from the sale
of investments as other incomea in the slatements of comprehensive Ncome amdaunting o Bahit 51.04 millicn. The Company
presents the gain from the sale of such invesiment net of expected credit losses from this transaction (Moie 31),

21  Other non-current assets

Consolldated Separate

financial statements financial statemenis
3 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thausand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht

Withholding tax expacted 1o ba

recoverad over than one year 25 838 - 23,388 -
Deposits for business invesiment 220,900 . 220,900 .
Cithers 23 276 231 276
246069 276 244519 2768

211 Investment in Peer-to-Peer Lending Platform

Oin 23 August 2023, the Board of Dwectors Meeting Mo; 15/2023 approved the Company's investmeant in the Peer-
to-Peer Lending Platform business, which is involved with facilitating loan fransactions bebtween individueals
through an onfine platform without an intermediary such as a bank or financial institution, The deciskon was made
after the Company’s Execulive Committes reviewed the results of the due diigence on the larget company and
taund them 16 be satisfactory.

The target company is 8 holding company in Thailand that holds shares of a Thai company operating an electronic
system or network for peer-to-peer landing transactons (P2P lending). They are the first company in Thailand o
receive permission from the Bank of Thailand to operate a F2P lending business, and obtained a license from the
Ministry of Finance 1o operate an efectronsc system of network business for P2P lending transactons on 30 July
2020, The target comparny's common shanes will be purchased from the eosting shareholders, o SET-lsted
companies with a 1ofal investment value of Baht 585 million. This includes acquiring 51% of the target company’s
comman shares for Baht 324 million from one listed company, and another 40% of common shares for Baht 241
million from the other listed company, After the investment is complete, the Company will have a 81%
shareholding in the target company.
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In additian, the Board of Dwectors approved a refundable deposit of 30% of the share value to the two exisling
shareholders. As a resull, during the nine-month period ending 30 September 2023, the Company placed a
deaposit of Baht 72,20 million 1o invest with one seller and a deposit of Baht 48.60 milkon acecording io the confiract
to ancther seller on 31 October 2023, Currently, this transaction s being considered for approval of changes in
the sharehoblder sirecture of the targed company by the relevant regulatory agencies. The Company alsa paid an
additional deposil to first seller amounting to Baht 40 .00 million on 28 November 2023 and amounting o Baht
2000 milbon on 25 December 2023. Therefore, as of 31 December 2023, the Company has a total deposit of
Baht 180.90 million for invesiment in this project.

Mote 21.1 explains the approval for the Company to invest in a Peer-1o-Peer Landing Platform business through
imvestment in & target company, which is a holding company in Thadland holding shares in another Thai company
gperated in the elecronic Spstem of network business for personal-o-personal credit transactons. Addimonally,
a deposit of Baht 190.90 million has bean paid o the existing shareholders of the holding company, registered in
two companies. This has been approved for changes in shareholder structure by the relevant regulatory authonty
on 23 February 2024

Investing in Happy Products and Service Co., Lid,

on 22 November 2023, the Board of Execulive’ Meeling Mo. 16/2023 approved the study and investment in the
product selling and service providing business through digtal TV media and cnline platforms of Happy Products
and Service Co,, Lid. (HPS). On 24 November 2023, the company signed a MOU with the intention to study the
possibility of considering buying and selling shares. Including checking the status of HPS's business from cuman!
sharehalders along with a refundable deposil of Baht 25 milion o the seller.

00 28 Decamber 2023, the Company's Board of Directors Mesting Mo, 2272023 approved the investment by
purchasing 100% of HPS's commaon shares with an investment value nol exceeding Baht 150 million, including
holding a shareholder meeting. To consider and approve the entry info the transaction, i must receive at least
three-gquarters of the total voles of shareholders who attend the mesting and have the right 1o vole. On 19 February
2024, the transaction was approved by the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders (Mate 38)

Investing in mutual fund brokerage securities

On 23 August 2023, the Company's Board of Directors Meeting Mo, 1572023 approved the investment in 2
securities brokerage company

On 27 Oclober 2023, the Executive Committed Meeting Mo, 152023 approved he payment of a deposi
{refundable deposit) of Baht & millicn to the cument shareholders or prospective sellers of the securities brokerage
company o study the guidelines for conducting a transaction of shares from the cument shareholders in the
proportion of 509, 89% of all common stocks at a total price not exceeding Baht 25 millign

Trade and other payables

Consalidated Separale
financial stalements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand Baht

Trade payable - third parbes 10,330 8,312 5,980 7.497

Other payable - third parties 7,088 5,408 5,439 5.314

Accrued project cos! 530 1,574 250 704

548

- related parties {Note 36}

- related parties (Mote 34) 138

Accrued expenses 34,407 69,029 27,070 29,714

Total

52 362 84,321 43749 43,915
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23  Lease liabilitles

Tha mavarmeant in leasa labilities is analysad as follows:

Consolidated Saparate
financial statements financial statermants
2023 022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Balance as at 1 January 15,131 24,772 14,155 24 546
Additions 1,064 3,863 46T 26846
Lease lablites paymients (10,218 (11,671) (9.679) [11.224)
Leasa modifications and reassessments 8,523 - B.523 =
Lease cancellation (218) {1,833 (218) {1,833)
Balance as at 31 Decamber 14 284 15131 13, 248 14 155
Maturity details of lease Habilities are as follows:
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial stalements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Minimum lease liabilities payments
Mot 1ater than 1 year BAZT 10,432 7817 9.8930
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 6,488 5,148 8,052 4,644
Less Future finance charges on leases (B31) (247 (B21) (419}
Presem value of lease labilities 14,284 15,131 13,248 14,155
Present value of lease liabilities
Mot later than 1 year 8,060 10,057 7449 9575
Later tham 1 year but not later than 5 years 6,224 5,074 5,798 4,580
14 284 13,248 13248 14,155
24 Other current liabilities
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thouzand Thousand Thougand
Baht Bakvt Baht Baht
Undue culput VAT payable 9. 70s 7730 8032 B434
Walue added tax payable 2 BGS 2280 2 888 1,601
Others 3,861 5. 26T 1265 3,838
Tatal 16,434 15,286 12,185 13,773
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25 Employee benefit obligations

Staternent of financial position:
Retirement benefits

Expanse charge includad
in operating profit for:
Retirement benefits

Retirerment bansiiis

Consolidated Separale
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
14,022 12,351 13,202 11,011
2,57 2619 2181 2.087

The plans are final salary relirement plans. The level of benefils provided depends on members' length of service and
thieir salary in the final years leading up to retiement.

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as {ollows:

At 1 January
Cumant sentice cosl
Pasl senvice cosl
Inlerast expense

Al 31 Decembar

Remeasuremenis.

Loss from change in demographic

assumplions
Gain from change in inandcial
assumplions
Expananca loss
Payment from plans:
Benefit payment

At 31 December

The significant actuarial assumptions used were as fiollows:

Drscount rale
Salary growlh rate
Employee turnover rate

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Baht Baht Baht Bahi
12351 10,110 11,011 0,554
2,246 2,399 1,884 1,892
: 18 - .
J25 204 287 1895
14,922 12,729 13,202 11,641
= 2 15
= (218) (840}
- 291 - 865
= (474} {474}
14 922 12254 13,202 11,011
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financlal statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
% Yo Yo %
2.19-28 2327 2.81 2327
25-50 25-50 25-50 25-50
0-33 0-33 0-33 0-33
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Sensitivity analyses for each significani actuarial assumption used is as follows!

Consolidated financial statemenis
Change in Impact on retirement benefits
assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumplion
2023 2022 2023 2022 223 2022
W %  Million Baht  Milllon Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht
Dhiscount rate 1 1 {1.0) {1.1) 1.0 13
Salary growth rale 1 1 1.0 13 (1.0} 1.2}
Employed urmover rale 20 20 2.0} (1.9} 3.0 24
Separate financial statements
Change in Impact on retirement benefits
assumption Increase in assumpticn Decrease in assumption
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Ya %  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht
Duscount rate 1 1 {1.0% {1.04 1.0 1.2
Satary growth rafe 1 1 1.0 1.2 (1.0) (1.1}
Employee lumover rale 20 20 {2.00 (1.7 30 22

The above sensitivily analyses are based on a change in an assumplion while holding all other assumptions conslant.
In practce, this is uniikely to occur, and changes in-some of the assumptions may be correlaled. When calculating the
sansitivity of the retirement benefits obligation fo significant actuarnial assumptions, the sams method has been applied
as when calculating the retirement benefils recognised in the statement of financial position

The methods and fypes of assumplions used in prepanng the sensitivity analysis did nol change compared (o the

pravious year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benafit obligation is 13 years (2022; 12 years),

26 Change in non-controlling interest of subsidiaries

Inna Hul Co., Lid, (a subsidiary of the Group) has sold all investments in Fijital Space Development Co., Lid, and the
Group ceases to contral thal company effective 30 March 2023, Change of interest in subsidaries are as follows:

Cash (Met cash recenred from selling subsidianes)

Accrued revenu from selling subsidanes (Other receivables)

Tolal expected returmns

Net assats {Including goodwill and olher intangible assets)

Expenses related to selling investiments in subsidianes
Loss from selling invesiments in subsidiaries (Note 20)

MNon-contralling interest

207

Consolidated
financial statements
Thousand Baht

25,192
120.000

145,192
{132,899
{5.287)
(51,039

(£4.033)
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2T Share capital and premium on share capital

Changes in share capdal for the years ended 31 Decembar 2023 and 2022 are as (ollows:

Consolidated and separate financial statements

Share
Authorised share I Paid-up share capital premium
%mry ary

share share Ordinary

Mumber of PAR Thousand Number of PAR  Thousand share

Shares Bahtper  Bahi per Shares Baht per Baht per Thousand

Shares shares shares Shares shares shares Bahit

A1 Jamuany 2022 840,000,000 1 B40.000 559,999,995 1 660,000 304419
Capital rechection (5] 1 - - - - -
Capital increasas 25,000,005 1 S, D0 - - - -
Al 3 December 2022 895,000,000 i BS5 000 559 999 345 1 560,000 304 418
Warranty axarcises - - - 33,236,514 1 233237  46BA4AT3
Capdal reduction {55 000, 005) 1 {55, D) - - - -
Capital increases S0.000.000 1 SO0 - - - -
At 3 December 20Q3 85,999 995 1 20000 793,336,509 1 TO323T  FT0.E9?

Omn 21 April 2022, the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders passed the resolution as follows:

Approve the reduction n the Company's regislersd share capital frorm Baht 840,000,000 (840,000,000 ordinary shares
of Baht 1 each) to Baht B35 %09 945 (B:30_ 999 935 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each) by reducing 5 ordinary sharas with a
par value of Baht 1 each, tolaling Baht 5, which are the remaining shares from the new ordinary shares issued and
offered fo the existing sharehoiders of the Company in proportion o their respective sharehoédings. The Company
registered the reduction of the share capital with the Ministry of Commerce an 27 April 2022

Approve the increase in the Company's registered share capital from Baht 39,989 995 {839 899 995 ordinary shares
of Baht 1 each) to Baht 805 000,000 (895 000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each) through the issuance of 55,000,005
additional ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 1 each, totaling Baht 55,000,005, to be offered to private placement.
The Company registered the increase of share capital with the Ministry of Commerce an 28 April 2022

O 31 May 2023 (the firsi exercse date of warrants OTO-W 1), there are 233,236,514 units of warrants were exercized
al an exercise price af Baht 3 per share, resulting o the number of regisierad and pasd-up ordinary shares of 793 236 509
shares, remaining unexercised warrants of 46,762,155 units,

On 15 June 2023, the Exraordinary Annual General Meeting of the Company's shareholders No. 12023 pass the
resolution as follows:

Approve the reduction in the Company's registered share capital for Baht 55,000,005, which is rom Baht 825 000000
to Baht B39 999935, by canceling registered ordinary shares thal have not been sold in the amount of 55,000,005
shares with a par value of Baht 1 each. Also, approve the amendment o Clause 4 of the Memorandum of Association

to be consistent with the Company's capital decrease,
Approva Ihe increase in the Company's registaned shane capital for Bahl 50,000,000, which is from Baht 839,999 99510

Baht 880,909,995, by msuing 50,000,000 new ordinary shares with a par value of Bahl 1 each. Alse; approve the
amendmeant o Clause 4 of the Memorandum of Association o be consistent wilh the Company’s capital increase.
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28 Legal reserves

Al 1 January
Appropriation dunng the year
At 31 Decambar

Consolidated and separate
financial statements

2023 2022
Thougsand Baht Thousand Baht

28,700 28,700

28,700 28.700

Under the Public Companies Act., 1992, the Company & required 1o set aside as legal resendse al least 5 percent of net
profil after accurmulated deficit brought foreward (i any) untll the reserve is nol l&ss than 10 percent of the registered
capital. This reserve is not available for dividend distribution,

289  Other income

Galn on soid inandal assels measured al
fair value throwgh profit or loss

Gain on sold investment in subsidianes

Gain on exchange rate, net

Gain on disposals of equipment

Galn from reewards of digital assets

Oihers

Total

30 Expense by nature

Stafl cosis

Rental and related serdice axpensa
Deprecation and amordisation expenses
Repair and maintenance expenses
Office utilities

Other expenses

Total

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
2700 - 2,700 -
491 aa7 491 Bar
234 24 142 (14}
278 - 151 :
E5 . 65 .
11.137 13459 14,482 2 451
14 814 14 180 18 (a1 3134
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Bakht
437,232 437 605 338,852 351.618
12483 16444 10,485 14,706
41,626 40,734 38 447 37,049
13.808 16,7849 13,287 16,086
18,539 1754 18,177 17.263
TEATE B0 360 67,673 53,723
G0 104 608453 486,531 490,445
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31 Expected credit loss

Trade recenyables and contract assets
Other receivebies

Short-tenm ksans o third parties
Shorl-lerm loans o related parties

Tatal

Consolidated Saoparate

financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
1,342 3,470 aET 290
86,137 - 803 .
57,000 57.500 .
. = 67 200 -
144 979 3,170 126,970 290

Expected loss from other receivables is included with nel expected credit loss from invesiment in PSD selling fransaction

amaunt of Baht 120 milkon and gain on this transacton amount of Bakt 51.04 million

32 Other losses - net

Loss on change in fair value on market secunties
measured ai fair value through profit or loss

Loss on sold af financial assel
measured al fair value

Loss on impairmeant for investment in
subsidianes

Loss on impairment for intangible asset

Other losses

31  Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises the following:

Current tax:
Gurrent 1ax on profit far the year

Deferred income tax:
Deferred income 1ax ansing from addition and
revensal of temporany differences

Income tax expenge (benefit)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
a3 Sdd 107 047 08 a4 107 097
162,028 40,750 162.028 40,750
- - 35000 15,000
- 2 668 - 2 B649
>458 702 1.928 430
263.030 150,118 297,500 166, 846
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thausand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
8,238 456 :
19,759 (24,009} 18,075 {22,088)
27 a7 (23,533} 19,075 {22 0BS)
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Amaunt of income tax refabng to component of other comprehensive income 5 as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Bakht Baht Baht Baht
Defarred tax assets relafing to gain {loss)
frem aciuarial assumgtion - (18} - 3

The tax on the Group's loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate of the
home country of the Company as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Theusand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Loss bafore tax (419,324) [139,312) (443,840) {156.834)
Tax rale 20% 20% 20% 20%
Tax calculated at a tax rafe {B3.865) {27, 862) (B0, 76A) {31,367
Tax effect of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 2,903 G2 2.807 40
Additional deductible expense and double
deductible expense {[47T) (374) 418} {374)
Prendously deductible temporary differences
and unrecognised tax losses that is used to
reduce current tax expense - {3.820) - -
Unrecognised lax losses 44 B39 T.776 44 839 6,000
Reversal of deferred tax assel
and unrecognised deferred lax expenses g4 597 GBS 60,615 3,813
Tax charge 27.997 {23.553) 19,075 (22 088)

The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilifies are as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Eaht Baht Baht
Deferred tax assets
Unrealsed loss from revaluahon of
temparary investmant - 13,771 - 13,711
Accrued project cost 58 315 : 141
Prowision for long-temm employes benefits Jad 2470 = 2,202
Accrued vacation leave 5 125 - 118
Depreciation difference from tax rale 332 406 . 13
Allowanca for expected credit losses 95 113 . 113
Leases - 103 - a8
Albawancs fof impairment of
other non-current financial assets - 1,600 - 1.800
Alboerance for impairment of intangible assats - 1,585 - 534
Reducton cost to nel realisable value . 283 . 283
Others - 1 - 1
Total deferred tax assets B34 21,282 . 18,075
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fair valug adpustment from
atquisition in subsidiary 2 (13.433) =
Deferred tax assel - net B34 7,849 - 19,075
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company reversed defermed tax artsang from temporary differences that
ware dedudlible in full, and as al 31 December 2023, the Group had deductible temporary differences and unused
temporary differences from tax losses camed forward of Baht 87548 milion and USD 0,17 million (eguivatent to Baht
E.19 millian (a5 at 31 December 2022 Bahl 39,40 milien and USD 0.17 million (equivalent 1o Baht T.00 milkon)} which
deferred tax assets have not been recognised. This is because the Group beligves future lacable profits may not be
sufficient to allow the utilisation of lemporary diferences and unused 1ax losses carmed forward. The unused tax losses
will mxpire by 2027

34 Loss per share

Loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss attnbulable to the ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the period,

Diluted loss par share i calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to the ordinary shasshalders by the number of

ordinary shares for basic loss per share calcuation, plus the weighted awerage number of shares to ba issued as if
wamants were exercised.

The: loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 is as follows!

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022

Recoencillations of loss used

in calculating loss per share
Basic loss per share
Loss aftributable to the ardinary equity holders

of the Company used in calculating basic loss

per share (Thousand Baht) {442 130) (116,221} {462.915) {134, T48)
Weighted average number of shares used as

the denominator
Weighlad average number of ordinary shares

outsianding used a5 the dominator in

calculating basic loss per share (Thousand shangs) B9T, 386 560,000 GaT,356 560000

Basic [oss per share (Bah per share) (0.63) (0.21) {0.66) {0.24)

The Company has no effect from diluted ordinary shares in the calculation of diluted loss per share resutting from the
exercisn of share oplions, as the average market prce of the Company's ordinary shares during the period was lower
than the exercise price of the share oplions, ncluding the approval of share issuing and exercised waranis is after the
reporting penod. Thenefore, ihere 5 no presantation of dilvled loss per shara.
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35 Warrants

O 20 September 2021, the Extraordinary General Mesfing of shareholders of the Company Mo, 172021 passed the
resoiution to approve the issuance and allocation of warrants 1o purchase ordinary share of the Company No 1 ("OTO-W1
Warranis”) not over 280,000,000 warrents to the existng shareholders of the Company in proportion 1o their respective
sharehoidings. Details of the wamants are summarised as follows:

Mumber of exerncised warrants o 280,000 000 units:

Mumber of shares denved from exercised warrants | 279,958 889 units

Cffening price per unit i Baht 3 par uni

Cffening method . Allocated to the existing shareholders, 2 ordinary shares 1o 1
unit of OTO-W1 Warrant

Exercise rata » 1 unit of OTOW1 Warrant per 1 ordinary share

Exgrcise price . Baht 3 par share, subject 1o change in accardanca wilh the
conditions of rights adjustments

Diate of issuance ¢ 1 December 2021

Term of the warrani ;3 years from the issuance date of wamants

Expiry date .29 Novemnber 2024

Exercise datas .2 times when the warrants are due at 1 year and 6 months

{31 May 2023 and at the mafturity date of 3 years from the issuance
dafe of warranis {29 November 2024)

Om 31 May 2023, 233,236 514 warrant units had been exercised with exercise price Baht 3 per share, therefore, as at
H December 2023, there were 46,762 155 units unexercised warrants outstanding (31 December 2022 273 D08 669
units unexercised warrants cutslanding),

38 Related party transactions

Persons and businesses that have relabonships with the company whether directly or nderectly where that person or
busginess has confrol over the company contralled by the company or under the same controd as the company Includes
imvestmen companies, associates, jainl venlures and individuals of enlibes that have significant influence over the
company. Key execufives including company direclors as well as family membars close o thase people and businesses
controlled or pointly controlied by those persens considered Io be a person or business related to the company.

In considesing the relationship between related parties or enfities thal may exist, consideration must be given 1o the
details of the relationship rather than the legal form of the relationship,

A5 0f 31 December 2023, relationships between the Company and related entities with related transactions as follows:

List of related businesses Relationship
EV Click Co., Lid. Subsidiary
CCE Carbon Clear Soluticn Co,, Ltd, Subsidiary
One To One Profressional Co., Lid. Subsidary
Inna Hub Ca., Lid. Subrsidary
0One o One (Cambedia) Co., Lid. Subsidiary
Phigital Space Development Co., Lid. Indirect subsidiary, until 30 March 2023

The Group's policy regarding trade fransactions with related businesses consists of the following details:
- Revenue from sales of goods and services, and other income from related businesses is ata price similar to e

marked price.
- Costs from sales and seraces Sefing and administrative expenses with related businesses are as mutually agreed upon,
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Transactions with related parties

Transachons with related persons or businesses for the year ended 31 December were as follows:

Consalidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thouwsand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Service income:
Subsidiaries - - G2 811 -
Contract income:
Subsidiaries - - 10,080 -
Cost of services:
Subsidiaries - - B0 -
Other income:
Subsidiaries - - 1,054 -

Dutstanding balances arising from sales and purchases of goods and services

The outstanding balances at the end of the period ended in relation 1o transactions with related parties are a5 follows:

Consolldated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Trade recelvables:
Subsidiaries - - 21110 19480
Trade others:
Subsidaries - - 2 082 581
Less Allowance for expected
credit losses . . (8O3}
- - 1,279 581
Accrued income:
Related parties - 2514 763
Other current assets:
Subsidiaries - - 56 581
Trade payable:
Subsidiaries = = X 548
Other payable:
Subzidiaries . - . 138
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Short-term loans to related parties
Changes in loans 1o related parties for the vears ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Separate
financial stalements
30 December 31 December
2023 2022
Thousamnd Baht Thousand Baht

Opening net book value 76,000 24,500
Additions 16,800 1040, 000
Repayments (25,000) {48,500)
Allzwance for expected credil loss (57 800} :
Closing net book value - 76,000

Loans to related persans or parties are following normal koan terms and condibons, The loans are callable wilh
an interest rate of 1,868 percent per year, The Group has recognised an allowance for expected credil losses for
the koans in the thind guarter amounting o Baht 58.08 millkon and has considered to recognise an addition of
allowance for credit losses amounting to Baht 11.72 milicn dunng the fourth quarter of 2023 (31 Decamber 2022 nil)

Key management compensation

Key management includaes directors (executive and non-execulive) and members of the executive commeties,
The compensation paid of payable (o key management are as follows:

Consolidated and separate
financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023 2022
Thousand Baht  Thousand Baht
Salaries and olher shor-term employes benafits 30,227 21,803
Post-employment benafits 249 204
30478 22,087
Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments

Capital expenditure confracied as at the statement of financial position date but no recognised as liabilities is as
follows:

Consolidated Separale
financial statements fimancial statements
2023 20232 2023 2022

Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Bahl  Million Baht

Intangible assels 1.1 04 1.1 0.4
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Leases - where the Group s the lessee

Commitmeanizs for minimum lease and service payments in relation fo nen-cancellable low-value assets and the
short-term leases and service agreements are a5 follows,

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2023 2022 2023 2022
Baht Bakht Baht Baht
Mt 1ater tham 1 year 53 81 3.8 T8
Later than 1 year 0.8 5.1 - 3.4
Total .1 142 ) 11

Letter of guarantes

The Group has contingent habilities from letier of guarantees issued by financial institutions o its customens in
respect of service agreements as follows;

Consolidated and separate
financial statements

2023 2022

Million Baht Million Baht

Letter of guarantee - Performance bond 343 26.1
Letter of guarantes - MEA 0.3 03

38 Subseguent events

On'2 1 November 2023, the Board of Dreclors Meeting No. 1802023, and e revised certain matiers reparted by the Boand
of Directors Meating Mo, 22/2023 on 28 Decemiber 2023, A resolubion was passed Io propose significant matiers for reveew
and approval at the Extraordinary General Mesting of Sharsholders No. 1/2024, The Extracrdinary General Mestng of
Shareholders Mo, 172024, which was hedd on 18 February 2024, The following imporiant matiers were approwved:

.1

fssuance and allocation of warranis (o purchase the Company's ordinary shares. in proportion 1o thesr shareholding for
the second time (OTOW2 warrants)

Sharsholders authorised the issuanca and allecation of warrants to purchase the Company's ordinary shares far the
second time (OTO-W2 wamants) in an amount not exceeding 806 016 585 (without charge) to cument shareholders
The aliocation is based on the proportion of shasehelding (right cfferings) in the original ratio of 11 shares to 5 wamanis
ard Includes the fallewing details:

- Term: two years from the date of isswance of OTO-W2 wamants
- Exercise ratio; one OTO-W2 warrant has the right to purchass one common share
Exgrcise price; Baht 1.30 (unless adjusted according to the terms and conditions of the OTO-W1 wamants)

Reductan in numbsr of common shanes

Shareholders agreed 1o increase the registersd capial from Baht 880 098 995 (B89 989 995 common shanes with a
value of Bahl 1 per share) to Baht B33 999,995 (339 958 995 common shares with a value of Baht 1 each) by reducing
the number of common shares by 50 million shares, with a par value of Baht 1, fotaling Baht 50 milkon, which s the
remaining shares from the capital increase to be issued and offered for sale to a limited number of individuals,

Increased regestered capital to offer specific sales 1o a limited number of persons (Privale Placement) and support the
exencese of ights under the OTO-W2 warfants.

Shareholders approved an increase in regisiered capital from Baht 839,900 045 (839 989,035 commaon shares valusd
at Baht 1 per share) to Baht 2,948 016,500 (2,048 016,500 common shares valued at Babt 1 per share) throwgh the
issyance of 2,106,016 590 additional ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1, totaling Baht 2,106,016,580. These
shares will be offered for sale 1o a limited number of individuais (Private Placement) 1o support the exercise of rights
wnder the OTO-W 2 warrants.
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4. Allocation of addibonal common shares for a Private Placement sale and to support the exerdse of nghts under the
OTO-W2 warrants.

Shareholders approved the allocation of additional ordinary shares, not exceeding 2,106,016,590 shares with a
par value of Baht 1, allocated as follows:

- Bupporting the exercisa of ights according bo OTO-W2 warrants, not exceeading 906,016,595 shares.
- Privale Placement offered for sale not exceeding 1,200 000,000 shares.

Shareholders approved the allocation of additional comman shares to be offered in & Private Placement sale to seven
individuals at Baht 0.60 per share, for & fotal value not exceeding Baht 720 million,

5. Change of company nama.

Shareholders agreed to change the company’s name from One to Ome Contacts Public Company Limited (sfock
abbreviation OTO) lo Peer for You Public Company Limited (or Peer for You), as well as specfy the new slock
abbreviation as 'PEER’.

6. Approval of common share purchasing fransactions for Happy Products and Services Company Limied.
Shareholders passed a resolution to invest in 100% of the commaon shares of Happy Products and Services Company

Limited, a company engaged in selling products and providing services through digital TV media and onling platforms,
with the meestment value not exceeding Baht 150 million,
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